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Cautionary Statement

Except for the historical financial information daimed herein, the matters discussed in this reparForm 10-K (as well as documents
incorporated herein by reference) may be considéfeavard-looking" statements within the meanindgsefction 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the SecuEitigsange Act of 1934, as amended. Such forwaklAgastatements include declarations
regarding the intent, belief or current expectaiaf Silicon Laboratories Inc. and its managemerd may be signified by the words "belie
"estimate," "expect,” "intend," "anticipate," "pldn‘project,” "will* or similar language. You areautioned that any such forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performamceinvolve a number of risks and uncertaintiesuAl results could differ materially from
those indicated by such forward-looking statemerastors that could cause or contribute to sucliedénces include those discussed under
"Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this report. Sitidcaboratories disclaims any intention or obligatito update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new informafigye events or otherwise.
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Part |
ltem 1. Business
General

Silicon Laboratories Inc. designs and depglproprietary, analog-intensive, mixed-signatgnated circuits (ICs) for a broad range of
applications. Mixed-signal ICs are electronic comguats that convert real-world analog signals, sasckound and radio waves, into digital
signals that electronic products can process. Ttieremixed-signal ICs are critical components iaducts addressing a variety of markets,
including communications, consumer, industrial antbmotive.

Our world-class, mixed-signal ICs leveratgndard complementary metal oxide semiconduct@S), a low cost, widely available
process technology. This enables smaller, moreeftesttive solutions. Our expertise in analog-isfea, mixed-signal IC design in CMOS
allows us to develop new and innovative producas dne highly integrated, simplifying our customelssigns and improving their time-to-
market.

Industry Background

The pervasiveness of connectivity and ttpasion in mobile computing is driving semiconduratonsumption. Intelligence is being
added to electronic systems to enable remote margtgpower efficiency and an improved user experé This in turn is increasing the
demand for bandwidth, requiring more infrastructiersupport higher performance networks. The nasblguitous availability of Internet
access, the increasing intelligence of electroridaks and mobility are enabling what is calledltiternet of Things, a term that describes the
exponential increase in IP-enabled devices conddotthe Internet.

These trends are requiring more and mdegantion between the analog world we live in dreldigital world of computing, and therefc
require analog-intensive, mixed-signal circuitsaditional mixed-signal designs relied upon solwibnilt with numerous, complex discrete
analog and digital components. While these traditialesigns provide the required functionality ythee often inefficient and inadequate for
use in markets where size, cost, power consumptidmperformance are increasingly important prodiftérentiators. In order to improve th
competitive position, electronics manufacturersdnteereduce the cost and complexity of their systamd enable new features or functionality
to differentiate themselves from their competitors.

Simultaneously, these manufacturers facelarating time-to-market demands and must betabigpidly adapt to evolving industry
standards and new technologies. Because analagsimée mixedsignal IC design expertise is difficult to findefe manufacturers increasin
are turning to third parties, like us, to providkvanced mixed-signal solutions. Mixed-signal desigguires specific expertise and relies on
creative, experienced engineers to deliver solattbat optimize speed, power and performance, ey noisy digital environment, and
within the constraints of standard manufacturingcpsses. The development of this design expevtiseally requires years of practical analog
design experience under the guidance of a sengneer, and engineers with the required level df akd expertise are in short supply.

Many IC providers lack sufficient analogoertise to develop compelling mixaiynal ICs. As a result, manufacturers of electrat@vice
value IC providers that can supply them with mixéghal solutions with greater functionality, smabé&ze and lower power requirements at a
reduced cost and shorter time-to-market.
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Products

We provide analog-intensive, mixed-sigradligons for use in a variety of electronic produict a broad range of applications including
portable devices, AM/FM radios and other consuneeteonics, networking equipment, test and measargrmquipment, industrial monitoring
and control, and customer premises equipment. @ulygts integrate complex mixed-signal functioret tire frequently performed by
numerous discrete components in competing prodiittsa single chip or chipset. By doing so, weake to create products that, when
compared to many competing products:

. Require less board space;

. Reduce the use of external components loweringyhem cost and simplifying design;

. Offer superior performance improving our customensl products;

. Provide increased reliability and manufacturahilitgproving customer yields; and/or

. Reduce system power requirements enabling smaller factors and/or longer battery life.

We group our products into the followindegories:

. Broad-based products, which include our microesiers, timing products (clocks and oscillatosywer and isolation devices,
and touch controllers;

. Broadcast products, which include our broadaasio and video products;

. Access products, which include our Voice over IBI®) products, embedded modems and our Power dherriet (PoE)
devices; and

. Mature products, which include certain devices #ratat the end of their respective life cycles tnedefore receive minimal or

no continued research and development investment.
The following table summarizes the divgrseduct areas and applications for the variousth@swe have introduced to customers:

Product Areas and Description Applications

Broad-based Products

Microcontrollers
We offer a family of products ideal for embeddedteyns that ¢ Industrial automation and

include, 8-bit mixed-signal microcontrollers, 32-bireless control

MCUs acquired in 2012, ultra low power 32-bit MCUs ¢ Home automation
introduced in 2012 as well as peripheral device$ s1s our e Automotive sensors and
EZRadio® family of fully integrated, low power trsceivers. controls

These products generally integrate intelligent dagature, high
performance processing, and communication intesfata
single system on a chip. This family of productdradses a ;
variety of end-markets, including the automotive, measurement eq“'Pme”t
communications, consumer, industrial, medical amadey * Consumer electronics
management markets. * Computer peripherals

¢ White goods

e Smart metering

¢ Remote controls

¢ Medical instrumentation
¢ Electronic test and
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Product Areas and Description

Timing Device:
Leveraging our patented DSPLLa&d MultiSynth technologie
to offer frequency agile, extremely low jitter ckoand
oscillator products, our devices replace traditicmdutions
implemented using expensive, bulky modules, nunseooysta
sources, complicated discrete circuitry requiringnerous
components, or hybrid IC/discrete solutions thé¢ofmited
functionality.

Digital Isolators and Related Produc
Our digital isolators and related products levenaagented
isolation techniques to enable, for example, midtghannels
of isolation on a single device, simplifying desigmd reducing
system cost. These products are still in the eddges of
customer adoption.

Sensors
Our sensor products include touch controllers, jpniy
sensors, ambient light sensors and RH/humidityasn$hese
devices leverage our mixed-signal capability tovfite high
accuracy, quicker response time and lower poweswoption
than competing parts. These products are in tHg staiges of
customer adoptior

Broadcast Products

Broadcast Radio Receivers and Transmit

Our AM and FM receivers deliver the entire tunenfrantenna

input to audio output in a single chip. The broaie@adio
products are based on an innovative digital archite that
enables significant improvements in performancegckvh
translates to a better consumer experience, winileaing
system cost and board space for our customers.

Applications

Networking equipment
Telecommunications
Wireless base stations
Test and measurement
equipment

HDTV video

High-speed data acquisition
SONET/SDH line cards
Storage area networks

Switch mode power supplies
Isolated analog data
acquisition

Industrial networking

Motor control

Isolated DC-DC supplies
Electronic ballasts for lighting

Smart home applications
Industrial controls

Toys and consumer
electronics

Monitors and lavatory contrc

Stand-alone AM/FM radios
Portable audio devices
MP3/digital media players
Navigation/GPS devices
Satellite radios

Home stereos

Automotive infotainment
systems
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Product Areas and Description
Video Tuners and Demodulatc

Applications

Our complete, globallgompliant hybrid TV tuners with anali
TV demodulator in a single CMOS IC leverage ourvpro
digital low-IF architecture and exceed the perfangeof
traditional discrete TV tuners, enabling TV makiersleliver
improved picture quality and better reception fothbanalog
and digital broadcasts. Our small, low power arghhi
performance digital video demodulators support DWB2,
DVB-S/S2, and/or DVB-C in a single chip and aresider
equipment receiving digital terrestrial, satelited/or cable
services

Access Products

ProSLIC® Subscriber Line Interface Circuits for Vo

Our ProSLIC provides the analog subscriber linerfiate on
the source end of the telephone which generatésodia, busy
tone, caller ID and ring signal. Our ProSLIC protfaenily has
offerings for short-haul applications suitable fioe customer
premises as well as long-haul applications suitédil¢he
traditional telephone company central office.

ISOmoder® Embedded Moden

The ISOmodem embedded modems leverage innovaligensi
direct access arrangement (DAA) technology andyadi
signal processor to deliver a globally compliamwsmall
analog modem for embedded applications.

Power over Etherne

Our Power over Ethernet (PoE) power source equipianash
powered device ICs offer highly differentiated smns with a
reduced total bill of materials (BOM) and improved
performance and reliability. Our solutions alsceofin
integration level that enables functionality noagable with
competing solutions.

5

Integrated digital televisions
(iDTV)

Free-to-Air (FtA) or pay-TV
set-top box receivers
PC-TV applications

DVD/HDD personal video
recorders

Voice over broadband
modems and terminal adapt

VolIP residential gateways
Wireless local loop remote
access systems

PBXs

Wired long loop and central
office system:

Settop and digital cable box

Fax machines and multi-
function printers

Industrial monitoring
Postage meters

Security systems

Remote medical monitoring
Point of sale (POS) terminals

Networking routers and
switches

Wireless access points (WAP)
VoIP phones

Radio frequency identificatic
(RFID) tag readers

POS terminals

Security cameras

During fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, saleswfmixed-signal products accounted for substbytdl of our revenue.
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Customers, Sales and Marketing

We market our products through our diret¢s force and through a network of independeessalpresentatives and distributors. Direct
and distributor customers buy on an individual pase order basis, rather than pursuant to long-agneements.

We consider our customer to be the encboust purchasing either directly from a distribugbGgontract manufacturer or us. An end
customer purchasing through a contract manufactypécally instructs such contract manufactureolbdain our products and incorporate such
products with other components for sale by sucliraohmanufacturer to the end customer. Althougtaueteally sell the products to, and are
paid by, the distributors and contract manufacsjree refer to such end customer as our customer.

Two of our distributors, Edom Technologyakvnet, represented 22% and 11% of our revenugsglfiscal 2012, respectively. No ott
distributor accounted for 10% or more of revenueditcal 2012.

During fiscal 2012, our ten largest endteoers accounted for 43% of our revenues. We haccastomer, Samsung, whose purchases
across a variety of product areas represented T@4r@evenues during this period. Our major cugisninclude Cisco, Huawei, LG
Electronics, Pace, Panasonic, Sagem, Samsung, i€eldmVarian Medical Systems and ZTE.

We maintain numerous sales offices in Néutherica, Europe and Asia. Revenue is attributeal geographic area based on the shifped-
location. The percentage of our revenues derivem foutside of the United States was 88% in fis€4l22 For further information regarding
revenues and long-lived assets by geographic seeaNote 185egment Informationto the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our direct sales force is comprised of enber of sales professionals who possess varietslef/eesponsibility and experience, including
directors, country managers, regional sales masadgstrict sales managers, strategic account nessafield sales engineers and sales
representatives. We also utilize independent salg®sentatives and distributors to generate sélesr products. We have relationships with
many independent sales representatives and distrdoworldwide whom we have selected based on tmelerstanding of the mixed-signal IC
marketplace and their ability to provide effectfiedd sales applications support for our products.

Our marketing efforts are targeted at boémtified industry leaders and emerging marketigipants. Direct marketing activities are
supplemented by a focused marketing communicatffost that seeks to raise awareness of our compadyproducts. Our public relations
efforts are focused on leading trade and busingiskications. Our external website is used to dele@porate and product information. We
also pursue targeted advertising in key trade patitins and we have a cooperative marketing proginatrallows our distributors and
representatives to promote our products to theallmarkets in conjunction with their own advertgactivities. Finally, we maintain a
presence at strategic trade shows and industryievEmese activities, in combination with diredesaactivities, help drive demand for our
products.

Due to the complex and innovative naturewfICs, we employ experienced applications erggmaho work closely with customers to
support the design-win process, and can signifigaaicelerate the customer's time to market. Aglesiin occurs when a customer has
designed our ICs into its product architecture arttred product from us. A considerable amounffofteto assist the customer in
incorporating our ICs into its products is typigalequired prior to any sale. In many cases, onowative ICs require significantly different
implementations than existing approaches and, fitveresuccessful implementations may require extersommunication with potential
customers. The amount of time required to achiedesignwin can vary substantially depending on a custsmavelopment cycle, which ¢
be relatively short (such as three months) or \@mg (such as two years) based on a wide variety of
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customer factors. Not all design wins ultimatelgui¢ in revenue. However, once a completed degigmtacture has been implemented and
produced in high volumes, our customers are refi¢tasignificantly alter their designs due to thigensive design-win process. We believe
this process, coupled with our intellectual prop@rotection, promotes relatively longer produfe kycles for our ICs and high barriers to
entry for competitive products, even if such cormeproducts are offered at lower prices. Our clogéaboration with our customers provides
us with knowledge of derivative product ideas amptetely new product line offerings that may ndtesivise arise in other new product
discussions.

Research and Development

Through our research and development sffaré leverage experienced analog and mixed-segigiheering talent and expertise to create
new ICs that integrate functions typically perfodrieefficiently by multiple discrete components.i§ mtegration generally results in lower
costs, smaller die sizes, lower power demands ahdreed price/performance characteristics. We attémreuse successful techniques for
integration in new applications where similar bésefan be realized. We believe that we have attdamany of the best engineers in our
industry. We believe that reliable and precise @gaind mixed-signal ICs can only be developed bynteof engineers who have significant
analog experience and are familiar with the intiea of designing these ICs for commercial voluma@pction. The development of test
methodologies is just one example of a criticalvéigtrequiring experience and know-how to enalble tapid release of a new product for
commercial success. We have accumulated a vast satle secrets that allow us to pursue innovaipgroaches to mixed-signal problems
that are difficult for competitors to duplicate. Wighhly value our engineering talent and strivenintain a very high bar when bringing new
recruits to the company.

Research and development expenses were(d@i8on, $136.0 million and $123.8 million insital 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Technology

Our product development process facilitétesdesign of highly-innovative, analog-intensiméxed-signal ICs. Our engineers' deep
knowledge of existing and emerging standards anfdeance requirements helps us to assess theitatfeasibility of a particular IC. We
target areas where we can provide compelling prodygrovements. Once we have solved the primarjleringes, our field application
engineers continue to work closely with our custmshaesign teams to maintain and develop an uratetistg of our customers' needs, allov
us to formulate derivative products and refineduess.

In providing mixed-signal ICs for our custers, we believe our key competitive advantages are

. Analog and RF design expertise in CMOS;

. Digital signal processing, firmware and systessign expertise;
. Microcontroller and system on a chip design expertand
. Our broad understanding of systems technology remdis.

To fully capitalize on these advantageshaee assembled a world-class development teamewxdbptional analog and mixed-signal
design expertise led by accomplished senior enggnee

Analog and RF Design Expertise in CMOS

We believe that our most significant cooenpetency is world-class analog and RF design dépaldditionally, we strive to design
substantially all of our ICs in standard CMOS pusas. While it is significantly more difficult teesign analog ICs in CMOS, CMOS provides
multiple benefits versus existing alternatives|uding significantly reduced cost, reduced techgplask and greater
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worldwide foundry capacity. CMOS is the most comilyarsed process technology for manufacturing dig@a and as a result is most likely
to be used for the manufacturing of ICs with fitiee geometries. These finer line geometries cablensmaller and faster ICs. By designing
our ICs in CMOS, we enable our products to beffiefin this trend towards finer line geometries, whatlows us to integrate more digital
functionality into our mixed-signal ICs.

Designing analog and mixed-signal ICs gm#icantly more complicated than designing stalwha digital ICs. While advanced software
tools exist to help automate digital IC designréhare far fewer tools for advanced analog and dasignal IC design. In many cases, our
analog circuit design efforts begin at the fundatalemansistor level. We believe that we have aaestrated ability to design the most diffic
analog and RF circuits using standard CMOS teclyiedo

Digital Signal Processing, Firmware and System Degi Expertise

We consider the partitioning of a circaitite a proprietary and creative design techniqgeepystems knowledge allows us to use our
digital signal processing (DSP) design expertism&ximize the price/performance characteristidsath the analog and digital functions and
allow our ICs to work in an optimized manner to@oplish particular tasks. Generally, we attemphtove analog functions into the digital
domain as quickly as possible, creating systenciefities without compromising performance. Thegemad approaches require our adval
DSP and systems expertise. We then leverage owvéire know-how to change the 'personality’ of auices, optimizing features and
functions needed by various markets we serve. ¥ample, our broadcast audio products use a proiggaldow-IF receiver and transmitter
architecture to deliver superior RF performance iatetference rejection compared to traditionaglag-only approaches. Digital signal
processing is utilized to optimize sound qualitgenvarying signal conditions, enabling a bettarstoner experience. Firmware has enable
to rapidly expand the portfolio to address multiplarkets without substantial silicon changes, iditig shortwave, longwave, analog tuned,
digital tuned and even high performance HD-capabtemotive radios.

Microcontroller and System on a Chip Design Experse

We have the talent and circuit integratioethodologies required to combine precision andlagh-speed digital, flash memory and in-
system programmability into a single, monolithic OB integrated circuit. Our microcontroller produate designed to capture an external
analog signal, convert it to a digital signal, cartgpdigital functions on the stream of data and tt@mmunicate the results through a standarc
digital interface. The ability to develop standardducts with the broadest possible customer agdic base while being cost efficient with
silicon area of the monolithic CMOS integrated aitcequires a keen sense of customer value andesring capabilities. Additionally, to
manage the wide variety of signals on a monolighéce of silicon including electrical noise, harresnand other electronic distortions requires
a fundamental knowledge of device physics and actated design expertise.

Understanding of Systems Technology and Trends

Our focused expertise in mixed-signal I€the result of the breadth of engineering talemhave assembled with experience working in
analog-intensive CMOS design for a wide varietapplications. This expertise, which we consideomgetitive advantage, is the foundation
of our in-depth understanding of the technology @edds that impact electronic systems and markais expertise includes:

. Isolation, which is critical for existing and emarg telecom networks;

. Frequency synthesis, which is core technology fioeless and clocking applications;
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. Integration, which enables the elimination of déetercomponents in a system; and
. Signal processing and precision analog, which fahmsheart of consumer, industrial, medical andmugtive electronics
applications.

Our understanding of the role of analogtdlgnterfaces within electronic systems, standardolution, and end market drivers enables u:
to identify product development opportunities aagitalize on market trends.

Manufacturing

As a fabless semiconductor company, we eonkC design and development in our facilities afettronically transfer our proprietary IC
designs to third-party semiconductor fabricator®wwhocess silicon wafers to produce the ICs thatlesign. Our IC designs typically use
industry-standard CMOS manufacturing process tdogiydo achieve a level of performance normallyoagsted with more expensive special-
purpose IC fabrication technology. We believe the af CMOS technology facilitates the rapid prooucbf our ICs within a lower cost
framework. Our IC production employs submicron gsxgeometries which are readily available frorditeafoundry suppliers worldwide,
thus increasing the likelihood that manufacturiagarxity will be available throughout our produtife'cycles. We currently partner principally
with Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. (TSME)ts affiliates to manufacture our semiconduetarfers. We believe that our fabless
manufacturing model significantly reduces our capiéquirements and allows us to focus our ressunoedesign, development and marketing
of our ICs.

Once the silicon wafers have been produitey, are shipped directly to our third-party assignsubcontractors. The assembled ICs are
then moved to the final testing stage. This openatian be performed by the same contractor thetdssd the IC, other third-party test
subcontractors or within our internal facilitiesqurto shipping to our customers. During fiscal 20@ost of our units shipped were tested by
offshore third-party test subcontractors. We exieat our utilization of offshore third-party testbcontractors will remain substantial during
fiscal 2013.

Backlog

As of December 29, 2012, our backlog wag@gmately $105.8 million, compared to approxiniat®83.3 million as of December 31,
2011. We include in backlog accepted product pueeltaders from customers and worldwide distribatocking orders. We only include
orders with an expected shipping date from us wifix months. Product orders in our backlog argestito changes in delivery schedules or
cancellation at the option of the purchaser typyoaithout penalty. Our backlog may fluctuate sfigdantly depending upon customer order
patterns which may, in turn, vary considerably blase rapidly changing business circumstances. Stmpsrto distributors are not recognized
as revenue until the products are sold by theibligtrs. Additionally, our arrangements with distriors typically provide for price protection
and stock rotation activities. Accordingly, we dut believe that our backlog at any time is necélgsapresentative of actual sales for any
succeeding period.
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Competition

The markets for semiconductors generalig, far analog and mixed-signal ICs in particulae imtensely competitive. We anticipate that
the market for our products will continually evolaed will be subject to rapid technological chanyye. believe the principal competitive
factors in our industry are:

e Product size; e Power requirement;

¢ Level of integration; e Customer support;

¢ Product capabilities; ¢ Reputation;

¢ Reliability; ¢ Ability to rapidly introduce new products to markeand

¢ Price;
e Performance;

Intellectual property.

We believe that we are competitive withpexg to these factors, particularly because outy@isally are smaller in size, are highly
integrated, achieve high performance specificatairewer price points than competitive productd are manufactured in standard CMOS
which generally enables us to supply them on dively rapid basis to customers to meet their pobdltroduction schedules. However,
disadvantages we face include our relatively sbperating history in certain of our markets andribed for customers to redesign their
products and modify their software to implement I&Ls in their products.

Due to our diversified product portfoliocatihe numerous markets and applications we servéarget a relatively large number of
competitors. We compete with Analog Devices, Atn@@nexant, Cypress, Epson, Freescale, IDT, Laktiaxim Integrated Products,
MaxLinear, Microchip, Microsemi, NXP SemiconductoRenesas, Sony Semiconductor, STMicroelectrofiesas Instruments, Vectron
International and others. We expect to face cortipatin the future from our current competitordhet manufacturers and designers of
semiconductors and start-up semiconductor desigrpaaies. Our competitors may also offer bundledtgwnis offering a more complete
product, which may negatively impact our compegitposition despite the technical merits or advaggayf our products. In addition, our
customers could develop products or technologiesnally that would replace their need for our pratd and would become a source of
competition. We could also face competition fromdule makers or other systems suppliers that mdydeamixed-signal components in their
products that could eliminate the need for our ICs.

Many of our competitors and potential cotiipes have longer operating histories, greater@agcognition, access to larger customer
bases, complementary product offerings, and sitarifly greater financial, sales and marketing, rfesturing, distribution, technical and ott
resources than us. Current and potential compefitave established or may establish financial &natkgic relationships between themselves
or with our existing or potential customers, remallor other third parties. Accordingly, it is piss that new competitors or alliances among
competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire sicgnilt market share.

Intellectual Property

Our future success depends in part upompmprietary technology. We seek to protect ouhtetogy through a combination of patents,
copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks and confaléntprocedures. As of December 29, 2012, we dyggroximately 1,280 issued or pending
United States patents in the IC field. We alsodegly file for patent protection in a variety atérnational jurisdictions with respect to the
proprietary technology covered by our U.S. patent$ patent applications. There can be no assuthatpatents will ever be issued with
respect to these applications. Furthermore, ibssible that any patents held by us may be inv@jaircumvented, challenged or licensed to
others. In addition, there can be no assurancestltdit patents will provide us with competitive atkegyes or adequately safeguard our
proprietary rights. While we continue to
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file new patent applications with respect to owerg developments, existing patents are grantepréscribed time periods and will expire at
various times in the future.

We claim copyright protection for proprigtalocumentation for our products. We have filedrégistration, or are in the process of filing
for registration, the visual images of certain i@th the U.S. Copyright Office. We have registetied "Silicon Labs" logo and a variety of
other product and product family names as tradesnarthe United States and selected foreign juigatis. All other trademarks, service
marks or trade names appearing in this reportrer@itoperty of their respective owners. We alsenat to protect our trade secrets and other
proprietary information through agreements with customers, suppliers, employees and consultamdsth@ough other customary security
measures. We intend to protect our rights vigorguslit there can be no assurance that our effaltdevsuccessful. In addition, the laws of
other countries in which our products are sold matyprotect our products and intellectual propeigits to the same extent as the laws of the
United States.

While our ability to effectively competepbnds in large part on our ability to protect auellectual property, we believe that our
technical expertise and ability to introduce newdurcts in a timely manner will be an important fadh maintaining our competitive position.

Many participants in the semiconductor afettronics industries have a significant numbeguaiénts and have frequently demonstrated
readiness to commence litigation based on allegstid patent and other intellectual property irfgment. From time to time, third parties r
assert infringement claims against us. We may ratail in any such litigation or may not be ablditense any valid and infringed patents
from third parties on commercially reasonable terifrat all. Litigation, regardless of the outconelikely to result in substantial cost and
diversion of our resources, including our managehméme. Any such litigation could materially adsely affect us.

Our licenses include industry standardnigss with our vendors, such as wafer fabricatiohltoraries, third-party core libraries,
computer-aided design applications and busineswaia applications.

Employees

As of December 29, 2012, we employed 9%pl@e Our success depends on the continued sexf/amar key technical and senior
management personnel and on our ability to contiawgtract, retain and motivate highly skilled lagaand mixed-signal engineers. The
competition for such personnel is intense. We hexesr had a work stoppage and none of our U.S.@mees are represented by a labor
organization. We consider our employee relatiornsetgood.

Environmental Regulation

Federal, state and local regulations imp@s®us environmental controls on the storage, diseharge and disposal of certain chemicals
and gases used in the semiconductor industry. @upkance with these laws and regulations has adtehmaterial impact on our financial
position or results of operations.

Available Information

Our website address is www.silabs.com. @unual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omi&0-Q, current reports on Formk8anc
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyamnsto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 are available through
the investor relations page of our website freehafrge as soon as reasonably practicable aftelestanically file such material with, or
furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commis$6EC). Our website and the information contaithedein or connected thereto are not
intended to be incorporated into this Annual ReparForm 10-K.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to our Business

We may not be able to maintain our historical growth and may experience significant period-to-period fluctuationsin our revenues and
operating results, which may result in volatility in our stock price

Although we have generally experienced mexeegrowth in our history, we may not be able tstain this growth. We may also experience
significant period-to-period fluctuations in ouvemues and operating results in the future duentenaber of factors, and any such variations
may cause our stock price to fluctuate. In someréuperiod our revenues or operating results mayebmv the expectations of public market
analysts or investors. If this occurs, our stodkgomay drop, perhaps significantly.

A number of factors, in addition to thosied in other risk factors applicable to our busiemay contribute to fluctuations in our rever
and operating results, including:

. The timing and volume of orders received from customers;
. The timeliness of our new product introductiansi the rate at which our new products may canaialur older products;
. The rate of acceptance of our products by our awsts, including the acceptance of new products wag adevelop for

integration in the products manufactured by sudtaruers, which we refer to as "design wins";

. The time lag and realization rate between "desigrstand production orders;

. The demand for, and life cycles of, the product®iporating our ICs;

. The rate of adoption of mixed-signal ICs in the keds we target;

. Deferrals or reductions of customer orders in guiton of new products or product enhancements fis or our competitors

other providers of ICs;

. Changes in product mix;

. The average selling prices for our products coutgbuddenly due to competitive offerings or coritjyet predatory pricing;

. The average selling prices for our products gehedaicline over time;

. Changes in market standards;

. Impairment charges related to inventory, equipnoemther long-lived assets;

. The software used in our products, including sofen@rovided by third parties, may not meet the segdur customers;

. Significant legal costs to defend our intellectpidperty rights or respond to claims against ud; an

. The rate at which new markets emerge for produetang currently developing or for which our deségpertise can be utilized

to develop products for these new markets.

The markets for consumer electronics, k@meple, are characterized by rapid fluctuationdémand and seasonality that result in
corresponding fluctuations in the demand for owdprcts that are incorporated in such devices. Aatditly, the rate of technology acceptance
by our customers results in fluctuating demandfarproducts as customers are reluctant to incatpa new IC into their products until the
new IC has achieved market acceptance. Once a@aohieves market acceptance, demand for the neanQuickly accelerate to a point
and then level off such that rapid
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historical growth in sales of a product should In®tviewed as indicative of continued future grovthaddition, demand can quickly decline
a product when a new IC product is introduced &eeives market acceptance. Due to the variousrfagtentioned above, the results of any
prior quarterly or annual periods should not beecelpon as an indication of our future operatiegigrmance.

If we are unable to develop or acquire new and enhanced products that achieve market acceptance in a timely manner, our operating results
and competitive position could be harmed

Our future success will depend on our gbit develop or acquire new ICs and product enbdarents that achieve market acceptance in
timely and cost-effective manner. The developmémized-signal ICs is highly complex, and we havéraes experienced delays in
completing the development and introduction of mpeaducts and product enhancements. Successful girdduelopment and market
acceptance of our products depend on a numbectfr&a including:

. Requirements of customers;

. Accurate prediction of market and technical requizats;

. Timely completion and introduction of new designs;

. Timely qualification and certification of our §Jor use in our customers' products;

. Commercial acceptance and volume productioh@froducts into which our ICs will be incorporated
. Availability of foundry, assembly and test caipgc

. Achievement of high manufacturing yields;

. Quality, price, performance, power use and efzaur products;

. Availability, quality, price and performance of cpeting products and technologies;

. Our customer service, application support cap&sliand responsiveness;

. Successful development of our relationships witlstéxg and potential customers;

. Technology, industry standards or end-user pretesrand

. Cooperation of third-party software providers and emiconductor vendors to support our chips withsystem.

We cannot provide any assurance that ptedugich we recently have developed or may devildpe future will achieve market
acceptance. We have introduced to market or adevelopment of many ICs. If our ICs fail to achiewarket acceptance, or if we fail to
develop new products on a timely basis that achieaket acceptance, our growth prospects, operaggigts and competitive position could
be adversely affected.

Our research and development efforts are focused on a limited number of new technologies and products, and any delay in the development,
or abandonment, of these technologies or products by industry participants, or their failure to achieve market acceptance, could compromise
our competitive position

Our ICs are used as components in electidgwnices in various markets. As a result, we lthexeted and expect to continue to devote a
large amount of resources to develop products baserw and emerging technologies and standartisiithde commercially introduced in
the future. Research and development expense disgad 2012 was $138.0 million, or 24.5% of revesuA number of large companies are
actively involved in the development of these neshhologies and standards. Should any of these amiggodelay or abandon their efforts to
develop commercially available products based anteehnologies and standards, our research andogenvent efforts with
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respect to these technologies and standards lkelyd have no appreciable value. In addition, ifdeenot correctly anticipate new
technologies and standards, or if the productswieadevelop based on these new technologies andastis fail to achieve market acceptance
our competitors may be better able to address rhddmaand than we would. Furthermore, if marketdtiese new technologies and standards
develop later than we anticipate, or do not develogll, demand for our products that are currentigevelopment would suffer, resulting in
lower sales of these products than we currentlicipate.

We depend on a limited number of customersfor a substantial portion of our revenues, and theloss of, or a significant reduction in orders
from, any key customer could significantly reduce our revenues

The loss of any of our key customers, sigaificant reduction in sales to any one of therauld significantly reduce our revenues and
adversely affect our business. During fiscal 2@i2,ten largest customers accounted for 43% ofeenues. Some of the markets for our
products are dominated by a small number of patkatistomers. Therefore, our operating resulthétoreseeable future will continue to
depend on our ability to sell to these dominantamers, as well as the ability of these customzeetl products that incorporate our IC
products. In the future, these customers may dewtéo purchase our ICs at all, purchase fewerth@s they did in the past or alter their
purchasing patterns, particularly because:

. We do not have material long-term purchase corgnaith our customers;

. Substantially all of our sales to date have beedenten a purchase order basis, which permits odoress to cancel, change or
delay product purchase commitments with little omotice to us and without penalty;

. Some of our customers may have efforts undetwargtively diversify their vendor base which cotgdiuce purchases of our
ICs; and
. Some of our customers have developed or acquitlpts that compete directly with products thestaruers purchase from

us, which could affect our customers' purchasirgisitens in the future.

While we have been a significant supplielGs used in many of our customers' products,costomers regularly evaluate alternative
sources of supply in order to diversify their su@pbase, which increases their negotiating leveraith us and protects their ability to secure
these components. We believe that any expansioorafustomers' supplier bases could have an adeéess on the prices we are able to
charge and volume of product that we are ableltdacseur customers, which would negatively affear revenues and operating results.

Significant litigation over intellectual property in our industry may cause us to become involved in costly and lengthy litigation which could
seriously harm our business

In recent years, there has been signifilitigation in the United States involving pateatsd other intellectual property rights. From time

to time, we receive letters from various industaytizipants alleging infringement of patents, tnradeks or misappropriation of trade secrets ol
from customers or suppliers requesting indemnificator claims brought against them by third parti€he exploratory nature of these
inquiries has become relatively common in the sermdactor industry. We respond when we deem appatepand as advised by legal counsel
We have been involved in litigation to protect auellectual property rights in the past and magdme involved in such litigation again in the
future. In the future, we may become involved iditidnal litigation to defend allegations of infgament asserted by others, both directly anc
indirectly as a result of certain industry-standadkemnities we may offer to our customers or sigppl Legal proceedings could subject us to
significant liability for damages or invalidate goroprietary rights. Legal proceedings
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initiated by us to protect our intellectual progenights could also result in counterclaims or deusuits against us. Any litigation, regardles
its outcome, would likely be time-consuming andengive to resolve and would divert our manageméntts and attention. Most intellectual
property litigation also could force us to takedfie actions, including:

. Cease selling or manufacturing products thatthisehallenged intellectual property;

. Obtain from the owner of the infringed intelleat property a right to a license to sell or userdlevant technology, which
license may not be available on reasonable terrmes, all;

. Redesign those products that use infringing inteli@l property; or

. Pursue legal remedies with third parties to enfameindemnification rights, which may not adeqlafrotect our interests.
We may be unable to protect our intellectual property, which would negatively affect our ability to compete

Our products rely on our proprietary tedbgg, and we expect that future technological adeammade by us will be critical to sustain
market acceptance of our products. Therefore, weugethat the protection of our intellectual prageights is and will continue to be
important to the success of our business. We melg combination of patent, copyright, trademark giade secret laws and restrictions on
disclosure to protect our intellectual propertyhtiy We also enter into confidentiality or licermggeements with our employees, consultants,
intellectual property providers and business pastrend control access to and distribution of aguinentation and other proprietary
information. Despite these efforts, unauthorizedipa may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain asel aur proprietary technology. Monitoring
unauthorized use of our technology is difficultdame cannot be certain that the steps we have takleprevent unauthorized use of our
technology, particularly in foreign countries whéne laws may not protect our proprietary right$ully as in the United States. We cannot be
certain that patents will be issued as a resutiuofpending applications nor can we be certainahgtissued patents would protect or benefit u
or give us adequate protection from competing petxdlFor example, issued patents may be circumgtentehallenged and declared invalic
unenforceable. We also cannot be certain that ®théirnot develop effective competing technologiestheir own.

Failure to manage our distribution channel relationships could impede our future growth

The future growth of our business will degén large part on our ability to manage our ietahips with current and future distributors
and sales representatives, develop additional etafor the distribution and sale of our producatd enanage these relationships. As we
execute our indirect sales strategy, we must mathagpotential conflicts that may arise with ouredt sales efforts. For example, conflicts
with a distributor may arise when a customer begimshasing directly from us rather than throughdrstributor. The inability to successfully
execute or manage a multi-channel sales stratagg anpede our future growth. In addition, relasbips with our distributors often involve
the use of price protection and inventory retughts. This often requires a significant amountadés management's time and system resourc
to manage properly.

We are subject to increased inventory risks and costs because we build our products based on forecasts provided by customers before
receiving purchase ordersfor the products

In order to ensure availability of our puats for some of our largest customers, we startrthnufacturing of our products in advance of
receiving purchase orders based on forecasts oy these customers. However, these forecaststdepresent binding purchase
commitments and we do not recognize sales for thestucts until they are shipped to the customeraAesult, we incur inventory and
manufacturing costs in advance of anticipated s&8lesause demand for our products
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may not materialize, manufacturing based on fotscashjects us to increased risks of high inventaryying costs, increased obsolescenct
increased operating costs. These inventory riskexacerbated when our customers purchase inglitbetilugh contract manufacturers or hold
component inventory levels greater than their corgion rate because this causes us to have lébgitsigegarding the accumulated levels of
inventory for such customers. A resulting write-offunusable or excess inventories would adversi#ct our operating results.

Our products are complex and may contain errors which could lead to product liability, an increasein our costs and/or a reduction in our
revenues

Our products are complex and may contaiorgr particularly when first introduced or as nevsions are released. Our new products ar
increasingly being designed in more complex praegsghich further increases the risk of errors. Blg primarily on our in-house testing
personnel to design test operations and procediigstect any errors prior to delivery of our protuto our customers. Because our products
are manufactured by third parties, should probleotsir in the operation or performance of our ICs,may experience delays in meeting key
introduction dates or scheduled delivery datesutocastomers. These errors also could cause nsto significant re-engineering costs, divert
the attention of our engineering personnel fromproduct development efforts and cause significastomer relations and business repute
problems. Any defects could require product reptaeet or recall or we could be obligated to acceptipct returns. Any of the foregoing
could impose substantial costs and harm our busines

Product liability claims may be assertethwespect to our products. Our products are tylgisald at prices that are significantly lower
than the cost of the end-products into which theyiacorporated. A defect or failure in our prodaetild cause failure in our customer's end-
product, so we could face claims for damages tteatisproportionately higher than the revenuespanfits we receive from the products
involved. Furthermore, product liability risks grarticularly significant with respect to medicaldasutomotive applications because of the risk
of serious harm to users of these products. Therée no assurance that any insurance we mainthudficiently protect us from any such
claims.

Any acquisitions we make could disrupt our business and harm our financial condition

As part of our growth and product diversition strategy, we continue to evaluate opporiesib acquire other businesses, intellectual
property or technologies that would complementaurent offerings, expand the breadth of our marketenhance our technical capabilities.
The acquisitions that we have made and may mattesifuture entail a number of risks that could mally and adversely affect our business
and operating results, including:

. Problems integrating the acquired operations, telcigies or products with our existing business piratiucts;
. Diversion of management's time and attention framamre business;

. Need for financial resources above our plannedsiment levels;

. Difficulties in retaining business relationshipgtwsuppliers and customers of the acquired company;

. Risks associated with entering markets in whicHar& prior experience;

. Risks associated with the transfer of licendantellectual property;

. Increased operating costs due to acquired oadrhe

. Tax issues associated with acquisitions;
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. Acquisition-related disputes, including disputegiogarn-outs and escrows;
. Potential loss of key employees of the acquiredmanmy; and
. Potential impairment of related goodwill and intdolg assets.

Future acquisitions also could cause usdor debt or contingent liabilities or cause ussiue equity securities that could negatively
impact the ownership percentages of existing sluders.

Our customersrequire our products to undergo a lengthy and expensive qualification process without any assurance of product sales

Prior to purchasing our products, our conrs require that our products undergo an extemgiaéification process, which involves test
of the products in the customer's system as weibasous reliability testing. This qualificatiorrgress may continue for six months or longer.
However, qualification of a product by a customeesinot ensure any sales of the product to thabmes. Even after successful qualification
and sales of a product to a customer, a subsegemsion to the IC or software, changes in the lE&ufacturing process or the selection of a
new supplier by us may require a new qualificapoocess, which may result in delays and in us hgl@ixcess or obsolete inventory. After oul
products are qualified, it can take an additiomahsonths or more before the customer commencaswelproduction of components or
devices that incorporate our products. Despitegthiesertainties, we devote substantial resouroekiding design, engineering, sales,
marketing and management efforts, toward qualifyngproducts with customers in anticipation oesalf we are unsuccessful or delayed in
qualifying any of our products with a customer,tstailure or delay would preclude or delay saleswth product to the customer, which may
impede our growth and cause our business to suffer.

We have substantial international activities, which subjects us to additional businessrisksincluding logistical and financial complexity,
political instability and currency fluctuations

We have established international subs&saand have opened offices in international mart@support our activities in Europe and A
This has included the establishment of a headqeanesingapore for nobkS. operations. The percentage of our revenuéseadisirom outsid
of the United States was 88% during fiscal 2012.1déy not be able to maintain or increase internaticmarket demand for our products. Our
international operations are subject to a numbeisks$, including:

. Complexity and costs of managing internatiorm@rations and related tax obligations, including lreadquarters for non-U.S.
operations in Singapore;

. Protectionist laws and business practices thatrfloal competition in some countries;
. Difficulties related to the protection of our inegtual property rights in some countries;
. Multiple, conflicting and changing tax and othew$aand regulations that may impact both our intéonal and domestic tax a

other liabilities and result in increased comphexihd costs;

. Longer sales cycles;

. Greater difficulty in accounts receivable cotlen and longer collection periods;

. High levels of distributor inventory subjectgdce protection and rights of return to us;

. Political and economic instability;

. Greater difficulty in hiring and retaining quidid technical sales and applications engineersaanainistrative personnel; and
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. The need to have business and operations systemnsaihh meet the needs of our international busimed®perating structure.

To date, all of our sales to internatiotistomers and purchases of components from intemasuppliers have been denominated in
U.S. dollars. As a result, an increase in the vafube U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencasild make our products more expensive foi
international customers to purchase, thus rendenimgproducts less competitive. Similarly, a desecia the value of the U.S. dollar could
reduce our buying power with respect to internaticuppliers.

We rely on third parties to manufacture, assemble and test our products and the failure to successfully manage our relationships with our
manufacturers and subcontractors would negatively impact our ability to sell our products

We do not have our own wafer fab manufactufacilities. Therefore, we rely on third-partgndors to manufacture the ICs we design.
We also currently rely on Asian third-party asseyrsalbcontractors to assemble and package thersiticips provided by the wafers for use in
final products. Additionally, we rely on these dftse subcontractors for a substantial portion eftésting requirements of our products pric
shipping. We expect utilization of third-party sobtractors to continue in the future.

The cyclical nature of the semiconductaluistry drives wide fluctuations in available capaeit third-party vendors. On occasion, we
have been unable to adequately respond to unexpecteases in customer demand due to capacityraants and, therefore, were unable to
benefit from this incremental demand. We may beblent obtain adequate foundry, assembly or tgsiaty from our third-party
subcontractors to meet our customers' deliveryireauents even if we adequately forecast custommiade.

There are significant risks associated wathiing on these third-party foundries and sub@atbrs, including:

. Failure by us, our customers or their end custsno qualify a selected supplier;
. Potential insolvency of the third-party subcawtors;

. Reduced control over delivery schedules andityyal

. Limited warranties on wafers or products supptie us;

. Potential increases in prices or payments irande for capacity;

. Increased need for international-based supplystmgi and financial management;
. Their inability to supply or support new or chargyipackaging technologies; and
. Low test yields.

We typically do not have long-term suppbntracts with our third-party vendors which oblg#te vendor to perform services and suppl
products to us for a specific period, in specifiagtities, and at specific prices. Our third-pdoyndry, assembly and test subcontractors
typically do not guarantee that adequate capadltyow available to us within the time requiredni@et demand for our products. In the event
that these vendors fail to meet our demand for @leatreason, we expect that it would take up tenbBths to transition performance of these
services to new providers. Such a transition may e¢quire qualification of the new providers by oustomers or their end customers.
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Since our inception, most of the silicorfeva for the products that we have shipped wereufaatured either by TSMC or its affiliates.
Our customers typically complete their own quatdifion process. If we fail to properly balance costo demand across the existing
semiconductor fabrication facilities that we utliar are required by our foundry partners to ineeear otherwise change the number of fab
lines that we utilize for our production, we migtdt be able to fulfill demand for our products andy need to divert our engineering resource
away from new product development initiatives tpysart the fab line transition, which would adveysaffect our operating results.

Our products incorporate technology licensed from third parties

We incorporate technology (including softe)dicensed from third parties in our products. ¥deld be subjected to claims of
infringement regardless of our lack of involvemienthe development of the licensed technology. @diih a third-party licensor is typically
obligated to indemnify us if the licensed technglagfringes on another party's intellectual propeithts, such indemnification is typically
limited in amount and may be worthless if the le®nbecomes insolvent. SBanificant litigation over intellectual property iour industry
may cause us to become involved in costly andhgrigigation which could seriously harm our busssd-urthermore, any failure of third-
party technology to perform properly would adveysaffect sales of our products incorporating swthihology.

Our inability to manage growth could materially and adversely affect our business

Our past growth has placed, and any fujuogth of our operations will continue to placesignificant strain on our management
personnel, systems and resources. We anticipatevéhwill need to implement a variety of new andjgaled sales, operational and financial
enterprise-wide systems, information technologyaistructure, procedures and controls, includingrtimrovement of our accounting and other
internal management systems to manage this gravethraintain compliance with regulatory guidelines|uding Sarbanes-Oxley Act
requirements. To the extent our business growsinbeimal management systems and processes willtodenprove to ensure that we remain
in compliance. We also expect that we will needdntinue to expand, train, manage and motivatevaukforce. All of these endeavors will
require substantial management effort, and we ipatie that we will require additional managemenspenel and internal processes to mar
these efforts and to plan for the succession fiore to time of certain persons who have been keyagement and technical personnel. If we
are unable to effectively manage our expandingaloperations, including our international headtprarin Singapore, our business could be
materially and adversely affected.

We are subject to risks relating to product concentration

We derive a substantial portion of our reves from a limited number of products, and we ekffeese products to continue to account fo
a large percentage of our revenues in the near t@omtinued market acceptance of these produdiseisfore, critical to our future success. In
addition, substantially all of our products that a&ve sold include technology related to one orenofrour issued U.S. patents. If these patent
are found to be invalid or unenforceable, our catitgrs could introduce competitive products thatildoreduce both the volume and price per
unit of our products. Our business, operating testihancial condition and cash flows could therefbe adversely affected by:

. A decline in demand for any of our more sigrafit products;

. Failure of our products to achieve continuedkatacceptance;

. Competitive products;

. New technological standards or changes to existiagdards that we are unable to address with aagupts;
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. A failure to release new products or enhanced @rssdf our existing products on a timely basis; and
. The failure of our new products to achieve markeegatance.

We are subject to credit risksrelated to our accounts receivable

We do not generally obtain letters of ctediother security for payment from customerstritiators or contract manufacturers.
Accordingly, we are not protected against accotgtsivable default or bankruptcy by these entiflé® current economic situation could
increase the likelihood of such defaults and bapicias. Our ten largest customers or distributepsesent a substantial majority of our
accounts receivable. If any such customer or Bistor, or a material portion of our smaller custosrma distributors, were to become insolvent
or otherwise not satisfy their obligations to ug, eould be materially harmed.

We depend on our key personnel to manage our business effectively in a rapidly changing market, and if we are unable to retain our current
personnel and hire additional personnel, our ability to develop and successfully market our products could be harmed

We believe our future success will depanthige part upon our ability to attract and retaighhly skilled managerial, engineering, sales
and marketing personnel. We believe that our fusuieezess will be dependent on retaining the sesxateur key personnel, developing their
successors and certain internal processes to reduceliance on specific individuals, and on pripeanaging the transition of key roles
when they occur. There is currently a shortageualified personnel with significant experiencelie design, development, manufacturing,
marketing and sales of analog and mixed-signal lfCparticular, there is a shortage of engineers afe familiar with the intricacies of the
design and manufacturability of analog elementd,@mpetition for such personnel is intense. Oyrtkehnical personnel represent a
significant asset and serve as the primary sowrceur technological and product innovations. We mat be successful in attracting and
retaining sufficient numbers of technical persortoedupport our anticipated growth. The loss of ahgur key employees or the inability to
attract or retain qualified personnel both in th@teld States and internationally, including engigesales, applications and marketing
personnel, could delay the development and intridlnof, and negatively impact our ability to selyr products.

Any dispositions could harm our financial condition

Any disposition of a product line would aihta number of risks that could materially andedely affect our business and operating
results, including:

. Diversion of management's time and attentiomfour core business;

. Difficulties separating the divested business;

. Risks to relations with customers who previoyslychased products from our disposed product line;

. Reduced leverage with suppliers due to reduceceggtg volume;

. Risks related to employee relations;

. Risks associated with the transfer and licensinigteflectual property;

. Security risks and other liabilities related to trensition services provided in connection with thisposition;
. Tax issues associated with dispositions; and

. Disposition-related disputes, including disputesragarn-outs and escrows.
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Our stock price may be volatile

The market price of our common stock haanblatile in the past and may be volatile infitere. The market price of our common
stock may be significantly affected by the follogifactors:

. Actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatmegults;

. Changes in financial estimates by securities atatysour failure to perform in line with such esttes;

. Changes in market valuations of other technologgmanies, particularly semiconductor companies;

. Announcements by us or our competitors of signifidachnical innovations, acquisitions, strategictperships, joint ventures

or capital commitments;

. Introduction of technologies or product enhanests that reduce the need for our products;
. The loss of, or decrease in sales to, one oerkey customers;

. A large sale of stock by a significant sharekold

. Dilution from the issuance of our stock in connectvith acquisitions;

. The addition or removal of our stock to or fromtac& index fund;

. Departures of key personnel; and

. The required expensing of stock awards.

The stock market has experienced extrerfagilty that often has been unrelated to the penimnce of particular companies. These mz
fluctuations may cause our stock price to fall rdtgss of our performance.

Most of our current manufacturers, assemblers, test service providers, distributors and customers are concentrated in the same geographic
region, which increasestherisk that a natural disaster, epidemic, labor strike, war or political unrest could disrupt our operations or sales

Most of TSMC's foundries and several of assembly and test subcontractors' sites are thaafBaiwan and most of our other foundry,
assembly and test subcontractors are located iRahiic Rim region. In addition, many of our custrs are located in the Pacific Rim region.
The risk of earthquakes in Taiwan and the Pacifin Region is significant due to the proximity of jpaearthquake fault lines in the area.
Earthquakes, tsunamis, fire, flooding, lack of wateother natural disasters, an epidemic, politicaiest, war, labor strikes or work stoppages
in countries where our semiconductor manufactuessemblers and test subcontractors are locatet); Wwould result in the disruption of our
foundry, assembly or test capacity. There can bassarance that alternate capacity could be olst@indavorable terms, if at all.

A natural disaster, epidemic, labor strikar or political unrest where our customers' fiest are located would likely reduce our sales tc
such customers. North Korea's geopolitical mandngsrhave created unrest. Such unrest could ceeat@omic uncertainty or instability,
could escalate to war or otherwise adversely affecith Korea and our South Korean customers andteeour sales to such customers, whick
would materially and adversely affect our operatiesults. In addition, a significant portion of thesembly and testing of our products occurs
in South Korea. Any disruption resulting from thesents could also cause significant delays inrsbits of our products until we are able to
shift our manufacturing, assembling or testing frtven affected subcontractor to another third-peetydor.
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The semiconductor manufacturing process is highly complex and, from time to time, manufacturing yields may fall below our expectations,
which could result in our inability to satisfy demand for our productsin a timely manner and may decrease our gross margins due to higher
unit costs

The manufacturing of our products is a higtomplex and technologically demanding procesthdugh we work closely with our
foundries and assemblers to minimize the likelihobceduced manufacturing yields, we have from ttméme experienced lower than
anticipated manufacturing yields. Changes in martufang processes or the inadvertent use of defecti contaminated materials could result
in lower than anticipated manufacturing yields nacceptable performance deficiencies, which camleet our gross margins. If our foundries
fail to deliver fabricated silicon wafers of satisfory quality in a timely manner, we will be unalbd meet our customers' demand for our
products in a timely manner, which would adversdfgct our operating results and damage our custoshetionships.

We depend on our customers to support our products, and some of our customers offer competing products

We rely on our customers to provide haréwaoftware, intellectual property indemnificat@amd other technical support for the products
supplied by our customers. If our customers dgonavide the required functionality or if our custers do not provide satisfactory support for
their products, the demand for these devices titatrporate our products may diminish or we may tise be materially adversely affected.
Any reduction in the demand for these devices waiddificantly reduce our revenues.

In certain products, some of our custonoffier their own competitive products. These custcamaay find it advantageous to support thei
own offerings in the marketplace in lieu of promgtiour products.

Our debt could adversely affect our operations and financial condition

We believe we have the ability to service debt under our credit facilities, but our alilib make the required payments thereunder \
due depends upon our future performance, whichbeibubject to general economic conditions, ingustcles and other factors affecting our
operations, including risk factors described urtter Item 1A, many of which are beyond our cont@lr credit facilities also contain
covenants, including financial covenants. If wedaoteany of the covenants under our credit facdliied do not obtain appropriate waivers,
then, subject to any applicable cure periods, oistanding indebtedness thereunder could be dddimmediately due and payable.

We could seek to raise additional debt or equity capital in the future, but additional capital may not be available on terms acceptable to us, or
at all

We believe that our existing cash, cashvedgnts, investments and credit under our crexditities will be sufficient to meet our working
capital needs, capital expenditures, investmentireaients and commitments for at least the nexh@8ths. However, our ability to borrow
further under the credit facilities is dependendrupur ability to satisfy various conditions, cogets and representations. It is possible that wi
may need to raise additional funds to finance ativiéies or to facilitate acquisitions of otherdinesses, products, intellectual property or
technologies. We believe we could raise these fuhdseded, by selling equity or debt securit@shte public or to selected investors. In
addition, even though we may not need additionadi$, we may still elect to sell additional equitydebt securities or obtain credit facilities
for other reasons. However, we may not be abldtaio additional funds on favorable terms, or htlhlve decide to raise additional funds by
issuing equity or convertible debt securities, dlagership percentages of existing shareholdersdvoglreduced.
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We are a relatively small company with limited resources compared to some of our current and potential competitors and we may not be able
to compete effectively and increase market share

Some of our current and potential compediteave longer operating histories, significantlgajer resources and name recognition and a
larger base of customers than we have. As a rékafte competitors may have greater credibilithwiir existing and potential customers.
They also may be able to adopt more aggressivangnolicies and devote greater resources to theldpment, promotion and sale of their
products than we can to ours. In addition, somauofcurrent and potential competitors have alressdgiblished supplier or joint development
relationships with the decision makers at our aurog potential customers. These competitors magtibe to leverage their existing
relationships to discourage their customers fromelpasing products from us or persuade them tocemar products with their products. Our
competitors may also offer bundled solutions offgra more complete product despite the technicatsma advantages of our products. Th
competitors may elect not to support our produdigiwvcould complicate our sales efforts. Theseathdr competitive pressures may prevent
us from competing successfully against currenuture competitors, and may materially harm our tess. Competition could decrease our
prices, reduce our sales, lower our gross margidéoadecrease our market share.

Provisionsin our charter documents and Delaware law could prevent, delay or impede a changein control of us and may reduce the market
price of our common stock

Provisions of our certificate of incorpaoat and bylaws could have the effect of discourggdelaying or preventing a merger or
acquisition that a stockholder may consider favierabor example, our certificate of incorporatiarddylaws provide for:

. The division of our Board of Directors into threlasses to be elected on a staggered basislamsecach year;

. The ability of our Board of Directors to issuwages of our preferred stock in one or more sevidwut further authorization of
our stockholders;

. A prohibition on stockholder action by written cens;
. Elimination of the right of stockholders to calfpecial meeting of stockholders;
. A requirement that stockholders provide advanceeatf any stockholder nominations of directorany proposal of new

business to be considered at any meeting of stda&tsy and

. A requirement that a supermajority vote be ofetdito amend or repeal certain provisions of ottifizate of incorporation.

We also are subject to the aatieover laws of Delaware which may discouragegydel prevent someone from acquiring or mergindp
us, which may adversely affect the market pricewafcommon stock.

Risks related to our industry
We are subject to the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry, which has been subject to significant fluctuations

The semiconductor industry is highly cyaliand is characterized by constant and rapid t@olgical change, rapid product obsolescence
and price erosion, evolving standards, short prblifieccycles and wide fluctuations in product slyppnd demand. The industry has
experienced significant fluctuations, often conedawith, or in anticipation of, maturing productiss and new product introductions of both
semiconductor companies' and their customers' gtedund fluctuations in general economic conditi@eseriorating general worldwide
economic conditions, including
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reduced economic activity, concerns about creditiafiation, increased energy costs, decreaseducoaisconfidence, reduced corporate
profits, decreased spending and similar adversimbss conditions, would make it very difficult four customers, our vendors, and us to
accurately forecast and plan future business #iefivand could cause U.S. and foreign businessaewospending on our products. We cannot
predict the timing, strength, or duration of anpma@mic slowdown or economic recovery. If the ecop@anmarkets in which we operate
deteriorate, our business, financial condition, eegililts of operations would likely be materialhdaadversely affected.

Downturns have been characterized by dshid product demand, production overcapacity, imgbntory levels and accelerated erosion
of average selling prices. In the recent past, @lebe the semiconductor industry suffered a downtlue in large part to adverse conditions ir
the global credit and financial markets, includ@iinished liquidity and credit availability, desés in consumer confidence, declines in
economic growth, increased unemployment rates andrgl uncertainty regarding the economy. Such tiaws may have a material adverse
effect on our business and operating results.

Upturns have been characterized by inctepeeduct demand and production capacity consta&irgated by increased competition for
access to third-party foundry, assembly and tgsacity. We are dependent on the availability othscapacity to manufacture, assemble and
test our ICs. None of our third-party foundry, asbéy or test subcontractors have provided assusathet adequate capacity will be available
to us.

The average selling prices of our products could decrease rapidly which may negatively impact our revenues and gross margins

We may experience substantial period-téepeftuctuations in future operating results dué¢hte erosion of our average selling prices. We
have reduced the average unit price of our prodoasticipation of or in response to competitiveeing pressures, new product introductions
by us or our competitors and other factors. If weeumable to offset any such reductions in ourayeselling prices by increasing our sales
volumes, increasing our sales content per apptioait reducing production costs, our gross margittsrevenues will suffer. To maintain our
gross margin percentage, we will need to develabirstnoduce new products and product enhancemeanastinely basis and continually
reduce our costs. Our failure to do so could causeevenues and gross margin percentage to decline

Competition within the numerous markets we target may reduce sales of our products and reduce our market share

The markets for semiconductors in genarad, for mixed-signal ICs in particular, are intdps®mmpetitive. We expect that the market for
our products will continually evolve and will belgect to rapid technological change. In additianwee target and supply products to nume
markets and applications, we face competition feoralatively large number of competitors. We corapeith Analog Devices, Atmel,
Conexant, Cypress, Epson, Freescale, IDT, Lantaxii Integrated Products, MaxLinear, Microchip, kdigemi, NXP Semiconductors,
Renesas, Sony Semiconductor, STMicroelectronicgad nstruments, Vectron International and othéfs.expect to face competition in the
future from our current competitors, other manufests and designers of semiconductors, and stasenyconductor design companies. As th
markets for communications products grow, we alsg face competition from traditional communicatialevice companies. These compa
may enter the mixedignal semiconductor market by introducing theind@s or by entering into strategic relationshipthwer acquiring othe
existing providers of semiconductor products. Ididn, large companies may restructure their ojj@na to create separate companies or ma
acquire new businesses that are focused on prgyvibiatypes of products we produce or acquire astotners.
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Our products must conform to industry standards and technology in order to be accepted by end usersin our markets

Generally, our products comprise only & péa device. All components of such devices nungtormly comply with industry standards
order to operate efficiently together. We depend@ampanies that provide other components of thé&cdswto support prevailing industry
standards. Many of these companies are significéantyer and more influential in affecting indusstandards than we are. Some industry
standards may not be widely adopted or implememtéfdrmly, and competing standards may emergerttaat be preferred by our customers
or end users. If larger companies do not supperséme industry standards that we do, or if comgetiandards emerge, market acceptance
our products could be adversely affected which wdarm our business.

Products for certain applications are basethdustry standards that are continually evgyvi@ur ability to compete in the future will
depend on our ability to identify and ensure coapte with these evolving industry standards. Thergence of new industry standards could
render our products incompatible with products ttgwved by other suppliers. As a result, we coulddagiired to invest significant time and
effort and to incur significant expense to redesignproducts to ensure compliance with relevaamdsrds. If our products are not in
compliance with prevailing industry standards faignificant period of time, we could miss oppoiti@s to achieve crucial design wins.

Our pursuit of necessary technological adea may require substantial time and expense. #enot be successful in developing or
using new technologies or in developing new prasloctproduct enhancements that achieve market owap If our ICs fail to achieve mar
acceptance, our growth prospects, operating reanttcompetitive position could be adversely aéfdct

We may be subject to information technology failuresthat could damage our reputation, business operations and financial condition

We rely on information technology for tHiéeetive operation of our business. Our systemssalgect to damage or interruption from a
number of potential sources, including natural stises, accidents, power disruptions, telecommubicsffailures, acts of terrorism or war,
computer viruses, physical or electronic break-yber attacks, sabotage, vandalism, or similan&sver disruptions. Our security measures
may not detect or prevent such security breacheg.sfich compromise of our information security dowsult in the unauthorized publication
of our confidential business or proprietary infotioa, result in the unauthorized release of custosugpplier or employee data, result in a
violation of privacy or other laws, expose us tis& of litigation or damage our reputation. In dibh, our inability to use or access these
information systems at critical points in time abuhfavorably impact the timely and efficient ogema of our business, which could negati\
affect our business and operating results.

Third parties with which we conduct busmesuch as foundries, assembly and test contraetodsdistributors, have access to certain
portions of our sensitive data. In the event thase third parties do not properly safeguard ota tet they hold, security breaches could r
and negatively impact our business, operationdfiaadcial results.

Customer demands and new regulations related to conflict-free minerals may adversely affect us

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and ComsuProtection Act imposes new disclosure requirgmeegarding the use of "conflict"
minerals mined from the Democratic Republic of Gmagd adjoining countries in products, whetherairthese products are manufactured by
third parties. When these new requirements areémehted, they could affect the pricing, sourcing awmailability of minerals used in the
manufacture of semiconductor devices (includingmroducts). There will be additional costs asseciatith complying with the disclosure
requirements, such as costs related to determthagource of any conflict minerals used in oudpiats. Our supply chain is complex and we
may be unable to verify the origins for all metad®d in our products. We may also encounter clgglewith our customers and stockholde
we are unable to certify that our products are laxirffee.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters, housing engitggesales and marketing, administration anddpstations, is located in Austin, Texas. Our
headquarters facilities consist of two building$jein we purchased in 2012, that are located on\aridh we have leased through 2099. The
buildings contain approximately 441,000 square ¢édtoor space, of which approximately 139,000 agufeet were leased to other tenants. Ir
addition to these properties, we lease smallelitfasiin various locations in the United Statehjr@, France, Germany, Hungary, India,
Ireland, ltaly, Japan, South Korea, Singapore, @aiand the United Kingdom for engineering, salesraarketing, administrative and
manufacturing support activities. We believe thatse facilities are suitable and adequate to meeatwosrent operating needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Patent Litigation

On May 13, 2012, MaxLinear, Inc., a Delagvaorporation, filed a lawsuit against us in thetebh States District Court in the Southern
District of California, San Diego Division, seekiagleclaratory judgment that MaxLinear productsidbinfringe 19 Silicon Laboratories'
patents and that such patents are invalid. We refggband filed claims accusing MaxLinear of infiimg6 Silicon Laboratories' patents,
including 5 of our named 19 patents and an additipatent. On December 12, 2012, the Court graatedjuest by us to add additional
allegations of patent infringement to the casehghat we are presently accusing MaxLinear of imgfing 9 patents in this litigation. We have
asked the Court for a permanent injunction stopftiegsale of all allegedly infringing MaxLinear pitects.

On July 30, 2012, we further filed a conpiidor declaratory judgment against MaxLinear initdd States District Court for the Western
District of Texas, Austin Division. We are seekig order that MaxLinear's United States Patent K8%2,178, 7,778,613 and 8,198,940 are
invalid, and that our products do not infringe spelents.

On July 17, 2012, we additionally filedaavksuit against MaxLinear in the United States istCourt in the Southern District of
California, San Diego Division, alleging infringenteof an additional Silicon Laboratories' pateniSUPatent 7,035,607 related to RF design.
On August 6, 2012, MaxLinear counterclaimed allgginfringement of the three patents in the Textigdiion by a variety of our RF and
mixed signal products.

At this time, we cannot predict the outcamh¢hese matters or the resulting financial impaats, if any.
Other

We are involved in various other legal medings that have arisen in the normal course sifibas. While the ultimate results of these
matters cannot be predicted with certainty, we akenxpect them to have a material adverse effecuorconsolidated financial statements.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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Part Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities
Market Information and Holders

Our registration statement (Registration B&894853) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amengdating to our initial public offerin
of our common stock became effective on March 2802 Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ NeticMarket (NASDAQ) under
the symbol "SLAB". The table below shows the higl éow per-share sales prices of our common stockhe periods indicated, as reported
by NASDAQ. As of January 22, 2013, there were 1ditiérs of record of our common stock.

High Low

Fiscal Year 201.

First Quartel $ 50.27 $ 41.4¢

Second Quarte 46.2¢ 37.5¢

Third Quartel 42.8¢ 30.3¢

Fourth Quarte 45.1C 31.92
Fiscal Year 201.

First Quartel $ 48.5( $ 41.0%

Second Quarte 43.4z2 32.0C

Third Quartel 40.3¢ 34.5¢

Fourth Quarte 42.9¢ 35.0(

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any caddetids on our common stock and we do not interghyocash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We currently expect to retain any futuren@&s to fund the operation and expansion of agiress.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below shows a compan$a@umulative total stockholder returns for anéstment in Silicon Laboratories Inc.
common stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index, the NASDBlectronic Components Index and the PHLX Semioetat Index.

150

4] T + T v v
12020007 01/03/09 010210 010111 123111 1252012
~@— Silicon Laboratories Inc —d-- NASDAQ Compasiie
--8-- NASDAD Elaciranic Companants == PHLX Semiconducior Indax
Company / Index 12/29/07 01/03/09 01/02/10 01/01/11 12/31/11 12/29/12
Silicon Laboratories Inc $ 100.0C $ 67.858 $ 128.4: $ 122.1° $ 115.2¢ $ 110.1¢
NASDAQ Composite $ 100.0C $ 59.1C $ 85.37 $ 100.3¢ $ 99.2C $ 111.4:
NASDAQ Electronic
Component: $ 100.0C $ 51.0¢ $ 832z $ 947t $ 852¢ $ 84.1¢

PHLX Semiconductor Inde $ 100.0C $ 5567 $ 90.11 $ 101.1¢ $ 99.7¢ $ 118.7(

(1)  The graph assumes that $100 was invested in oumoonstock and in each index at the market closBezember 29,
2007, and that all dividends were reinvested. Nshalvidends have been declared on our common.stock

(2) Stockholder returns over the indicated pesbduld not be considered indicative of future shmi#ter returns.

3) With respect to the industry index, we havarded from the NASDAQ Electronics Components Iniethe PHLX
Semiconductor Index because we believe it is mgpeasentative of our industi
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes repurchadesur common stock during the three months endeckber 29, 2012 (in thousands, excef
per share amounts):

Total Number of Approximate
Shares Purchased Dollar Value of
as Part of Shares that May
Average Price Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of Paid per Announced Plans Under the Plans
Period Shares Purchase( Share or Programs or Programs
September 30, 2012 -
October 27, 201 24t $ 36.1¢ 245§ 38,01¢
October 28, 2012 -
November 24, 201 — 3 — — 3 38,01¢
November 25, 201-
December 29, 201 — % — — 3 38,01¢
Total 24t % 36.1¢ 24E

In April 2012, our Board of Directors autlred a program to repurchase up to $100 millionwfcommon stock through January 2013.
The program allows for repurchases to be madecimpen market or in private transactions, includitrgctured or accelerated transactions,
subject to applicable legal requirements and maredtitions.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Please read this selected consolidateddinbhdata in conjunction with "Management's Distos and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations," our Consolidated FirsuStatements and the notes to those statemasitsled in this Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands, except per share datz

Consolidated Statements of Income C

Revenue! $563,29¢ $491,62! $493,34. $441,02( $415,63(
Operating incom: $ 85,67¢ $ 50,07« $ 86,67: $ 66,51: $ 43,65(3)
Net income $ 6354¢($ 3547.$ 73,24: $ 73,09:(2)$ 32,93:(3)

Earnings per shar

Basic $ 151% 08:% 16t$% 16z $ 0.6¢
Diluted $ 147$ 07¢$ 157% 157 $ 0.67

Consolidated Balance Sheet Di

Cash, cash equivalents and investmeni $293,36( $324,96° $383,36: $434,89¢ $ 325,36(

Working capital 361,30 370,21: 414,07 435,35 289,71t
Total asset 871,96t 705,99: 727,65¢ 742,83t 624,24!
Long-term obligations 115,61! 24,21 22,37 24,40: 48,78¢
Total stockholders' equit 649,97. 598,93¢ 625,43( 629,79¢ 502,46(

Q) Reflects repurchases of $62 million, $110 millia40 million, $20 million and $280 million of ouommon stock in
fiscal 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respegtivel

(2 Includes a benefit related to the resolutibproor year uncertain tax benefits.

(©)) Includes a charge for in-process researctdandlopment costs in connection with our acquisitibIntegration
Associates
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis official condition and results of operations shaldead in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes theretaded elsewhere in this report. This discussionainatforward-looking statements. Please se
the "Cautionary Statement" and "Risk Factors" alfoveliscussions of the uncertainties, risks arsliagptions associated with these
statements. Our fiscal year-end financial reporfirgods are a 52- or 53-week year ending on thar&ay closest to December 31st. Fiscal
2012, 2011 and 2010 were 52-week years and endBe&cember 29, 2012, December 31, 2011 and Jany2B11, respectively.

Overview

We design and develop proprietary, anahdgrisive, mixed-signal integrated circuits (ICs)ddroad range of applications. Mixed-signal
ICs are electronic components that convert realdhvamalog signals, such as sound and radio wamesdigital signals that electronic products
can process. Therefore, mixed-signal ICs are afitomponents in products addressing a varietyarkats, including communications,
consumer, industrial and automotive. Our majorawstrs include Cisco, Huawei, LG Electronics, P&amasonic, Sagem, Samsung,
Technicolor, Varian Medical Systems and ZTE.

As a fabless semiconductor company, weaelthird-party semiconductor fabricators in Asiad to a lesser extent the United States an
Europe, to manufacture the silicon wafers thaemfour IC designs. Each wafer contains numeragisadiich are cut from the wafer to crea
chip for an IC. We rely on third parties in Asiagssemble, package, and, in most cases, testdbemes and ship these units to our customer
Testing performed by such third parties facilitefester delivery of products to our customers {palarly those located in Asia), shorter
production cycle times, lower inventory requirensehdwer costs and increased flexibility of tegpaeity.

Our expertise in analog-intensive, highfgenance, mixed-signal ICs enables us to develghlidifferentiated solutions that address
multiple markets. We group our products into thieofeing categories:

. Broad-based products, which include our microdiers, timing products (clocks and oscillatoyswer and isolation devices,
and touch controllers;

. Broadcast products, which include our broadcasivaaidd video products;

. Access products, which include our Voice over IBIR) products, embedded modems and our Power dkierriet (POE)
devices; and

. Mature products, which include certain devices #ratat the end of their respective life cycles thrdefore receive minimal or

no continued research and development investment.

Through acquisitions and internal develophegforts, we have continued to diversify our prodportfolio and introduce next generation
ICs with added functionality and further integrati@n July 3, 2012, we acquired Ember Corporatioprivately held company. Ember's
products integrate high-performance, low-power@HEr wireless ICs with reliable and scalable softwiato a flexible and robust networking
platform. We believe that this strategic acquisitimovides us with the technology and software diggerequired to enable the low-power
mesh sensor networks being deployed today in a kaidge of residential, commercial and industriglieations. See Note #cquisitions, for
additional information.

In fiscal 2012, we introduced the Preci8®m 32-bit mixed-signal microcontroller family, keson a patented architecture that provides
customers with flexibility, performance and low pawWe also introduced a digital relative humidi®H) and temperature "sensor-on-a-chip"
solution, low-jitter clock buffers with high integtion of clock tree functions, a crystal-less UBB-£ S audio bridge
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designed to support a wide range of codecs anthtiigranalog converters (DACs), a family of digiolators that are drop-in replacements
for optocouplers, high-performance 8-bit microcoliérs featuring an integrated temperature sengbrhvest-in-class accuracy, two next-
generation EZRadio wireless ICs designed to simgtié addition of high-performance wireless conivégtto cost-sensitive embedded
applications, advanced AM/FM receivers tuned fertigh-end consumer and professional audio equipmarket, a family of TV tuners
offering both best-in-class RF performance and sttdpr all worldwide TV standards, a multimedienuiedulator that merges all digital video
broadcast (DVB) standards into a single-chip soiytisolated analog-to-digital (ADC) convertersigasd specifically for the demands of
mains line monitoring, a single-port PoE controtleat brings "plug-and-play" simplicity to embeddsaver sourcing equipment (PSE)
designs, high performance, low power sub-GHz trainsts designed to maximize range and batterydifevireless systems, ultra-small and
low power customizable clock generators ideal fixce-limited, cost-sensitive embedded and conseteetronics and the expansion of our
clocking solutions to address the stringent spestifons of the PCI Express (PCle) Generation 19&d8dards. We plan to continue to introduc
products that increase the content we provideXstiag applications, thereby enabling us to semagkets we do not currently address and
expanding our total available market opportunity.

During fiscal 2012 and 2011, we had ondarasr, Samsung, whose purchases across a variptpdiict areas represented 19% and 139
of our revenues, respectively. We had no custothatsaccounted for more than 10% of our revenuesgldiscal 2010. In addition to direct
sales to customers, some of our end customers gaegiroducts indirectly from us through distribatand contract manufacturers. An end
customer purchasing through a contract manufactypécally instructs such contract manufactureoldain our products and incorporate such
products with other components for sale by sucliraohmanufacturer to the end customer. Althougtaueteally sell the products to, and are
paid by, the distributors and contract manufacsjree refer to such end customer as our custormeay.of our distributors, Edom Technology
and Avnet, represented 22% and 11% of our reveduidisg fiscal 2012, respectively. Edom, Avnet andd¥iica, represented 24%, 12% and
10% of our revenues during fiscal 2011, respectiietiom and Avnet represented 28% and 14% of anamnges during fiscal 2010,
respectively. There were no other distributorsamtract manufacturers that accounted for more 84 of our revenues in fiscal 2012, 2011
or 2010.

The percentage of our revenues derived fsateide of the United States was 88% in fiscalZ2®b6% in fiscal 2011 and 86% in fiscal
2010. All of our revenues to date have been denat®ihin U.S. dollars. We believe that a majoritypof revenues will continue to be derived
from customers outside of the United States.

The sales cycle for our ICs can be as bs@2 months or more. An additional three to sixitihe or more are usually required before a
customer ships a significant volume of devices ihabrporate our ICs. Due to this lengthy saledeywe typically experience a significant
delay between incurring research and developmenhsalting, general and administrative expensestldorresponding sales. Consequently
if sales in any quarter do not occur when expeaggenses and inventory levels could be disprapuately high, and our operating results for
that quarter and, potentially, future quarters widag adversely affected. Moreover, the amountnoé tbetween initial research and
development and commercialization of a productyér, can be substantially longer than the salele dgr the product. Accordingly, if we
incur substantial research and development cosituti developing a commercially successful prodogt,operating results, as well as our
growth prospects, could be adversely affected.

Because many of our ICs are designed feiiusonsumer products such as televisions, seta@ps, radios and mobile handsets, we
expect that the demand for our products will bedgily subject to some degree of seasonal demaodeker, rapid changes in our markets
across our product areas make it difficult foraistcurately estimate the impact of seasonal facorour business.
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Results of Operations
The following describes the line itemsfeeth in our Consolidated Statements of Income:

Revenues. Revenues are generated almost exclusivelylbg sfour ICs. We recognize revenue on sales aliaf the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehatan arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsokasrred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonakdguared. Generally, we recognize revenue from pitoghles to direct customers and contract
manufacturers upon shipment. Certain of our sakesmade to distributors under agreements allowartain rights of return and price
protection on products unsold by distributors. Adigly, we defer the revenue and cost of reverusuzh sales until the distributors sell the
product to the end customer. Our products typiczdlyry a one-year replacement warranty. Replacesene been insignificant to date. Our
revenues are subject to variation from period t@opledue to the volume of shipments made withiredqal, the mix of products we sell and the
prices we charge for our products. The vast mgjofibur revenues were negotiated at prices tHltatea discount from the list prices for our
products. These discounts are made for a varietgasfons, including: 1) to establish a relationstith a new customer, 2) as an incentive for
customers to purchase products in larger volumets, @rovide profit margin to our distributors whesell our products or 4) in response to
competition. In addition, as a product maturesgwgect that the average selling price for such gebdill decline due to the greater
availability of competing products. Our ability ittcrease revenues in the future is dependent oaased demand for our established product:
and our ability to ship larger volumes of thosedurets in response to such demand, as well as dity &b develop or acquire new products
and subsequently achieve customer acceptance ¢f mgmeduced products.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues includes the cost of purclyafsnished silicon wafers processed by indepenémnidries; costs
associated with assembly, test and shipping oftiposducts; costs of personnel and equipment agsdoivith manufacturing support, logist
and quality assurance; costs of software royaltiteer intellectual property license costs andaieracquired intangible assets; and an alloc
portion of our occupancy costs.

Research and Development. Research and development expense consistsryimiapersonnel-related expenses, including stbake:
compensation, as well as new product masks, exteonaulting and services costs, equipment tookagipment depreciation, amortization of
intangible assets, and an allocated portion ofo@aupancy costs. Research and development actiiititude the design of new products,
refinement of existing products and design of testhodologies to ensure compliance with requiretifigations.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenseists primarily of personnel-related expenses,
including stock-based compensation, as well adlacated portion of our occupancy costs, sales ci@sions to independent sales
representatives, applications engineering suppoofessional fees, legal fees and promotional aadketing expenses.

Interest Income. Interest income reflects interest earned oncash, cash equivalents and investment balances.
Interest Expense. Interest expense consists of interest on oot stnd long-term obligations, including our Crdélitcilities.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income (expense), net consists primafiffipreign currency remeasurement adjustments #sae
other non-operating income and expenses.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provision for income taxes includes both domestd foreign income taxes at the applicable siafu
rates adjusted for non-deductible expenses, raseat development tax credits and other permaritfatehces.
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The following table sets forth our Consatiell Statements of Income data as a percentageaiues for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year
2012 2011 2010

Revenue! 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of revenue 40.C 39.2 34.c
Gross margir 60.C 60.7 65.7
Operating expense

Research and developme 24.F 27.7 25.1

Selling, general and administrati 20.c 22.¢ 23.C
Operating expenst 44.¢ 50.5 48.1
Operating incom 15.2 10.2 17.€
Other income (expense

Interest incomt 0.2 0.3 0.4

Interest expens (0.2 0.C 0.C

Other income (expense), r 0.1 0.1 0.3
Income before income tax 15.c 10.€ 17.7
Provision for income taxe 4.C 34 2.€
Net income 11.2% 7.2% 14.&%

Comparison of Fiscal 2012 to Fiscal 2011
Revenues
Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change Change
Revenue! $ 563.2 $ 491¢ $ 71.7 14.€%

The growth in revenues in fiscal 2012 was drimarily to market share gains and the addibioproduct revenues from the acquisition of
Ember in July 2012. Unit volumes of our productsr@gased compared to fiscal 2011 by 18.0%. Averatli@g prices decreased compared to
the same period by 3.0%. The average selling patesir products may fluctuate significantly frorarfpd to period. In general, as our prod
become more mature, we expect to experience des@aaverage selling prices. We anticipate thedyxannounced, higher priced, next
generation products and product derivatives witetf some of these decreases.

Gross Margin

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change Change
Gross margit $ 338.C $ 298.« $ 39. 13.9%
Percent of revenu 60.(% 60.7%

The increase in the dollar amount of graasgin in fiscal 2012 was primarily due to our i&sed sales, offset in part by an increase in
acquisition-related charges. The decrease in gnaggin as a percent of revenue was primarily dughtmges in product mix.
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We may experience declines in the averaliemg prices of certain of our products. This ¢esadownward pressure on gross margin as a
percentage of revenues and may be offset to temewke are able to: 1) introduce higher margin pesducts and gain market share with our
ICs; 2) achieve lower production costs from ourevauppliers and third-party assembly and testenibactors; 3) achieve lower production
costs per unit as a result of improved yields thrmut the manufacturing process; or 4) reduce fiocgisosts.

Research and Development

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change Change
Research and developme $ 138.C $ 136.C $ 2.C 1.5%
Percent of revenu 24.5% 27.1%

The increase in research and developmergrese in fiscal 2012 was principally due to anease of $2.8 million for personnel-related
expenses, including personnel costs associatedthathcquisition of Ember. The decrease in reseandidevelopment expense as a percent (
revenues in fiscal 2012 is due to our increasedme®s. We expect that research and developmentgxpéll increase modestly in absolute
dollars in the first quarter of 2013.

Recent development projects include aaigtH and temperature "sensor-on-a-chip" solutimn;jitter clock buffers with high
integration of clock tree functions, a crystal-let8B-to-12 S audio bridge designed to support a wide rangeadécs and DACs, a family of
digital isolators that are drop-in replacementsdipitocouplers, high-performance 8-bit microconeIfeaturing an integrated temperature
sensor with best-in-class accuracy, two next-geiser&ZRadio wireless ICs designed to simplify dudslition of high-performance wireless
connectivity to cost-sensitive embedded applicati@uvanced AM/FM receivers tuned for the high-emxsumer and professional audio
equipment market, a family of TV tuners offeringlbbest-in-class RF performance and support favatldwide TV standards, a multimedia
demodulator that merges all DVB standards intanglsichip solution, isolated ADC converters des@yapecifically for the demands of mains
line monitoring, a single-port PoE controller thaings "plug-and-play” simplicity to embedded PSisidns, the Precision32 32-bit mixed-
signal microcontroller family, high performancewi@ower sub-GHz transceivers designed to maxindrge and battery life for wireless
systems, ultra-small and low power customizablelclpenerators ideal for space-limited, cost-seresgimbedded and consumer electronics,
and the expansion of our clocking solutions to adslithe stringent specifications of the PCle Geioerd/2/3 standards.

Selling, General and Administrative

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change Change
Selling, general and administrati $ 1144 $ 1122 $ 2.C 1.8%
Percent of revenu 20.2% 22.&%

The increase in selling, general and adstriative expense in fiscal 2012 was principally tlugcreases of (a) $6.5 million for personnel-
related expenses, including severance relatecgéparation agreement between us and our former GE®1.5 million for legal fees,
primarily related to litigation and acquisition-a&d costs, and (c) $0.8 million for product marigtosts. The increase in fiscal 2012 was
offset in part by a net gain of $8.5 million frohetpurchase of our headquarters in fiscal 2012.dBleeease in selling, general and
administrative expense as a percent of revenuiscial 2012 is due to our increased revenues. Veebthat selling, general and
administrative expense will remain relatively st absolute dollars in the first quarter of 2013.
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Interest Income

Interest income in fiscal 2012 was $1.3ioml compared to $1.9 million in fiscal 2011.
Interest Expense

Interest expense in fiscal 2012 was $1lianicompared to $37 thousand in fiscal 2011. Feeease in fiscal 2012 is principally due to
interest on our Term Loan Facility under our Crédjteement.

Other Income (Expense), Net
Other income (expense), net in fiscal 2@h2 $0.5 million compared to $0.4 million in fis@11.

Provision for Income Taxes

Fiscal Year
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Provision for income taxe $ 22¢ $16¢ $ 5.¢
Effective tax rate 26.2% 32.2%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2012 deged from the prior period, primarily due to telease of prior year unrecognized tax benefits
that were determined to be effectively settled miyithe current period, along with one-time nondébleccosts associated with the acquisition
of Spectra Linear in fiscal 2011. The impact ofstné@ems was partially offset by the non-renewaheffederal research and development tax
credit in the current period.

The American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012e(t'Act") was enacted on January 2, 2013. The étcbactively reinstates the federal
research and development credit from January 12,28tough December 31, 2013. The effect of thenghan the tax law related to fiscal 2(
is estimated to be between $3.5 million and $40anj which will be recognized as a benefit toonee tax expense in the first quarter of fis
2013, the quarter in which the law was enacted.

The effective tax rates for each of théqus presented differ from the federal statutotg f 35% due to the amount of income earned il
foreign jurisdictions where the tax rate may bedowhan the federal statutory rate, research anelalement tax credits and other permanent
items including changes to the liability for unrgo@ed tax benefits.

Comparison of Fiscal 2011 to Fiscal 2010

Revenues
Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Revenue: $ 491.€ $ 4931 $ (L.9) (0.9%

Unit volumes of our products decreased amagbto fiscal 2010 by 1.0%. Average selling priceseased during the same period by
1.2%.
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Gross Margin

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Gross margit $ 298« $ 3242 $ (25.9) (8.00%
Percent of revenu 60.7% 65.7%

The decrease in gross margin in fiscal 20a4 primarily due to changes in product mix anarghs related to the acquisition of Spectra
Linear.

Research and Development

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Research and developme $ 136.C $ 123¢ $ 12z 9.8%
Percent of revenu 27.1% 25.1%

The increase in research and developmedrese in fiscal 2011 was primarily due to (a) amease of $8.6 million for personnel-related
expenses, including $1.6 million for one-time parsal costs associated with the acquisition of Spddnear, (b) an increase of $2.3 million
for amortization of intangible assets, and (c) $tillion for the impairment of intangible assets.

Selling, General and Administrative

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Selling, general and administrati $ 1122 $ 1138 $ (1.9 (1.2%
Percent of revenu 22.8% 23.(%

The decrease in selling, general and aditnitiive expense in fiscal 2011 was principally thua) a decrease of $2.0 million for legal fees
and (b) a decline of $1.9 million in the fair valofacquisition-related contingent consideratione Hecrease was offset in part by an increase
of $2.2 million for personnel-related expensesluding $3.0 million for one-time personnel costsasated with the acquisition of Spectra
Linear.

Interest Income

Interest income in fiscal 2011 was $1.9ionl compared to $2.3 million in fiscal 2010.
Interest Expense

Interest expense in fiscal 2011 was $3vshad compared to $77 thousand in fiscal 2010.
Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net in fiscal 2@A% $0.4 million compared to $(1.3) million in f@&@010. The change was primarily due to
foreign currency remeasurement adjustments.

36




Table of Contents

Provision for Income Taxes

Fiscal Year
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Provision for income taxe $ 16 $ 144 $ 2.E
Effective tax rate 32.2% 16.4%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2011 im@sed from the prior period, primarily due to tve tharge related to the intercompany license of
certain technology obtained in the acquisition pé&ra Linear and other one-time nondeductiblescassociated with the acquisition of
Spectra Linear, a decrease in the foreign taxtratefit, and a release of prior year unrecogniagdenefits in fiscal 2010 with none in fiscal
2011. These changes were partially offset by arease in the research and development tax credit.

The effective tax rates for each of thaqus presented differ from the federal statutote Gf 35% due to the amount of income earned il
foreign jurisdictions where the tax rate may bedowhan the federal statutory rate, research anelalement tax credits and other permanent
items including changes to the liability for unrgozed tax benefits.

Business Outlook

We expect revenues in the first quartdisafal 2013 to be down sequentially four to eigatgent. Furthermore, we expect our diluted
earnings per share to be in the range of $0.30 #0$

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity as of é&@nber 29, 2012 consisted of $282.0 million in ¢asish equivalents and short-term
investments, of which approximately $119.4 milliwas held by our U.S. entities. The remaining batamas held by our foreign subsidiaries.
Our cash equivalents and short-term investmentsistaal of corporate bonds, money market funds, aipadibonds, U.S. Treasury bills,
variable-rate demand notes, U.S. government bass®t-backed securities and international governbwerds.

Our long-term investments consisted of ianetate securities. Early in fiscal 2008, auctiémsmany of our auction-rate securities failed
because sell orders exceeded buy orders. As ofile29, 2012, we held $12.5 million par value Emmctate securities, all of which have
experienced failed auctions. These securities hamtractual maturity dates ranging from 2033 to&@0/e are receiving the underlying cash
flows on all of our auction-rate securities. Thpipal amounts associated with failed auctionsnateexpected to be accessible until a
successful auction occurs, the issuer redeemsthgity, a buyer is found outside of the auctionggss or the underlying securities mature
are unable to predict if these funds will becomailable before their maturity dates. We do not expe need access to the capital represente
by any of our auction-rate securities prior to theaturities.

Net cash provided by operating activities$97.1 million during fiscal 2012, compared togesh provided of $88.7 million during fis
2011. Operating cash flows during fiscal 2012 efteur net income of $63.5 million, adjustment$66.5 million for depreciation, gains on
the purchase of property and equipment, amortizasitock-based compensation and deferred inconestaxd a net cash outflow of
$22.9 million due to changes in our operating asartl liabilities.
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Accounts receivable increased to $78.0ionilat December 29, 2012 from $55.4 million at Deber 31, 2011. The increase in accounts
receivable resulted primarily from an increasehipsients during the last quarter of fiscal 2012 parad to the last quarter of fiscal 2011. Our
average days sales outstanding (DSO) was 46 d&escaimber 29, 2012 and 39 days at December 31, 2011

Inventory increased to $49.6 million at Beber 29, 2012 from $34.8 million at December 3112 Our inventory level is primarily
impacted by our need to make purchase commitmersispport forecasted demand and variations betfegecasted and actual demand. Our
average days of inventory (DOI) was 76 days at Béoer 29, 2012 and 63 days at December 31, 2011.

Net cash used in investing activities wh3%3 million during fiscal 2012, compared to nastt used of $25.2 million during fiscal 2011.
The increase in cash outflows was principally dumtreases of $93.4 million for purchases of progpand equipment and $44.6 million in 1
payments for the acquisition of businesses, offgetn increase of $28.3 million from net proceedsifsales and maturities of marketable
securities. On July 3, 2012, we acquired Emberjately held company, for approximately $79.0 raill, including contingent consideration
with an estimated fair value of $4.0 million at thete of acquisition. On September 28, 2012, wetmsged our corporate headquarters
facilities. See Note %Acquisitions, for additional information.

We anticipate capital expenditures of apppnately $14 to $18 million for fiscal 2013. Additially, as part of our growth strategy, we
expect to evaluate opportunities to invest in @uire other businesses, intellectual property ohnnielogies that would complement or expand
our current offerings, expand the breadth of ourkeizd or enhance our technical capabilities.

Net cash provided by financing activitieass$52.7 million during fiscal 2012, compared tocash used of $107.2 million during fiscal
2011. The increase in cash inflows was principdllg from net proceeds of $98.3 million from theiégsce of long-term debt and outflows
declining $48.0 million for repurchases of our coamstock. In April 2012, our Board of Directors lamtized a program to repurchase up to
$100 million of our common stock through Januarg20

Debt

On July 31, 2012, we entered into a $230anifive-year Credit Agreement (the "AgreemeniThe Agreement consists of a $100 million
Term Loan Facility and a $130 million Revolving @iteFacility.

The Term Loan Facility provides for qualgterincipal amortization (equal to 5% of the piipatl in each of the first two years and 10% of
the principal in each of the next three years) whhremaining balance payable upon the maturity. dghe Revolving Credit Facility include
$25 million letter of credit sublimit and a $10 hwh swingline loan sublimit. We have an optionriorease the size of the Revolving Credit
Facility by up to an aggregate of $50 million irdagbnal commitments, subject to certain conditioDs September 27, 2012, we borrowed
$100 million under the Term Loan Facility. To dates have not borrowed under the Revolving Crediilfga.

The Term Loan Facility and Revolving Crdelitcility, other than swingline loans, will beatdrest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin
at our option, a base rate (defined as the higifabe Bank of America prime rate, the Federal Burade plus 0.50% and a daily rate equal to
one-month LIBOR plus 1.00%) plus an applicable nimar§wingline loans accrue interest at a per anmatmbased on the base rate plus the
applicable margin for base rate loans. The apgkcatargins for the LIBOR rate loans range from %50 2.50% and for base rate loans ra
from 0.50% to 1.50%, depending in each case, otetlezage ratio as defined in the Agreement. We jpdgy a commitment fee on the unused
amount of the Revolving Credit Facility.
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In connection with the closing of the Cteligreement, we entered into a security and pledgeement. Under the security and pledge
agreement, we pledged equity securities of cedfour subsidiaries, subject to exceptions andtétiuns. The Credit Facilities contain various
conditions, covenants and representations with lvive must be in compliance in order to borrow fuadd to avoid an event of default,
including financial covenants that we must maintalieverage ratio (funded debt/EBITDA) of no mdrart 2.5 to 1 and a minimum fixed
charge coverage ratio (EBITDA/debt payments, inctemes and capital expenditures) of no less tha@d tb. 1. As of December 29, 2012, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants of@hedit Facilities. See Note 1ebt, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information.

Our future capital requirements will dep@mdmany factors, including the rate of sales ghowtarket acceptance of our products, the
timing and extent of research and development pr®j@otential acquisitions of companies or tecbgigls and the expansion of our sales and
marketing activities. We believe our existing casish equivalents, investments and credit undeCoedit Facilities are sufficient to meet our
capital requirements through at least the next @@ths, although we could be required, or couldtetecseek additional funding prior to that
time. We may enter into acquisitions or strategiarsgements in the future which also could requg¢o seek additional equity or debt
financing.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contnatbbligations as of December 29, 2012 (in thodsgn

Payments due by perioc
Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Long-term debt
obligations (1, $ 100,00 $ 5,00C $ 7,50C $ 10,00( $ 10,00( $ 67,50( $ —
Interest on long-

term debt

obligations (2] 11,77 2,837 2,70¢ 2,53( 2,507 1,18¢ —
Operating lease

obligations (3] 13,47¢ 3,52 2,521 1,86¢ 1,86¢ 1,66¢ 2,03t
Purchase

obligations (4, 36,00: 35,990 9 — — — —
Other long-term

obligations (5] 2,25k — 1,991 — — — 264

Q) Long-term debt obligations represent the princghad under our Term Loan Facility and include amsuidssified as
current portion of long-term debt.

(2) Interest on our long-term debt obligations is bamed IBOR plus an applicable margin. We have enténéo an interest
rate swap agreement as a hedge against the LIB@RRrpof such variable interest payments and eiffett converted
the LIBOR portion of the interest on the Term Ldatility to a fixed interest rate through the mayudate. As of
December 29, 2012, the combined interest rate @ &m Loan Facility was 2.514%. The impact ofititerest rate
swap was factored into the calculation of the faituterest payments on our long-term debt obligatio

(3)  Operating lease obligations include amounts fasdddacilities.

4 Purchase obligations include contractual arrangésriarthe form of purchase orders with supplieresgtthere is a fixed
non-cancelable payment schedule or minimum payntkréswvith a reduced delivery schedule.

(5)  We are unable to make a reasonably reliable estia®mto when or if cash settlement with taxing auities will occur for

our unrecognized tax benefits. Therefore, our lighof $4.4 million for unrecognized tax benefissnot included in the
table above. See Note lincome Taxesto the Consolidated Financial Statements for amiutiti information
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 29, 2012, we had no sigaifioff-balance sheet arrangements.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements armbmpanying notes in conformity with U.S. gergratcepted accounting principles requires
that we make estimates and assumptions that dffee@mounts reported. Changes in facts and cireumoss could have a significant impact or
the resulting estimated amounts included in therfaial statements. We believe the following critmecounting policies affect our more
complex judgments and estimates. We also have ptiieies that we consider to be key accountingcpes, such as our policies for revenue
recognition, including the deferral of revenues aast of revenues on sales to distributors; howekiese policies do not meet the definition of
critical accounting estimates because they do eneglly require us to make estimates or judgmtbatsare difficult or subjective.

Inventory valuatior—We assess the recoverability of inventories thraghapplication of a set of methods, assumptioksestimates. |
determining net realizable value, we write dowreimory that may be slow moving or have some formlsolescence, including inventory
that has aged more than 12 months. We also atijgistaiuation of inventory when its standard coseexls the estimated market value less
selling costs. We assess the potential for anyualu@istomer returns based on known quality ormmss issues and write-off inventory losses
for scrap or non-saleable material. Inventory ribeowise identified to be written down is compatedn assessment of our 12-month
forecasted demand. The result of this methodolegpmpared against the product life cycle and coithgesituations in the marketplace to
determine the appropriateness of the resultingnitorg levels. Demand for our products may fluctugtmificantly over time, and actual
demand and market conditions may be more or lessdhle than those that we project. In the evemt élotual demand is lower or market
conditions are worse than originally projected,iiddal inventory write-downs may be required.

Stock-based compensatieiWe recognize the fair-value of stock-based comgigms transactions in the Consolidated Statements o
Income. The fair value of our full-value stock adafwith the exception of market-based performaweards) equals the fair market value of
our stock on the date of grant. The fair value wfmarket-based performance award grants is estdvattthe date of grant using a Mofterlo
simulation. The fair value of our stock option ardployee stock purchase plan grants is estimatén atate of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. In addition, we are requitedestimate the expected forfeiture rate of ouclstgrants and only recognize the expense fol
those shares expected to vest. If our actual esqpesidiffers significantly from the assumptionsdigecompute our stock-based compensatiol
cost, or if different assumptions had been usednag have recorded too much or too little stockellasompensation cost. See Note Stck-
Based Compensatic, to the Consolidated Financial Statements fortamthl information.

Investments in auction-rate securitie¥Ve determine the fair value of our investmentadtion-rate securities using a discounted cash
flow model. The assumptions used in preparing teeodinted cash flow model include estimates farigdt rates, amount of cash flows,
expected holding periods of the securities andseadint to reflect our inability to liquidate theceeities. For available-for-sale auction-rate
securities, if the calculated value is below theyiag amount of the securities, we then deternifiiee decline in value is other-than-
temporary. We consider various factors in detemginvhether an impairment is other-th@mporary, including the severity and durationhe
impairment, changes in underlying credit ratingse€asted recovery, our intent to sell or the ila@d that we would be required to sell the
investment before its anticipated recovery in mavieddue and the probability that the scheduled gagiments will continue to be made. When
we conclude that an other-than-temporary impairrhaestoccurred, we assess whether we intend ttheedlecurity or if it
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is more likely than not that we will be requiredskll the security before recovery. If either adgh two conditions is met, we recognize a ct

in earnings equal to the entire difference betwlersecurity's amortized cost basis and its fdirezdf we do not intend to sell a security and it
is not more likely than not that we will be requir® sell the security before recovery, the uneediloss is separated into an amount
representing the credit loss, which is recognizeearnings, and the amount related to all othéofacwhich is recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive loss.

Acquired intangible assetsWhen we acquire a business, a portion of the @selprice is typically allocated to identifiabl¢aingible
assets, such as acquired technology and custofatonships. Fair value of these assets is detedhprimarily using the income approach,
which requires us to project future cash flows apgly an appropriate discount rate. We amortizanigible assets with finite lives over their
expected useful lives. Our estimates are based aggumptions believed to be reasonable but whieimherently uncertain and unpredictable.
Assumptions may be incomplete or inaccurate, arehticipated events and circumstances may occusriect estimates could result in future
impairment charges, and those charges could beialdteour results of operations.

Impairment of goodwill and other long-livagsets—We review long-lived assets which are held andluseluding fixed assets and
purchased intangible assets, for impairment whenehanges in circumstances indicate that the gagrgmount of the assets may not be
recoverable. Such evaluations compare the cargimgunt of an asset to future undiscounted netftasis expected to be generated by the
asset over its expected useful life and are sicanifily impacted by estimates of future prices asldmes for our products, capital needs,
economic trends and other factors which are inlilgrdifficult to forecast. If the asset is considdrto be impaired, we record an impairment
charge equal to the amount by which the carryiigevaf the asset exceeds its fair value determiayegither a quoted market price, if any, ¢
value determined by utilizing a discounted castvftechnique.

We test our goodwill for impairment annyak of the first day of our fourth fiscal quaréerd in interim periods if certain events occur
indicating that the carrying value of goodwill miag impaired. The goodwill impairment test is a tstep process. The first step of the
impairment analysis compares our fair value torairbook value. In determining fair value, the asding guidance allows for the use of
several valuation methodologies, although it stgtested market prices are the best evidence ofédire. If the fair value is less than the net
book value, the second step of the analysis corsghecimplied fair value of our goodwill to its cging amount. If the carrying amount of
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, we recagnan impairment loss equal to that excess amount.

Income taxes-We are required to calculate income taxes in @ithe jurisdictions in which we operate. This mss involves
calculating the actual current tax liability togethvith assessing temporary differences in recagnitf income (loss) for tax and accounting
purposes. These differences result in deferreddagts and liabilities, which are included in oanéblidated Balance Sheet. We record a
valuation allowance when it is more likely than tizdt some portion or all of the deferred tax asagll not be realized. In assessing the need
for a valuation allowance, we are required to estenthe amount of expected future taxable incoogient is inherent in this process and
differences between the estimated and actual teciabbme could result in a material impact on oan$dlidated Financial Statements.

We recognize liabilities for uncertain faositions based on a two-step process. The feptrgtquires us to determine if the weight of
available evidence indicates that the tax positias met the threshold for recognition; therefore must evaluate whether it is more likely tl
not that the position will be sustained on audit/uding resolution of any related appeals orditign processes. The second step requires us
measure the tax benefit of the tax position takemxpected to be taken, in an income tax retuthesargest amount that is more than 50%
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlemértiis measurement step is inherently complex andires|subjective
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estimations of such amounts to determine the piibtyadsf various possible outcomes. We re-evaluithteuncertain tax positions each quarter
based on factors including, but not limited to,rdpes in facts or circumstances, changes in taxdapirations of statutes of limitation,
effectively settled issues under audit, and newtaadivity. Such a change in recognition or measuent would result in the recognition of a
tax benefit or an additional charge to the tax f@iow in the period.

Although we believe the measurement ofliatlnilities for uncertain tax positions is reasolgaimo assurance can be given that the final
outcome of these matters will not be different thdmat is reflected in the historical income taxyismons and accruals. If additional taxes are
assessed as a result of an audit or litigatiarguid have a material effect on our income tax {@ow and net income in the period or periods
for which that determination is made. We operathiwimultiple taxing jurisdictions and are subjeztudit in these jurisdictions. These audits
can involve complex issues which may require arredd period of time to resolve and could resudtdditional assessments of income tax.
We believe adequate provisions for income taxes t@en made for all periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Stards Board (FASB) issued FASB Accounting Standaiaisate (ASU) No. 2012-02,
Intangible—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)—Testing Indefiniteed Intangible Assets for ImpairmemSU 2012-02 permits an entity to
first assess qualitative factors to determine wéreithis more likely than not that an indefinitedd intangible asset is impaired as a basis for
determining whether it is necessary to performgha@ntitative impairment test in accordance witht8piz 35030. If an entity concludes thal
is not more likely than not that the indefinitediVintangible asset is impaired, then no furthépads required. If an entity concludes
otherwise, then it is required to determine the¥alue of the indefinite-lived intangible assetlgrerform the quantitative impairment test.
ASU 2012-02 is effective for annual and interim aiyment tests performed for fiscal years beginrmifigr September 15, 2012, with early
adoption permitted. The adoption of this ASU is expected to have a material impact on our findrstédements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued FASB AR 2011-11Balance Sheet (Topic 210)—Disclosures about Offgeftssets and
Liabilities . ASU 2011-11 requires an entity to disclose infation about offsetting and related arrangemenénéble users of its financial
statements to understand the effect of those agraagts on its financial position. Entities are isggito disclose both gross and net
information about these instruments. ASU 2011-ldffisctive for annual reporting periods beginnimgar after January 1, 2013, and interim
periods within those annual periods. The adopticthis ASU is not expected to have a material intjggcour financial statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk
Interest Incomt

Our investment portfolio includes cash hcaguivalents, short-term investments and long-ierastments. Our main investment
objectives are the preservation of investment abpitd the maximization of aftéax returns on our investment portfolio. Our ingtri@come i
sensitive to changes in the general level of Lh&rést rates. Our investment portfolio holdingsfaBecember 29, 2012 and December 31,
2011 yielded less than 100 basis points. A dedfingeld to zero basis points on our investmentfptio holdings as of December 29, 2012
December 31, 2011 would decrease our annual inte@sme by approximately $1.2 million and $1.9lmil, respectively. We believe that
investment policy, which defines the duration, amtcation, and minimum credit quality of the alldM&investments, meets our investment
objectives.

Interest Expens

We are exposed to interest rate fluctuatiarthe normal course of our business, includimgugh our Credit Facilities. The interest
payments on the facility are calculated using dabde-rate
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of interest. We have entered into an interestsatgp agreement with a notional value of $100 nmilfiequal to the full amount borrowed under
the Term Loan Facility) and, effectively, convertad variable-rate interest payments on the Teranleacility to fixed-rate interest payments
through July 2017.

Investments in Aucti-rate Securities

Beginning in fiscal 2008, auctions for mafyour auction-rate securities failed becausemelkrs exceeded buy orders. As of
December 29, 2012, we held $12.5 million par valuetion-rate securities, all of which have experéshfailed auctions. The principal
amounts associated with failed auctions are notebepl to be accessible until a successful auctionrs, the issuer redeems the securities, a
buyer is found outside of the auction process erutderlying securities mature. We are unableedipt if these funds will become available
before their maturity dates. Additionally, if wetdemine that an other-than-temporary decline infélirevalue of any of our available-for-sale
auction-rate securities has occurred, we may hainetjto adjust the carrying value of the investtaghrough an impairment charge.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a

The Financial Statements and supplemeidaty required by this item are included in Partltefn 15 of this Form 16 and are present
beginning on page F-1.

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation under tipervision and with the participation of our managet, including our Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), thie effectiveness of our disclosure controls amtgdures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Brgk Act). Based on that evaluation, our managermatading our CEO and CFO,
concluded that our disclosure controls and proesiurere effective as of December 29, 2012 to peorédsonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports filedubmitted by us under the Exchange Act is arprocessed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC's sudad forms. Such disclosure controls and procedaotude controls and procedures desig
to ensure that information required to be disclaseatcumulated and communicated to our managemnehiding our CEO and CFO, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosureser&élwas no change in our internal controls duttegfiscal quarter ended December 29, 201
that materially affected, or is reasonably likedymaterially affect, our internal controls overdircial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control direncial reporting. Our internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assu@ooe management and Board of Directors regarttiagpreparation and fair presentation
of published financial statements.

Our management assessed the effectivehess mternal control over financial reporting @sDecember 29, 2012. In making this
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by trar@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread@ammission (COSO) imternal
Control—Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment we concluded that,eceimber 29, 2012, our internal control over finahc
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Our independent registered public accogrfinm, Ernst & Young LLP, issued an attestatiopae on our internal control over financial
reporting. This report appears on page F-1.

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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Part Il

Certain information required by Part Illamitted from this report because we intend todildefinitive Proxy Statement pursuant to
Regulation 14A (the "Proxy Statement") no latemthi@0 days after the end of the fiscal year covesethis report, and certain information to
be included therein is incorporated herein by mfee.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

Set forth below is information regarding #xecutive officers and directors of Silicon Laories as of January 22, 2013.

Name Age Position

Navdeep S. Sooc 50 Chairman of the Boar

G. Tyson Tuttle 45 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
Paul V. Walsh, Jr. 48 Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presid
David P. Breseman 47  Chief Product Officer and Senior Vice Presid
Kurt W. Hoff 55 Senior Vice President of Worldwide Sa
Jonathan D. Ivestt 57 Senior Vice President of Worldwide Operatic
David R. Wellanc 57 Vice President and Direct

William G. Bock 62 Director

Harvey B. Casl 74  Director

R. Ted Enloe Il 74 Director

Kristen M. Onker 63 Director

Laurence G. Walke 64 Director

William P. Wood 57 Director

Navdeep S. Sooch co-founded Silicon Lalmoies in August 1996 and has served as Chairm#medBoard since our inception.
Mr. Sooch served as our Chief Executive Officenfrour inception through the end of fiscal 2003 aadred as interim Chief Executive
Officer from April 2005 to September 2005. From kta 985 until founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr.dgb held various positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Vice Presitlef Engineering, as well as Product
Planning Manager of Strategic Marketing and De&ggineer. From May 1982 to March 1985, Mr. Soocls @esign Engineer with AT&T
Bell Labs. Since October 2011, Mr. Sooch has seagetthe CEO of Ketra, Inc., a private company anftbld of solid state lighting. Mr. Sooch
holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from the Wmsity of Michigan, Dearborn and an M.S. in Elaat Engineering from Stanford
University. Mr. Sooch's prior experience as ourefBixecutive Officer as well as a semiconductoigiess provides him with extensive insic
into our industry and our operations and qualifis to serve as Chairman of our Board of Directors.

G. Tyson Tuttle has served as a directdraanPresident and Chief Executive Officer of 8itid-aboratories since April 2012. Mr. Tuttle
previously served Silicon Laboratories as Chief @peg Officer and Senior Vice President from Md@A2 until April 2012, Chief Technical
Officer from January 2010 to May 2011, and VicesRtent and General Manager of Broadcast producksding the audio and video product
families from May 2005 to December 2009. Mr. Tujtimed Silicon Laboratories in 1997 as a seni@igie engineer. From 1999 to 2005,

Mr. Tuttle served in a variety of product managetmerarketing and business leadership positionsi@usly, Mr. Tuttle held senior design
engineering positions at Crystal Semiconductor(Gitrogic and Broadcom Corporation where he focaseligh-speed mixed-signal circuit
design for hard disk drive read channel and Ettieapplications. Mr. Tuttle holds an M.S. in Elec#i Engineering from UCLA and a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from Johns Hopkins Univershir. Tuttle's experience and understanding oftmiginess gained through his role as oul
President and Chief Executive Officer as well asylaiars of experience

44




Table of Contents

as a semiconductor designer provide him with exteniasight into our operations and qualifies horserve as a member of our Board of
Directors.

Paul V. Walsh, Jr. has served as Chiefriireh Officer of Silicon Laboratories since Julyl20 Mr. Walsh served as Vice President of
Finance and Chief Accounting Officer from NovemB606 to July 2011. Mr. Walsh previously served agpGrate Controller from March
2005. From January 2009 through September 2010WdIsh served on the Board of Directors of Rio htwdd, Inc. (previously Grande
Communications, Inc.), a provider of cable, Intémmed phone services, where he also served ashthien@an of the Audit Committee and as a
member of the Finance Committee. Prior to joiniilgc@ Laboratories, Mr. Walsh was Site Controlflerm February 2003 to January 2004
with PerkinElmer, a supplier to the health sciereed photonics markets. From 1992 to 2003, Mr. Whkdd various operational, finance and
management roles at Analog Devices and TeradyribgiBoston area. Mr. Walsh received his B.S. ircihdmical Engineering from the
University of Maine, and an M.B.A from Boston Unisiy.

David P. Bresemann has served as Chiefuetdfficer of Silicon Laboratories since NovemR6é1.2. Mr. Bresemann was promoted to
Senior Vice President in April 2012. Mr. Bresemaenved as Vice President and General Manager @fd8est products from 2010 to 2012.
From 2002 to 2009, Mr. Bresemann served as VicsitRrat and General Manager of Wireline products. Biesemann joined Silicon
Laboratories in 1998 as the Director of Marketing &elped craft the company's marketing strategjtddirst Wireline products. Prior to
joining Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Bresemann serasdhe Director of Marketing for Consumer and Pssignal Audio Products at Crys
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic from 1992 to 1998. Frb@88 to 1992, Mr. Bresemann held various salegiposifor Analog Devices.

Mr. Bresemann holds a B.S. in electrical enginggfiom the University of Arizona.

Kurt W. Hoff has served as Vice PresiddntMoridwide Sales for Silicon Laboratories sincédy2007. From 2005 until July 2007, he
managed the company's European sales and oper&iamsto joining Silicon Laboratories in 2005, Mtoff served as president, Chief
Executive Officer and director of Cognio. Mr. Haffso managed the operations and sales of C-Popb@iion, a network processor company
acquired by Motorola in May 2000. Additionally, Mioff spent 10 years in various sales positiorSMD. Mr. Hoff holds a B.S. in Physics
from the University of Illinois and an M.B.A. frothe University of Chicago.

Jonathan D. Ivester has served as Senaw Riesident of Worldwide Operations since Jun&2b@ served as Vice President of
Worldwide Operations since May 2005. He joinedcsifi Laboratories in September 1997 as Vice PresiBeaviously, Mr. lvester was with
Applied Materials, a supplier of equipment and Bms to the semiconductor industry, and servedigecr of Manufacturing and Director of
U.S. Procurement in addition to various engineeand manufacturing management positions. Mr. lved® was a scientist at Bechtel
Corporation, an engineering and construction compamnd at Abcor, Inc., an ultrafiltration compamdasubsidiary of Koch Industries.

Mr. Ivester holds a B.S. in Chemistry from the Medausetts Institute of Technology and an M.B.AnfiStanford University.

David R. Welland co-founded Silicon Laboréts in August 1996, has served as a Vice Presatehdirector since our inception and was
appointed Fellow in March 2004. From November 108l founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Wellandltiezarious positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Senior Deskngineer. Mr. Welland holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts tugtiof Technology. Mr. Welland's years of expetieas a semiconductor designer provide
him with extensive insight into our operations apihlifies him to serve as a member of our BoarDioéctors.

William G. Bock has served as a directoBibiton Laboratories since he rejoined the BodrDicectors in July of 2011. He served Silic
Laboratories as Chief Financial Officer from Noveanb
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2006 to July 2011, and Senior Vice President odfoe and Administration through December 2011.diteefl Silicon Laboratories as a
director in March 2000, and served as Chairmahefdit committee until November 2006 when hepdmown from the Board of
Directors to assume the CFO role. From 2001 to 2BB6Bock participated in the venture capital isthy, principally as a partner with
CenterPoint Ventures. Before his venture careerBdck held senior management positions with tlvexgure-backed companies: DAZEL
Corporation, Tivoli Systems, and Convex Computerp@oation. Mr. Bock began his career with Texasrimeents. Mr. Bock served on the
Board of Directors of Convio, Inc., from January08Quntil its sale to Blackbaud Inc. in April 201r. Bock currently serves on the Board of
Directors of Entropic Communications and is a mendf¢heir Audit Committee. Mr. Bock holds a B.8.Computer Science from lowa State
University and an M.S. in Industrial Administratinom Carnegie Mellon University. Mr. Bock's extarssfinancial and executive experience
and his in-depth knowledge of Silicon Laboratogeslify him to serve as a member of our Board a&Btors.

Harvey B. Cash has served as a direct8ilicion Laboratories since June 1997. Mr. Cashseaged as general partner of InterWest
Partners, a venture capital firm, since 1986. MrstCcurrently serves on the Board of Directordieffollowing public companies: Ciena
Corporation, a designer and manufacturer of dermelength division multiplexing systems for fibgatic networks; Argo Group International
Holdings, Ltd., a specialty insurance company; Rinst Acceptance Corp, a provider of low-cost anturance. Mr. Cash holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from Texas A&M Universityaan M.B.A. from Western Michigan University. Mragh's independence and
experience as a director of various public comparae well as his prior operational experiencenasxacutive, qualifies him to serve as a
member of our Board of Directors.

R. Ted Enloe Il has served as a direct@ilicon Laboratories since April 2003. Mr. Enlecurrently the Managing General Partner of
Balquita Partners, Ltd., a family investment fifdh.. Enloe formerly served as Vice Chairman and menab the office of chief executive of
Compaq Computer Corporation. He also served asderéof Lomas Financial Corporation and Libertédstors for more than 15 years.

Mr. Enloe co-founded a number of other publiclydhiims, including Capstead Mortgage Corp., TylabGt Mortgage Securities Corp., and
Seaman's Corp. Mr. Enloe currently serves on trerdof Directors of Leggett & Platt, Inc. and Lidation, Inc. Mr. Enloe holds a B.S. in
Engineering from Louisiana Polytechnic Universitidea J.D. from Southern Methodist University. Mnl&'s combination of independence,
qualification as an audit committee financial ex@ard his experience, including past experiencenasxecutive officer and current and past
experience as a director of various public compagaalifies him to serve as a member of our Baéi@irectors.

Kristen M. Onken has served as a direct@ilicon Laboratories since September 2007. Mkéddrnwas elected to the Board of Directors
of Seagate Technology plc in November 2011, whieeeadso serves as the Chair of the Audit Commifttse.Onken retired from Logitech in
May 2006, a maker of electronics peripherals, wisbeserved as Senior Vice President, FinanceChief Financial Officer from February
1999 to May 2006. From September 1996 to Febru@®®,1Ms. Onken served as Vice President of Finah&aijitsu PC Corporation, the U.S.
subsidiary of the Japanese electronics manufactirem 1991 to September 1996, Ms. Onken was ermaglby Sun Microsystems initially as
Controller of the Southwest Area, and later as @eof Finance, Sun Professional Services. Ms.e@rttolds a B.S. from Southern lIllinois
University, and an M.B.A. in Finance from the Unisi¢y of Chicago. Ms. Onken's independence and puiperience as the Chief Financial
Officer of Logitech and her finance roles with atbechnology companies qualifies her to serve m&mber of our Board of Directors.

Laurence G. Walker has served as a dir@ft8ilicon Laboratories since June 2003. Previgudr. Walker co-founded and served as
Chief Executive Officer of GRort Corporation, a pioneer in the network processtustry, which was acquired by Motorola in 2080llowing
the acquisition, Mr. Walker served as Vice PresiddrStrategy for Motorola's Network and ComputBgstems
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Group and then as Vice President and General Mamdgee Network and Computing Systems Group @@d2. From August 1996 to May
1997, Mr. Walker served as Chief Executive OffioECertCo, a digital certification supplier. Mr. \IKar served as Vice President and Genere
Manager, Network Products Business Unit, of Digiiglipment Corporation, a computer hardware compiaom January 1994 to July 1996.
From 1998 to 2007, he served on the Board of Dirsadf McData Corporation, a provider of storageveeking solutions. From 1981 to 19¢
he held a variety of other management positioridigital Equipment Corporation. Mr. Walker holds &Bin Electrical Engineering from
Princeton University and an M.S. and Ph.D. in Eleat Engineering from the Massachusetts Institit€echnology. Mr. Walker's combinati
of independence and his experience, including @gstrience as an executive officer, qualifies lorsdrve as a member of our Board of
Directors.

William P. Wood has served as a directd8ititon Laboratories since March 1997 and as Liaelctor since December 2005. Since
1996, Mr. Wood has also served as general parfnarimus funds associated with Silverton Partnargenture capital firm. From 1984 to
2003, Mr. Wood was a general partner, and for eftands created since 1996, a special limitedrgaytof various funds associated with
Austin Ventures, a venture capital firm. Mr. Woanlds a B.A. in History from Brown University and &B.A. from Harvard University.
Mr. Wood's combination of independence and his e&pee, including past experience as an investauimerous semiconductor and
technology companies, qualifies him to serve agember of our Board of Directors.

The remaining information required by thém is incorporated by reference to the Proxyetant under the sections captioned "Prog
One: Election of Directors," "Executive Compensafid Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportingnipliance" and "Code of Ethics."

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the caption "ExecettVompensation” and "Proposal One: Election ofdines" appearing in the Proxy Statement,
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Médrs

The information under the caption "Ownepsbii Securities” and "Equity Compensation Plan imfation" appearing in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Traresctions, and Director Independence

The information under the caption "CertRilationships and Related Transactions, and Diréctependence” appearing in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information under the caption "Propdsab: Ratification of Appointment of Independentd®eered Public Accounting Firm"
appearing in the Proxy Statement is incorporatedihdy reference.
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Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
(a) 1. Financial Statements
Index
Page
Report of independent registered public accourfting F-1
Report of independent registered public accourfting F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 29, 20ilParember 31, 201 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended December 29, 2012, December 31,
2011 and January 1, 20 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéofiscal years ended December 29,
2012, December 31, 2011 and January 1, . F-5
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholEqtsty for the fiscal years ended
December 29, 2012, December 31, 2011 and Januafil F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended December 29, 2012,
December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2 F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-8

2. Schedules

All schedules have been omitted sincetfarimation required by the schedule is not appleadx is not present in amounts
sufficient to require submission of the schedutdyecause the information required is includedha €onsolidated Financial Stateme
and notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the accompanyingintb exhibits immediately following the ConsoliddtFinancial Statements are filed as
part of, or hereby incorporated by reference ititis, Form 10-K.
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(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
Number
2.1* Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 16, 2@32and among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., El Dorado Merger Sub, Inc., Entberporation and Todd Hixon, as
Stakeholder Representative (filed as Exhibit 2.theoForm -K filed May 21, 2012)

3.1* Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Certificdtinoorporation of Silicon
Laboratories Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Retgint's Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Securities and Exchange Commission File383-94853) (the "IPO
Registration Statement")

3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Silicorokatories Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2
to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktiferfiscal year ended January 3,
2004).

4.1*  Specimen certificate for shares of common stditd as Exhibit 4.1 to the IPO
Registration Statemen

10.7*  Form of Indemnification Agreement between Silidosboratories Inc. and each of its
directors and executive officers (filed as Exhitit1 to the IPO Registration Stateme

10.2*+ Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2000 Stock IncentiiarP(filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8yi&&es and Exchange Commission
File No. 33:-60794) filed on May 11, 2001

10.7*+ Form of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Grafrbtock Option under Registrar
2000 Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3He Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended January 1, 20(

10.4~+ Form of Addendum to Stock Option Agreement unéegistrant's 2000 Stock Incentive
Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's AahReport on Form 10-K for the year
ended January 1, 200!

10.2+ Form of Stock Issuance Agreement under Registra@08 Stock Incentive Plan (filed
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Annual Report ann 10-K for the year ended
January 1, 2005

10.~+ Form of Addendum to Stock Issuance Agreementeuiegistrant's 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Regist's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended January 1, 20(

10.7+ Employment Agreement dated August 30, 2005 betw®ilicon Laboratories Inc. and
Dr. Necip Sayiner (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the og-K filed September 12, 200¢

10.&¢ Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement ditacth 30, 2006 among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., BAL Investment & Advisory, Inmnd Gary S. Farmer (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomm &K filed on April 5, 2006)

10.¢*  Participation Agreement dated March 30, 2006 agnSiticon Laboratories Inc., BAL
Investment & Advisory, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank Nawst, National Association and
various other financial institutions named thei@iled as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's
Current Report on Formr-K filed on April 5, 2006)

10.1¢*  Sale and Purchase Agreement dated February g, 20@nd between NXP B.V., NXP
Semiconductors France SAS, Silicon Laboratoriesdnd Silicon Laboratories
International Pte. Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 teetRegistrant's Current Report on Form 8-
K filed on February 9, 2007

49




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

10.17

10.12*

10.1%

10.14+

10.1%+

10.1€%+

10.177+

10.1¢&

10.1¢

21
23.1
24

31.1

31.z

32.1
101.INS
101.SCt

101.CAL

Intellectual Property License Agreement datedfaslarch 23, 2007, by and among
Silicon Laboratories Inc., Silicon Laboratoriesdmtational Pte. Ltd., NXP B.V. and
NXP Semiconductors France SAS (filed as Exhibiil16.the Registrant's Curre
Report on Form-K filed on March 29, 2007

Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement ditacth 14, 2008 among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., BA Leasing BSC, LLC and Garf&rmer (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant's Current Report on Foi-K filed on March 19, 2008

Participation Agreement dated March 14, 2008 agn8iticon Laboratories Inc., BA
Leasing BSC, LLC, Wells Fargo Bank Northwest, NiaibAssociation and various
other financial institutions hamed therein (filexiEexhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's
Current Report on Formr-K filed on March 19, 2008

Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2009 Stock IncentiiarP(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on April 27, 2009)

Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2009 Employee StockdPase Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to
the Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on April 27, 2009)

Form of Restricted Stock Units Grant Notice dekstricted Stock Units Award
Agreement under Registrant's 2009 Stock Incentiaa @iled as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on April 27, 2009)

Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Stock @ptAward Agreement under
Registrant's 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (filed abikix 10.4 to the Registrant's Current
Report on Form-K filed on April 27, 2009)

Credit Agreement, dated July 31, 2012, by and rgn®ilicon Laboratories Inc., the
subsidiaries of the borrower identified thereinnBaf America, N.A., Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, and Regions Bank (fiésdExhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K
filed August 1, 2012)

Security and Pledge Agreement, dated July 31228¢ and among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., with the other parties identifeess "Obligors" (as defined therein) and
such other parties that may become Obligors theleuafter the date thereof, and Bank
of America, N.A (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the FoB-K filed August 1, 2012)
Subsidiaries of the Registra

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

Power of Attorney (included on signature page ts Borm 1(-K).

Certification of the Principal Executive Officexrs required by Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Principal Financial Officeas required by Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification as required by Section 906 of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002
XBRL Instance Documer
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
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Exhibit
Number
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docum
* Incorporated herein by reference to the indicailetyf
+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arraegt
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized, in Austin, Texas, on Februaryd12

SILICON LABORATORIES INC.

By: /s/ G. TYSON TUTTLE

G. Tyson Tuttle
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatte@erson whose signature appears below constangkappoints G. Tyson
Tuttle and Paul V. Walsh, Jr., and each of thertingdéndividually, as his or her attorney-in-faegch with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or hemea place and stead, in any and all capacitiesgtoany and all amendments to this annual
report on Form 10-K and other documents in conoadierewith and therewith, and to file the saméh ail exhibits thereto, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting uasitbattorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of tfglirpower and authority to do and
perform each and every act and thing requisitereatgssary to be done in connection herewith arélih and about the premises, as fully tc
all intents and purposes as he or she might odadalin person, hereby ratifying and confirmingtb#t said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or
any of them, or their or his substitute or substgyumay lawfully do or cause to be done by viitaeeof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenresidnelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated:

Name Title Date

/s/ NAVDEEP S. SOOCH

Chairman of the Board February 1, 2013
Navdeep S. Sooc

/s/ G. TYSON TUTTLE President, Chief Executive Officer and

Director (Principal Executive Officer)

February 1, 2013
G. Tyson Tuttle

/sl PAUL V. WALSH, JR. Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial =~ February 1, 2013
Paul V. Walsh, Ji Officer)

/s/ DAVID R. WELLAND

Vice President and Director February 1, 2013
David R. Wellanc
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Name

/s/ WILLIAM G. BOCK

William G. Bock

/sl HARVEY B. CASH

Harvey B. Casl

/s ROBERT TED ENLOE, IlI

Robert Ted Enloe, Il

/s KRISTEN M. ONKEN

Kristen M. Onker

/sl LAURENCE G. WALKER

Laurence G. Walke

/s/ WILLIAM P. WOOD

William P. Wood

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

February 1, 2013

February 1, 2013

February 1, 2013

February 1, 2013

February 1, 2013

February 1, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicoraboratories Inc.

We have audited Silicon Laboratories Ingtie Company) internal control over financial repw as of December 29, 2012, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrakedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgpfizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Silicon Laboratstliec.'s management is responsible for maintaiaffective internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecagsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management's
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti@gir responsibility is to express an opinion om @ompany's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet andbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeéliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finangigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Silicon Laboratories Incaimtained, in all material respects, effective iiné control over financial reporting as of
December 29, 2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtd8oard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Silicon Laboratdnesas of December 29, 2012 and December 31,,201lthe related consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive incomegelsan stockholders' equity and cash flows for eddhe three fiscal years in the period
ended December 29, 2012 of Silicon Laboratoriesdnd our report dated February 1, 2013 expressehgualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 1, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicoraboratories Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conseitialance sheets of Silicon Laboratories Inc. @bmpany) as of December 29, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, and the related consolidatéehnséats of income and comprehensive income, changsckholders' equity and cash
flows for each of the three fiscal years in theigutended December 29, 2012. These financial stattsrare the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is toesgan opinion on these financial statements b@sedr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementieneed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Silicon Laboratories Inc. at December 29, 2012 Radember 31, 2011, and the consolidated results operations and its cash flows for e
of the three fiscal years in the period ended Déxeard9, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally epted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), Silicon
Laboratories Inc.'s internal control over finaneigborting as of December 29, 2012, based on erigstablished in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report dated February 1,
2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 1, 2013
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

December 29 December 31
2012 2011
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 10542¢ $ 94,96
Shor-term investment 176,56! 212,52t
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doukdftdounts of
$670 at December 29, 2012 and $725 at Decemb@031, 78,02 55,35!
Inventories 49,57¢ 34,77¢
Deferred income taxe 16,65- 11,56:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 41,43 43,86
Total current asse 467,68:. 453,04¢
Long-term investment 11,36¢ 17,471
Property and equipment, r 135,27: 25,14
Goodwill 130,26! 115,48t¢
Other intangible assets, r 90,75( 60,00¢
Other assets, n 36,62¢ 34,83(
Total asset $ 871,96t $ 705,99:
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 29,62: $ 26,35¢
Current portion of lon-term debt 5,00( —
Accrued expense 40,41( 30,85
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 30,25¢ 24,96:
Income taxe: 1,087 665
Total current liabilities 106,37¢ 82,83¢
Long-term debt 95,00( —
Other nor-current liabilities 20,61t 24,21«
Total liabilities 221,99: 107,05:
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock—$0.0001 par value; 10,000 shart®eazed; no
shares issued and outstand — —
Common stock—$0.0001 par value; 250,000 share®arl;
41,879 and 42,068 shares issued and outstandibgcaimber 2¢
2012 and December 31, 2011, respecti 4 4
Additional paic-in capital 10,12: 14,74¢
Retained earninc 640,79: 586,65:
Accumulated other comprehensive | (94€) (2,467
Total stockholders' equit 649,97: 598,93¢
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 871,96t $ 705,99:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oket@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011

Revenue: $ 563,29 $ 491,62! $ 493,34:
Cost of revenue 225,27" 193,17¢ 169,09
Gross margit 338,01 298,44¢ 324,24
Operating expense

Research and developm 137,95. 135,95! 123,82:

Selling, general and administrati 114,39( 112,41¢ 113,75.
Operating expenst 252,34; 248,37. 237,57:
Operating incom 85,67t 50,07« 86,67:
Other income (expense

Interest incom 1,33¢ 1,85¢ 2,31¢

Interest expens (1,149 (37 (77)

Other income (expense), r 484 444 (1,259
Income before income tax 86,34¢ 52,34( 87,65¢
Provision for income taxe 22,80( 16,86¢ 14,417
Net income $ 63,54¢ $ 35,47: $ 73,24:
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 151 $ 0.8z $ 1.65

Diluted $ 147 $ 0.7¢ $ 1.57
Weighte-average common shares outstand

Basic 42,13¢ 43,42: 44,84¢

Diluted 43,10¢ 44,83: 46,74

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Net income $ 63,54¢ $ 35,47: $ 73,24
Other comprehensive income, before
Net changes to availal-for-sale securities
Unrealized gains arising during the per 1,00(¢ 4 40¢
Net changes to cash flow hedg
Unrealized losses arising during the pel (95€) (429 (2,640
Reclassification for losses included in net incc 2,29t 2,23i 3,32(
Other comprehensive income, before 2,33¢ 1,815 1,08¢
Provision for income taxe 81¢ 63€ 381
Other comprehensive incor 1,521 1,181 70¢
Comprehensive incon $ 6506¢ $ 36,65 $ 73,95

The accompanying notes are an integral part oket@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderSquity
(In thousands)

Balance as of
January 2, 201
Net income
Other

comprehensive
income
Stock issuances
under employe:
plans, net of
shares withhelc
for taxes
Income tax benef
from employee
stock-based
awards
Repurchases of
common stocl
Stock-based
compensatiol

Balance as of
January 1, 201
Net income
Other

comprehensive
income
Stock issuances
under employe:
plans, net of
shares withhelc
for taxes
Income tax benef
from employee
stock-based
awards
Repurchases of
common stocl
Stock-based
compensatiol

Balance as of
December 31,
2011
Net income
Other
comprehensive
income

Stock issuances
under employe:
plans, net of
shares withhelc
for taxes

Income tax benef
from employee
stock-based
awards

Repurchases of
common stocl

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Number Par Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'
of Shares Value Capital Earnings Loss Equity

4577 $ 5 $ 128,26 $ 505,88' $ (4,35¢) $ 629,79¢
— — — 73,24 — 73,24:

— — — — 70€ 70€
1,45: — 18,05¢ — — 18,05¢
— — 3,27 — — 3,271
(3,297) (1)  (140,33) — — (140,33)
_ _ 40,68¢ — — 40,68
43,93 4 49,94" 579,12° (3,64%) 625,43(
_ — — 35,47: — 35,47:

— — — — 1,181 1,181
1,29( — 7,66( — — 7,66(
— — 2,707 — — 2,70%
(3,15  — (82,11) (27,946 — (110,067
— — 36,55: — — 36,55
42,06¢ 4 14,74¢ 586,65: (2,467) 598,93¢
- — 6354 — 63,54¢

— — — — 1,521 1,521
1,56( — 15,14¢ — — 15,14¢
— — 1,67¢ — — 1,67¢
(1,749 — (52,617 (9,409) — (62,019



Stock-based
compensatiol — — 31,16 — — 31,161
Balance as of
December 29,
2012 4187¢ $ 4 $ 10,12: $ 640,797 $ (94€) $ 649,97

The accompanying notes are an integral part oket@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011

Operating Activities
Net income $ 63,54¢ $ 35,47. $ 73,24:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash pravioe

operating activities

Depreciation of property and equipm 13,62 13,57( 11,797
Net gain on the purchase of property and equipi (8,457) — —
Amortization of other intangible assets and otleset 14,15¢ 11,03( 7,49¢
Impairment of lon-lived asset: 70¢€ 1,322 —
Stocl-based compensation expel 31,17¢ 36,11¢ 40,32«
Income tax benefit from employee st-based award 1,827 2,81¢ 3,29¢
Excess income tax benefit from employee stock-bz
awards (1,299 (2,409 (2,417
Deferred income taxe 4,72¢ (44%) (552)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (20,749 (8,562) 11,34
Inventories (13,05¢) 5,33¢ (7,81))
Prepaid expenses and other as 10,62¢ (5,949 (5,300
Accounts payabl 7,217 (2,176 (777)
Accrued expense (3,812) (1,320 (2,590
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 4,62: (1,919 (2,349
Income taxe: (7,81¢€) 5,85¢ (7,779
Net cash provided by operating activit 97,05( 88,74: 117,93
Investing Activities
Purchases of availal-for-sale investment (192,45() (178,67¢  (357,77)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable
securities 235,51 193,47: 352,77!
Purchases of property and equipm (102,049 (8,690 (13,85()
Purchases of other ass (8,50¢) (4,019 (8,372
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acqt (71,857 (27,267) (28,02)
Net cash used in investing activiti (139,336 (25,177) (55,24)

Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net oeshs

withheld for taxes 15,14¢ 7,66( 18,05¢
Excess income tax benefit from employee stock-basi

awards 1,29¢ 2,404 2,412
Repurchases of common stc (62,019 (110,069 (140,33)
Proceeds from issuance of l--term debt, ne 98,32¢ — —
Payments on del (7,179 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 52,74¢ (107,17) (119,869
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivs 10,46: (43,607 (57,170
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 94,96¢ 138,56 195,73
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 105,42t $ 94,96¢ $ 138,56
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest paic $ 677 $ 3B $ 90
Income taxes pai $ 23,56 $ 8,241 $ 20,78(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oket@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 29, 2012

1. Description of Business

Silicon Laboratories Inc. (the "Companyd)Delaware corporation, develops and markets méxgaal analog intensive integrated circuits
(ICs) for a broad range of applications for gloivarkets. Within the semiconductor industry, the @any is known as a "fabless" company
meaning that the ICs are manufactured by thirdydarindry semiconductor companies.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolioia

The Company prepares financial statememts ©2- or 53-week fiscal year that ends on thar8ay closest to December 31. Fiscal 2012,
2011 and 2010 were 5&eek years and ended on December 29, 2012, Dec&hp2011 and January 1, 2011, respectively. Therapanying
Consolidated Financial Statements include the adsaaf the Company and its wholly owned subsidgrfdl significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminateshsotidation.

Foreign Currency Transactior

The Company's foreign subsidiaries are idened to be extensions of the U.S. Company. Thetfonal currency of the foreign
subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. Accordingly, ga@msl losses resulting from remeasuring transactlensminated in currencies other than U.S.
dollars are included in other income (expense)jm#te Consolidated Statements of Income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfénzitthe amounts reported in the financial statesiand accompanying notes. Among
the significant estimates affecting the financtatements are those related to inventories, staskedcompensation, investments in auctaie-
securities, acquired intangible assets, goodwiligtiived assets and income taxes. Actual resaligddiffer from those estimates, and such
differences could be material to the financialestants.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The fair values of the Company's finaniatruments are recorded using a hierarchal disotoSamework based upon the level of
subjectivity of the inputs used in measuring asanttliabilities. The three levels are describeldwe

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices iivacharkets for identical assets or liabilitiests measurement date.

Level 2—Inputs are inputs other than quoted pricelided within Level 1 that are observable for #sset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3—Inputs are unobservable for the assetbility and are developed based on the best infoomavailable in the
circumstances, which might include the Company's data.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 29, 2012 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cepbdits, money market funds and investments in skhtrities with original maturities of nin
days or less when purchased.

Investment:

The Company's investments typically havgioal maturities greater than ninety days as efdhte of purchase and are classified as eith
available-for-sale or trading securities. Investtaen available-forsale securities are reported at fair value, witltealized gains and losses,
of tax, recorded as a component of accumulated otiraprehensive loss in the Consolidated BalaneeSinvestments in trading securities
are reported at fair value, with both realized anckalized gains and losses recorded in other ingqexpense), net in the Consolidated
Statement of Income. Investments in which the Campeas the ability and intent, if necessary, tailigite in order to support its current
operations (including those with contractual maiesigreater than one year from the date of pusha® classified as short-term.

The Company reviews its available-for-salestments as of the end of each reporting pddodther-than-temporary declines in fair
value based on the specific identification methidte Company considers various factors in determgimihether an impairment is other-than-
temporary, including the severity and durationha impairment, changes in underlying credit ratifigeecasted recovery, its intent to sell or
the likelihood that it would be required to sektimvestment before its anticipated recovery inkevalue and the probability that the
scheduled cash payments will continue to be maden/the Company concludes that an other-than-teanponpairment has occurred, the
Company assesses whether it intends to sell theiseor if it is more likely than not that it wilbe required to sell the security before recovery
If either of these two conditions is met, the Compeecognizes a charge in earnings equal to theeatifference between the security's
amortized cost basis and its fair value. If the @any does not intend to sell a security and ibismore likely than not that it will be required
to sell the security before recovery, the unredlipss is separated into an amount representingréit loss, which is recognized in earnings,
and the amount related to all other factors, wisatecorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uses derivative financial insents to manage certain exposures to the vatiabflinterest rates. The Company's objec
is to offset increases and decreases in expens@img from changes in interest rates with gaimd l@sses on the derivative contracts, thereb
reducing volatility of earnings. The Company doesuse derivative contracts for speculative purpo$be effective portion of the gain or loss
on interest rate swaps is recorded in accumulateat gomprehensive loss as a separate componstaaiholders' equity and is subsequently
recognized in earnings when the hedged exposwetaféarnings. Cash flows from derivatives aresifiagl according to the nature of the cast
receipt or payment in the Consolidated Stateme@ash Flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of adstermined using the first-in, firstit method, or market. The Company writes dowrctreying
value of inventory to net realizable value for esstied
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 29, 2012 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

obsolescence or unmarketable inventory based uggmgtions about the age of inventory, future dehzamd market conditions. Inventory
impairment charges establish a new cost basisif@nitory and charges are not subsequently revessadome even if circumstances later
suggest that increased carrying amounts are regioleer

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment are stated at nespf accumulated depreciation. Depreciation mmated using the straight-line method over
the useful lives of the assets ranging from thoeféve years. Leasehold improvements are depretmter the contractual lease period or their
useful life, whichever is shorter.

In fiscal 2012, the Company purchased #idifies it had previously leased for its headdgra in Austin, Texas. The buildings are loce
on land which is leased through 2099 from a thadyp The rents for these ground leases were mtdpathe term of the leases by the previ
lessee. The buildings and leasehold interest inrgideases are being depreciated on a straighbdisis over their estimated useful lives of
40 years and 86 years, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets

Purchased intangible assets are stateasgtret of accumulated amortization, and are drsaiusing the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, ranging from two to twepears. Fair values are determined primarily usirggihcome approach, in which the Comg.
projects future expected cash flows and appliespgmopriate discount rate.

Long-lived assets "held and used" by thenany are reviewed for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate tha
their net book value may not be recoverable. Whieh $actors and circumstances exist, the Compampaces the projected undiscounted
future cash flows associated with the related amsgtoup of assets over their estimated usefakliagainst their respective carrying amounts
Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of #meying amount over the fair value of those asasntkis recorded in the period in which the
determination was made.

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewatleast annually by the Company for possible impant. The goodwill impairment test is a
two-step process. The first step of the impairnagatlysis compares the fair value of the reportinig to the net book value of the reporting
unit. In determining fair value, several valuatimethodologies are allowed, although quoted markeép are the best evidence of fair value. |
the results of the first step demonstrate than#iebook value is greater than the fair value Gbenpany must proceed to step two of the
analysis. Step two of the analysis compares thdiechfair value of goodwill to its carrying amoutitthe carrying amount of goodwill exceeds
its implied fair value, an impairment loss is recizgd equal to that excess. The Company tests gbddmimpairment annually as of the first
day of its fourth fiscal quarter and in interim jogls if events occur that would indicate that therging value of goodwill may be impaired.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenues are generated almost exclusiyedales of the Company's ICs. The Company recogmeaeenue when all of the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehatan
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 29, 2012 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goods has oedyB) the sales price is fixed or determinabld, 4ncollectibility is reasonably assured.
Generally, revenue from product sales to directauers and contract manufacturers is recognized gpigpment.

A portion of the Company's sales are madiidtributors under agreements allowing certaihts of return and price protection related to
the final selling price to the end customers. Adaagly, the Company defers revenue and cost ofmes®n such sales until the distributors
the product to the end customers. The net balahdeferred revenue less deferred cost of revensmcaged with inventory shipped to a
distributor but not yet sold to an end customeerded in the deferred income on shipments toildigors liability on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Such net deferred income balaneetethe Company's estimate of the impact of sigiireturn and price protection.

Shipping and Handling
Shipping and handling costs are class#ied component of cost of revenues in the Condetidatatements of Income.
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has stock-based compensatims plvhich are more fully described in Note $®ck-Based Compensatiomhe Company
accounts for those plans using a fair-value metiratirecognizes the expense in its Consolidate@i8#att of Income.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs are expeassadurred. Research and development expensisisomsmarily of personnel-related
expenses, including stock-based compensation, hasvweew product masks, external consulting amdes costs, equipment tooling,
equipment depreciation, amortization of intangésets, and an allocated portion of our occupaostscAssets purchased to support the
Company's ongoing research and development aegwtie capitalized when related to products whistelachieved technological feasibility
or have an alternative future use, and are amdrtzer their estimated useful lives.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incuikdsertising expenses were $1.7 million, $1.6 rilliand $1.4 million in fiscal 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes usiagisset and liability method whereby deferredatset and liability account balances are
determined based on differences between finanggadrting and the tax bases of assets and liabikitiel are measured using the enacted tax
laws and related rates that will be in effect whiendifferences are expected to reverse. Theserelif€es result in deferred tax assets and
liabilities, which are included in the Company'snSolidated Balance Sheet. The Company then asgbssidselinood that the deferred tax
assets will be realized. A valuation allowancesitablished against deferred tax assets to thetakteiCompany believes that it is more
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 29, 2012 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

likely than not that the deferred tax assets will loe realized, taking into consideration the lefdtistorical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods in whichtdraporary differences are deductible.

Uncertain tax positions must meet a mdtelithan-not threshold to be recognized in thatiitial statements and the tax benefits
recognized are measured based on the largest bratfhas a greater than 50% likelihood of beewized upon final settlement. See further
discussion in Note 1%ncome Taxes

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Stards Board (FASB) issued FASB Accounting Standbiaidate (ASU) No. 2012-02,
Intangible—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)—Testing Indefiiteed Intangible Assets for ImpairmemASU 2012-02 permits an entity to
first assess qualitative factors to determine wéreithis more likely than not that an indefinitedd intangible asset is impaired as a basis for
determining whether it is necessary to performeiaentitative impairment test in accordance withtSpiz 35030. If an entity concludes that
is not more likely than not that the indefinitedivintangible asset is impaired, then no furthéoads required. If an entity concludes
otherwise, then it is required to determine thealue of the indefinite-lived intangible assetlgperform the quantitative impairment test.
ASU 2012-02 is effective for annual and interim aiyment tests performed for fiscal years beginrmifigr September 15, 2012, with early
adoption permitted. The adoption of this ASU is expected to have a material impact on the Compdimgncial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued FASB AR 2011-11Balance Sheet (Topic 210)—Disclosures about Offigeftssets and
Liabilities . ASU 2011-11 requires an entity to disclose infation about offsetting and related arrangemenén#ble users of its financial
statements to understand the effect of those agraagts on its financial position. Entities are isgpito disclose both gross and net
information about these instruments. ASU 2011-dffisctive for annual reporting periods beginnimgas after January 1, 2013, and interim
periods within those annual periods. The adoptiathis ASU is not expected to have a material intjggcthe Company's financial statements.

F-12




Table of Contents

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 29, 2012 (Continued)

3. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the compigtatof basic and diluted earnings per share (inshods, except per share data):

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Net income $ 63,54¢ $ 35,47 $ 73,24:
Shares used in computing basic earnings per ! 42,13¢ 43,42 44 ,84¢
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options and other stc-based award 97C 1,411 1,89
Shares used in computing diluted earnings per ¢ 43,10¢ 44,83: 46,74
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 151 $ 0.8z $ 1.6:
Diluted $ 147 $ 0.7¢ $ 1.57

For fiscal years ended December 29, 20E2ehber 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, approxim@t&lgnillion, 0.4 million and 0.6 million
shares, respectively, were not included in thetelililearnings per share calculation since the shaesanti-dilutive.

4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The Company's cash equivalents and shiortitevestments as of December 29, 2012 consistedrpbrate bonds, money market funds,
municipal bonds, U.S. Treasury bills, variable-rdéenand notes, U.S. government bonds, asset-baekedties and international government
bonds. The Company's long-term investments comukaftauction-rate securities. Early in fiscal 2088¢tions for many of the Company's
auction-rate securities failed because sell ordreseded buy orders. As of December 29, 2012, tmep@ny held $12.5 million par value
auction-rate securities, all of which have expearazhfailed auctions. The underlying assets of éoeisties consisted of student loans and
municipal bonds, of which $10.5 million were guassd by the U.S. government and the remaining $@lidn were privately insured. As of
December 29, 2012, $4.5 million of the auction-is&eurities had credit ratings of AAA, $6.0 millibad credit ratings of AA and $2.0 million
had a credit rating of A. These securities haveragtual maturity dates ranging from 2033 to 2048 with current yields of 0.23% to 1.71%
per year at December 29, 2012. The Company isviegeihe underlying cash flows on all of its auati@te securities. The principal amounts
associated with failed auctions are not expectdzbtaccessible until a successful auction occhesissuer redeems the securities, a buyer is
found outside of the auction process or the undaeglgecurities mature. The Company is unable tdiptéf these funds will become available
before their maturity dates.

The Company does not expect to need atoele capital represented by any of its auctida-sacurities prior to their maturities. The
Company does not intend to sell, and believesribtsmore likely than not that it will be requiremisell, its auction-rate securities before their
anticipated recovery in market value or final gsttént at the underlying par value. The Companyebes that the credit ratings and credit
support of the security issuers indicate that theeye the ability to settle
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4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Contindg

the securities at par value. As such, the Compasydetermined that no other-than-temporary impaitriusses existed as of December 29,
2012.

The Company's cash, cash equivalents aredtments consisted of the following (in thousands)

December 29, 201,

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Losses Gains Fair Value
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash on han $ 56,69 $ — 3 — $ 56,69(
Available-for-sale securities
U.S. Treasury bill: 25,04¢ — 1 25,05(
Money market fund 22,68¢ — 1 22,68t
Municipal bonds 1,00¢ — — 1,00¢
Total availabl-for-sale securitie 48,73¢ — 2 48,73¢
Total cash and cash equivale $ 105,42: $ — 3 2 $ 105,42
Short-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate bond $ 59,08¢ $ B $ 267 $ 59,35
Municipal bonds 45,64¢ @) 5C 45,68¢
Variable-rate demand note 41,78t — — 41,78t
Asse-backed securitie 15,05¢ — 11 15,06¢
U.S. government bonc 12,63¢ — 25 12,66:
International government bon 1,991 — 17 2,00¢
Total shor-term investment $ 176,200 $ 12 $ 37C $ 176,56!
Long-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Auction rate securitie $ 12,52 $ (1,156 $ — $ 11,36¢
Total lon¢-term investment $ 12,52 $ (1,156 $ — $ 11,36¢
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4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Contindg

December 31, 201

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Losses Gains Fair Value
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on han $ 44,110 $ — $ — $ 4411
Available-for-sale securities
Money market fund 50,85! — — 50,85!
Total cash and cash equivale $ 94,96 $ — 3 — $ 94,96«
Short-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate bond $ 75,18¢ $ (369) $ 234 $ 75,06(
Municipal bonds 56,91¢ (12 81 56,98
Variable-rate demand note 41,28( — — 41,28(
U.S. government agen 19,82( (12 28 19,83¢
U.S. Treasury bill: 8,60( — — 8,60(
Asse-backed securitie 5,74: 5) 1 5,73¢
U.S. government bonc 2,501 — — 2,507
Certificates of depos 1,57(C — — 1,57C
International government bon 95( — — 95(
Total shor-term investment $ 212,57: $ (392) $ 344 $ 212,52t
Long-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Auction rate securitie $ 19,228 $ (1,74%) $ — $ 1747
Total lon¢-term investment $ 19,228 $§ (1,74%) $ — $ 1747

The available-for-sale investments thatenara continuous unrealized loss position, aggegbhy length of time that individual securities
have been in a continuous loss position, were limafe (in thousands):

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
As of December 29, 201 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Municipal bonds $ 17,15 $ @ $ — 9 — $ 17,15. $ @)
Auction rate securitie — — 11,36¢ (1,15¢)  11,36¢ (1,156
Corporate bond 9,54: 5) — — 9,54: (5)

$ 2669 $  (12) $ 11,36¢ $ (1,156 $ 38,06: $ (1,166
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4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Contindg

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
As of December 31, 201 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Corporate bond $ 2543 $ (369 $ — 3 — $ 2543t $ (369
Auction rate securitie — — 17,47 (1,749 17,47 (1,749
Municipal bonds 10,431 (12 — — 10,437 (12
U.S. government agen 5,772 12 — — 5,772 (12)
Asse-backed securitie 4,53¢ 5) — — 4,53¢ (5)

$ 46,18¢ $ (392 $ 17.47. $ (1,746 $ 63,660 $ (2,140

The gross unrealized losses as of Dece2the2012 and December 31, 2011 were due primaritiie illiquidity of the Company's
auction-rate securities and, to a lesser exterfiamges in market interest rates.

The following summarizes the contractualentying maturities of the Company's available-gafe investments at December 29, 2012 (ir
thousands):

Fair

Cost Value
Due in one year or le: $ 93,38¢ $ 93,45(
Due after one year through ten ye 95,11" 95,41¢
Due after ten yeal 48,96( 47,80:

$ 237,46t $ 236,67(

5. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to interest ratufhtions in the normal course of its businesduding through its Credit Facilities. The
interest payments on the facility are calculateédgia variable-rate of interest. The Company hasred into an interest rate swap agreement
with a notional value of $100 million (equal to thii amount borrowed under the Term Loan Facilanyd, effectively, converted the LIBOR
portion of the variable-rate interest paymentsxed-rate interest payments through July 2017 ifthéurity date of the Term Loan Facility).
The Company's interest rate swap agreement israsid) and qualifies as a cash flow hedge.

The Company's previous swap agreementawitbtional value of $50.1 million was terminatedSeptember 28, 2012 in connection with
the Company's purchase of its corporate headqadeeitities. See Note Hcquisitions, for additional information.

The Company estimates the fair values divdtives based on quoted prices and market oblskeremta of similar instruments. If the Te
Loan Facility or the interest rate swap agreemetgriminated prior to maturity, the fair value loé interest rate swap recorded in accumulate
other comprehensive loss may be recognized in tdms@idated Statement of Income based on an assaetsirthe agreements at the time of

termination. The termination of the Company's sagmgement with a notional value of $50.1 millioauked in its remaining fair value of $(
million that
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5. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)
was previously recorded in accumulated other cohrgeive loss to be reclassified into earnings dyfiscal 2012.

The Company measures the effectiveneds oash flow hedge by comparing the change invedire of the hedged item with the change
in fair value of the interest rate swap. The Comypatognizes ineffective portions of the hedgeyalt as amounts not included in the
assessment of effectiveness, in the Consolidate@rgent of Income. As of December 29, 2012, nagodf the gains or losses from the
Company's hedging instrument was excluded fronagflsessment of effectiveness. There was no hedfecimneeness for any of the periods
presented.

The Company's derivative financial instrumseconsisted of the following (in thousands):

Fair Value
December 29 December 31
Balance Sheet Locatior 2012 2011
Interest rate sway ~ Other norcurrent liabilities  $ 65¢ $ 1,99¢

The before-tax effect of derivative instemts in cash flow hedging relationships was ag¥l (in thousands):

Loss Reclassifiec

Loss Recognized ir Location from Accumulated

OCI on Derivatives of Loss OCl into Income

(Effective Portion) Reclassified (Effective Portion)

during the Year Ended into Income during the Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1, December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
Rent
Interest rate swa $ (956) $ (429 % (2,640 expense  $ (2,199% (2,237)$ (3,32)

Interest
expense (98) — —

The Company expects to reclassify $0.5iomilbf its interest rate swap losses included tuawlated other comprehensive loss as of
December 29, 2012 into earnings in the next 12 hxnthich is offset by lower interest payments.
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following summarizes the valuationtté Company's financial instruments (in thousantsg. tables do not include either cash on
hand or assets and liabilities that are measurhistatrical cost or any basis other than fair value

Fair Value Measurements
at December 29, 2012 Usin

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Cash Equivalents:

U.S. Treasury bill: $ 25,05( $ — $ — $ 25,05(

Money market fund 22,68¢ — — 22,68t

Municipal bonds — 1,00(¢ — 1,00¢
Total cash equivalen $ 47,73¢ $ 1,00C $ — $ 48,73t
Short-term Investments:

Corporate bond $ — $ 59,35. $ — $ 59,35

Municipal bonds — 45,68¢ — 45,68¢

Variable-rate demand note — 41,78¢ — 41,78¢

Asse-backed securitie — 15,06¢ — 15,06¢

U.S. government bonc 12,66: — — 12,66

International government

bonds — 2,00¢ — 2,00¢
Total shor-term investment $ 12,66 $ 163,90: $ — $ 176,56!
Long-term Investments:

Auction rate securitie $ — % — % 11,36¢ $ 11,36¢
Total lon¢-term investment $ — $ — 3 11,36¢ $ 11,36¢
Total $ 60,39¢ $ 164,90. $ 11,36¢ $ 236,67(
Liabilities:

Derivative instrument $ — % 65¢ $ — 3% 65¢€

Contingent consideratic — — 2,75( 2,75(
Total $ — $ 65¢ $ 2,75C $ 3,40¢
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements
at December 31, 2011 Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Cash Equivalents:

Money market fund $ 50,85: $ — 3 — $ 50,85
Total cash equivalen $ 50,85. $ — 3 — $ 50,85
Short-term Investments:

Corporate bond $ — % 75,06( $ — $ 75,06(

Municipal bonds — 56,98« — 56,98«

Variable-rate demand note — 41,28( — 41,28(

U.S. government agen: — 19,83¢ — 19,83¢

U.S. Treasury bill: 8,60( — — 8,60(

Asse-backed securitie — 5,73¢ — 5,73¢

U.S. government bonc 2,507 — — 2,501

Certificates of depos — 1,57C — 1,57C

International government

bonds — 95C — 95C
Total shor-term investment $ 11,107 $ 201,41¢ $ — $ 212,52t
Long-term Investments:

Auction rate securitie $ — 3 — 3 17,477 $ 17,47
Total lon¢-term investment $ — % — 3 17,470 $ 17,47
Total $ 61,95¢ $ 201,41¢ $ 17,477 $ 280,85
Liabilities:

Derivative instrument $ — 3 1,99¢ $ — $ 1,99¢

Contingent consideratic — — 87€ 87¢€
Total $ — % 1,99¢ $ 87¢ $ 2,87¢

The Company's cash equivalents and shortitevestments that are classified as Level 1 aheed using quoted prices and other relevan
information generated by market transactions inmglvdentical assets. Cash equivalents and short-itevestments classified as Level 2 are
valued using non-binding market consensus pricatsatte corroborated with observable market datategumarket prices for similar
instruments in active markets; or pricing modelghsas a discounted cash flow model, with all digaint inputs derived from or corroborated
with observable market data. Investments classd&tevel 3 are valued using a discounted cashrfiodel. The assumptions used in
preparing the discounted cash flow model includenedes for interest rates, amount of cash flowpgeted holding periods of the securities
and a discount to reflect the Company's inabibtfiquidate the securities.
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Company's derivative instruments ateadiusing a discounted cash flow model. The assongused in preparing the discounted
cash flow model include quoted interest swap ratesmarket observable data of similar instrumeriie. Company's contingent consideration
is valued using a probability weighted discountasicflow model. The assumptions used in prepahiagliscounted cash flow model include
estimates for outcomes if milestone goals are aehiethe probability of achieving each outcome disdount rates.

The following summarizes quantitative imf@tion about Level 3 fair value measurements.

Auction rate securities

Fair Value at
December 29, 201 Weighted
(000s) Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Average
$11,369 Discounted cash flon ~ Estimated yielc 1.24%

Expected holding peric 10 years
Estimated discount ra 2.78%

The Company has followed an establishestiatl control procedure used in valuing auctior s#curities. The procedure involves sev
layers of the Company's finance management inriaéysis of valuation techniques and evaluationrafhservable inputs commonly used by
market participants to price similar instrumentsj avhich have been demonstrated to provide reas®eabmates of prices obtained in actual
market transactions. Outputs from the valuatiorcpss are assessed against various market soureaghdy are available, including
marketplace quotes, recent trades of similar iillcgecurities, benchmark indices and independecinhgrservices. The technique and
unobservable input parameters may be recalibragaddically to achieve an appropriate estimatiotheffair value of the securities.

Significant changes in any of the unobskelleranputs used in the fair value measurement ofi@w rate securities in isolation could result
in a significantly lower or higher fair value measment. An increase in expected yield would reisudt higher fair value measurement,
whereas an increase in expected holding periogtonated discount rate would result in a lower fa@ilue measurement. Generally, a chany
the assumptions used for expected holding periadégesmpanied by a directionally similar changehim dssumptions used for estimated yield
and discount rate.
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Contingent consideration

Fair Value at
December 29, 201 Weighted-
(000s) Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Average Range

$2,750 Probability weighted  Estimated outcomes if $2.8 million  $1.2 million -

discounted cash flow milestone goals are
achievec

Estimated probability of 33%
achieving each outcon

Estimated discount ra 5.10%

$4.2 million

25% - 50%

n/a

The Company has followed an establishegttral control procedure used in valuing contingemtsideration. The valuation of contingent
consideration is based on a weighted-average disedwash flows model. The model relies primarilyestimates of outcomes if milestones
are achieved, the probability of achieving eacltoue and discount rates. The fair value of thisatidn is estimated on a quarterly basis

through a collaborative effort by the Company'esamarketing and finance departments.

Significant changes in any of the unobsielevinputs used in the fair value measurement ofisgent consideration in isolation could
result in a significantly lower or higher fair valuA change in projected outcomes if milestone gast achieved would be accompanied by a
directionally similar change in fair value. A chanig discount rate would be accompanied by a doeally opposite change in fair value.

The following summarizes the activity inMe¢ 3 financial instruments for the years endeddddoer 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 (ir

thousands):
Assets
Year Ended
December 29 December 31

Auction Rate Securities 2012 2011
Beginning balanc $ 17,477 $ 17,50(
Settlement: (6,700 (500
Gains included in other comprehensive incc 592 A77
Ending balanc $ 11,36¢ $ 17,47:
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Liabilities
Year Ended
December 29 December 31

Contingent Consideration (1) 2012 2011
Beginning balanc $ 87€ $ 1,78(
Issues 4,004 1,02t
Gain recognized in earnings |( (2,130 (1,929
Balance at December 29, 2C $ 2,75C $ 87¢€
Net gain for the year included in earnings attrnle to continger

consideration still held at the end of the per $ 1,25¢ $ 1,92¢

Q) In connection with the acquisition of Ember, Spadttinear and ChipSensors, the Company recordedhgemt
consideration based upon the achievement of cartdéstone goals. Changes to the fair value ofingent consideratio
due to changes in assumptions used in preparindisheunted cash flow model are recorded in selljemeral and
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statenfdncome.

(2)  The Company reduced the estimated fair value dfingent consideration because certain milestonésgeare either not
achieved or were expected to be achieved at a louteome

Fair values of other financial instrumer

The fair value of the Company's Term Loagility approximates its carrying values due tovhdable interest rate feature of this
instrument. The Company's other financial instrutseincluding cash, accounts receivable and aceqmyable, are recorded at amounts that
approximate their fair values due to their shorturities.

7. Balance Sheet Details

The following tables show the details dested Consolidated Balance Sheet items (in thalsan

Inventories
December 29 December 31
2012 2011
Work in progres: $ 42,10: $ 28,02!
Finished good 7,47¢ 6,75¢

$ 49,57¢ $ 34,77¢
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Prepaid Expenses and Other Current As

Distributor advance
Other

Property and Equipmel

Buildings
Equipment

Computers and purchased softw
Leasehold interest in ground lea

Furniture and fixture

Leasehold improvemen

Accumulated depreciatic

Accrued Expense

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 29, 2012 (Continued)

December 29 December 31

2012 2011
$ 21,26( $ 23,22:

20,177 20,64¢
$ 41,437 $ 43,86

December 29 December 31

2012 2011
$  90,90( $ —
48,21 43,93
27,29 28,37:
23,84( —
3,12¢ 3,35¢
7,581 21,83:
200,96 97,49:
(65,699 (72,357
$ 13527. $ 2514

December 29 December 31

2012 2011
Accrued compensation and bene $ 22,29¢ $ 17,94¢
Other 18,11: 12,90¢

$ 40,41 $ 30,85}

Other Non-current Liabilities

Acquired unfavorable leas $
Unrecognized tax benefi
Software license accrue

Other

December 29 December 31

2012 2011
11,79¢ $ —
4,36¢ 10,94
1,95¢ 6,04
2,50¢ 7,224
$ 20,61t $ 24,21«
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8. Risks and Uncertainties
Financial Instrument:

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjthe Company to significant concentrations eflitrrisk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
investments, accounts receivable and derivativies.Jompany places its cash equivalents and invessrpeimarily in corporate bonds,
municipal bonds, variable-rate demand notes, Ur&adury bills, money market funds, asset-backedriies, U.S. government bonds, auction
rate securities and international government bo@dscentrations of credit risk with respect to astus receivable are primarily due to
customers with large outstanding balances. The @oglip customers that accounted for greater thandf@#counts receivable consisted of
the following:

December 29 December 31
2012 2011
Edom Technolog: 23% 29%
Avnet 12% 13%

The Company performs periodic credit eviiduns of its customers' financial condition and gatly requires no collateral from its
customers. The Company provides an allowance fampial credit losses based upon the expectedotibiiity of such receivables. Losses
have not been significant for any of the periodsspnted.

Distributor Advance:

On sales to distributors, the Company'srgayt terms often require the distributor to setttfeounts owed to the Company for an amou
excess of their ultimate cost. The Company's gaies to its distributors may be higher than theoant that the distributors will ultimately o
the Company because distributors often negotiate peductions after purchasing the product fromm@ompany and such reductions are oftel
significant. These negotiated price discounts atggranted until the distributor sells the prodiecthe end customer, which may occur after th
distributor has paid the original invoice amountite Company. Payment of invoices prior to recg\an associated discount can have an
adverse impact on the working capital of the Comyfsadistributors. Accordingly, the Company has ezdl@nto agreements with certain
distributors whereby it advances cash to the thistors to reduce the distributor's working capiggjuirements. The advance amounts are bas
on the distributor's inventory balance, and arestdp quarterly. Such amounts are recorded in jprep@enses and other current assets in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The terms of thesenadgare set forth in binding legal agreementsaa@dinsecured, bear no interest on
unsettled balances and are due upon demand. Téenagnts governing these advances can be cancglttd Eompany at any time.

Suppliers

A significant portion of the Company's pucts are fabricated by Taiwan Semiconductor Mariufagy Co. (TSMC) or its affiliates. The
inability of TSMC to deliver wafers to the Compaary a timely basis could impact the production ef @ompany's products for a substantial
period of time, which could have a material advefect on the Company's business, financial camd#énd results of operations.
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8. Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
Customers

The Company sells directly to end customaigtributors and contract manufacturers. AlthotlghCompany actually sells the products
and is paid by, distributors and contract manufact) the Company refers to the end customer asistomer. None of the Company's contrac
manufacturers accounted for greater than 10% afmes during fiscal 2012, 2011 or 2010. The Compagryd customers and distributors that
accounted for greater than 10% of revenue considttte following:

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011

End Customer
Samsung’ 19% 13% *x
Distributors
Edom Technolog: 22% 24% 28%
Avnet 11% 12% 14%
Macnica xk 10% xk
* Samsung's purchases were across a variety of frachas.
** Less than 10% of reven!

9. Acquisitions
Ember

On July 3, 2012, the Company acquired En@lmeporation, a privately held company. Ember'sipots integrate high-performance, low-
power 2.4 GHz wireless ICs with reliable and scial@ftware into a flexible and robust networkingtform.

The Company acquired Ember for approxinyg$@9.0 million, including contingent consideratinith an estimated fair value of
$4.0 million at the date of acquisition. The cogént consideration is payable on a dollar for ddiasis to the extent that revenue of the
acquired products exceeds $27.0 million over ay@a-period from the beginning of the third fisqahrter of 2012 through the end of the
second fiscal quarter of 2013.

The Company recorded the purchase of Enrkiag the acquisition method of accounting and atinogly, recognized the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at their fair values athefdate of the acquisition. The results of Embmstsrations are included in the Company's
consolidated results of operations beginning ordtte of the acquisition. Pro forma informatiorated to this acquisition has not been
presented because it would not be materially diffefrom amounts reported. Acquisition-related segtre not significant.

The Company believes that this strategipiaition provides it with the technology and saite expertise required to enable the low-
power mesh sensor networks being deployed todaynite range of residential, commercial and indalsépplications. These factors
contributed to a purchase price that was in exgB#i®e fair value of the net assets acquired asd, @sult, the Company recorded
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)

goodwill. The goodwill is not deductible for taxnposes. The purchase price was allocated as foliomtousands):

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)

Intangible asset:
In-process research and developn $ 14,81( Not amortizec
Developed technolog 17,80( 11
Customer relationshif 5,62( 9
Trademarks 91C 12

39,14(

Cash and cash equivalel 3,11¢

Accounts receivabl 1,92¢

Inventories 4,74¢

Other current asse 324

Goodwill 14,77

Non-current deferred tax assets, 16,44¢

Other nor-current asset 1,77¢

Current liabilities (3,287

Total purchase pric $ 78,97:

In-process research and development (IPR&Pjesents acquired technology that had not aetliachnological feasibility as of the
acquisition date and had no alternative future Tibe.IPR&D recorded in connection with the acqigsitof Ember consisted of a low-power
RF transceiver. The fair value of this technolog@swletermined using the income approach. The discate applicable to the cash flows was
12.5%. The remaining research and developmenttgfifociude additional design, integration and tegtiThe estimated cost to complete the
IPR&D as of the acquisition date was approxima$dlg.2 million. Such costs have been consistent thethCompany's assumptions at the time
of the acquisition. The significant risks assodatgth the successful completion of this projecude the Company's potential inability to
finish the product designs, produce working modeld gain customer acceptance. The Company doexpett the products derived from this
technology to begin to contribute to revenues gadiscal 2013.

Corporate Headquarters Buildings

The Company leased facilities at 400 W.aE€&havez ("400 WCC") and 200 W. Cesar Chavez (\@X") in Austin, Texas for its
corporate headquarters. During the terms of theekgahe Company had options to purchase the bgddor approximately $44.3 million for
400 WCC and $50.1 million for 200 WCC. On Septenf®r2012, the Company exercised such options archased the facilities.

The buildings are located on land whicle&ésed through 2099 from a third party. The reotstese ground leases were prepaid for the
term of the leases by the previous lessee. Thiflfir of each building was leased to the samedtparty for the term of the ground leases.
base rents for
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)
the first floor leases were prepaid to the previowser of the buildings. Portions of the remainflogrs were also leased to other tenants.

The Company determined that the purchaseeofacilities represented a business combinatimdler the acquisition method of
accounting, the assets acquired and liabilitiearassl were recorded at their fair values as of #ie df the acquisition. The purchase price wa
allocated as follows (in thousands):

Amount
Buildings $ 90,90(
Leasehold interest in ground lea 23,84(
Acquired unfavorable leas (11,92%
Leas«related charge (8)
Net gain on purchas (8,457%)
Total purchase pric $ 94,35(

The buildings and leasehold interest irugbleases will be depreciated on a stralgig-basis over their estimated useful lives ofyé@rs
and 86 years, respectively. Acquired unfavoraldeds represent the difference between contracinahom rental payments due under
previously-existing leases in each building andrtfaeket rates of those same leases. This amounteeasded in other noodrrent liabilities ir
the Consolidated Balance Sheet and will be amaltiagental income over the estimated terms ofdhses.

The purchase of the facilities resulted imet gain of approximately $8.5 million, which wasorded in selling, general and administra
expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Incomme gain resulted primarily because the assets @etiand liabilities assumed were recor
at their fair values as of the date of the acqoisjtwhich was substantially higher than the puseharices of the facilities. The purchase prices
were fixed at the beginning of the two leases indi&2006 and March 2008. While market prices fahsiacilities increased over the terms of
the leases, the purchase prices remained the same.

Spectra Linear

On January 25, 2011, the Company acquipstt®a Linear, Inc., a late-stage private compdferiag integrated timing solutions. The
Company acquired Spectra Linear for approximat@g.& million, including contingent considerationthivan estimated fair value of
$1.0 million at the date of acquisition. In additighe Company assumed approximately $8.0 millioBpectra Linear net liabilities in
connection with the acquisition.

The Company paid an additional approxinye$dl.5 million of consideration to certain Spedtmaear employees in connection with an
agreement between the employees and Spectra Liftg@aragreement provided that upon the sale of tBp&mear, a portion of the proceeds
would be paid to such employees as bonuses. Tlkemgnt was accounted for as a transaction seferatehe business combination bases
its economic substance and was recorded as podtheation compensation expense in the Company'adiahstatements during fiscal 2011.
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)

The Company recorded the purchase of Spéatear using the acquisition method of accounséind accordingly, recognized the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair ealas of the date of the acquisition. The restil€pectra Linear's operations are included in th
Company's consolidated results of operations bauginwith the date of the acquisition. Pro formeoimfiation related to this acquisition has no
been presented because it would not be materidlgreht from amounts reported. Acquisition-relatsbts were not significant.

The Company believes that the acquisitiaisaa broad family of timing ICs that will enabléd accelerate penetration in high-volume
applications, while further scaling the Companyigireering team. These factors contributed to atage price that was in excess of the fair
value of the net assets acquired and, as a ré@salGompany recorded goodwill. The goodwill is detluctible for tax purposes. The purchase
price was allocated as follows (in thousands):

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)
Intangible asset:
Core and developed technola $ 16,56( 10
Customer relationshiy 1,40C 10
17,96(
Accounts receivabl 1,75¢
Inventories 1,19¢
Other current asse 1,65¢
Goodwill 4,097
Deferred tax asse—nor-current 12,31¢
Other noi-current asset 597
Notes payab—current portior (4,64))
Current liabilities (3,112
Non-current liabilities (3,259
Total purchase pric $ 28,57¢

One of the Company's directors, Harvey 8sl€ is a General Partner with InterWest PartneddterWest Partners was one of the
principal stockholders of Spectra Linear. Mr. Cabltained from the decision-making process witheetsto the acquisition.

Silicon Clocks

In April 2010, the Company acquired Silid@locks, Inc., a privately held company that destyand developed microelectromechanical
system (MEMS) technology to enable the manufaatfisilicon resonators and sensors directly on stehdomplementary metal oxide
semiconductor (CMOS) wafers. The Company acquirkcb8 Clocks for approximately $21.0 million in gfa

The Company believes that the acquisitidhemable the Company to accelerate its entry thlow end timing market while further
scaling the Company's engineering team. Theserfactmtributed to a purchase price that was inexoéthe fair value of the net assets
acquired and, as a result, the
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)

Company recorded goodwill. The goodwill is not detile for tax purposes. The purchase price wasated as follows (in thousands):

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)
Intangible asset:
In-process research and developn $ 9,47C Not amortizec
Developed technolog 23C 3
Customer relationshiy 3C 2
9,73(
Cash and cash equivalel 514
Other current asse 477
Deferred tax asse—nor-current 11,52:
Other noi-current assel 32z
Goodwill 3,20¢
Current liabilities (1,339
Deferred tax liabilitie—nor-current (3,406
Total purchase pric $ 21,02t

The in-process research and developmeatded in connection with the acquisition of SilicGlocks was developed using MEMS
technology. The fair value was determined usingribeme approach. The discount rate applicablaaaash flows was 19.0%. This rate
reflects the weighted-average cost of capital &edisks inherent in the development process.

ChipSensors

In October 2010, the Company acquired Céiissrs Ltd, a privately held company for approxaha$11.7 million. ChipSensors created
innovative single-chip CMOS sensors designed teddeémperature, humidity and gases. The Compamyded the purchase of Silicon
Clocks using the acquisition method of accounting accordingly, recognized the assets acquirediaitities assumed at their fair values as
of the date of the acquisition. The purchase psias allocated as follows: intangible assets—$9llianj goodwill—$3.1 million; and net
tangible assets—$(0.5) million.
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

The following summarizes the activity inogiwill for the years ended December 29, 2012 anckBer 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 29 December 31
2012 2011
Beginning balanc $ 11548¢ $ 112,29
Additions due to business combinatic 14,77¢ 4,097
Adjustments — (904)
Ending balanc: $ 130,26! $ 115,48¢

Other Intangible Assets

The gross carrying amount and accumulateattization of other intangible assets are as ¥adldin thousands):

December 29, 201, December 31, 201
Weighted-Average
Amortization Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Period (Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Intangible asset:
Subject to amortizatior
Core and developed 10
technology $ 9542( $ (30,14%) $ 79,50 $ (30,43)
Customer relationshig 9 8,10( (1,059 2,51( (523
Patents 6 3,00( (250 — —
Trademark 12 91C (38) — —
10 107,43( (31,490  82,01( (30,959
Not subject to
amortization:
In-process research an  Not amortizec
developmen 14,81( — 8,95( —
Total intangible asse $ 12224 $ (31,490 $ 90,96( $ (30,959

Gross intangible assets increased $42lbomih fiscal 2012 primarily due to the acquisitiof Ember. This increase was offset by the
removal of $9.3 million of fully amortized assetadeb1.6 million of impaired assets (which had aaenmg unamortized balance of
$0.7 million, resulting in a $0.7 million chargegelling, general and administrative expense indbesolidated Statement of Income). The
impaired assets were written down to zero.
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (Continuefl

Amortization expense related to intangddsets for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $101ibmi$9.9 million and $7.5 million,
respectively. The estimated aggregate amortizatpense for intangible assets subject to amomizdtr each of the five succeeding fiscal
years is as follows (in thousand

Fiscal Year

2013 $ 11,21
2014 10,37:
2015 9,981
2016 9,331
2017 8,36¢

11. Debt

On July 31, 2012, the Company and certhitsalomestic subsidiaries (the "Guarantors") extento a $230 million five-year Credit
Agreement (the "Agreement"). The Agreement consists$100 million Term Loan Facility and a $130limh Revolving Credit Facility
(collectively, the "Credit Facilities").

The Term Loan Facility provides for qualgtearincipal amortization (equal to 5% of the piipatl in each of the first two years and 10% of
the principal in each of the next three years) whhremaining balance payable upon the maturity. dde Revolving Credit Facility include
$25 million letter of credit sublimit and a $10 huh swingline loan sublimit. The Company has ati@pto increase the size of the Revolving
Credit Facility by up to an aggregate of $50 millia additional commitments, subject to certaindibans. On September 27, 2012, the
Company borrowed $100 million under the Term Loanily. To date, the Company has not borrowed utitke Revolving Credit Facility.

The Term Loan Facility and Revolving Crdelitcility, other than swingline loans, will beatdrest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin
at the option of the Company, a base rate (defasathe highest of the Bank of America prime rdte Rederal Funds rate plus 0.50% and a
daily rate equal to one-month LIBOR plus 1.00%)sphim applicable margin. Swingline loans accruadsteat a per annum rate based on the
base rate plus the applicable margin for baseloates. The applicable margins for the LIBOR ragn®range from 1.50% to 2.50% and for
base rate loans range from 0.50% to 1.50%, depgiili@ach case, on the leverage ratio as defintdteidgreement. The Company also pa
commitment fee on the unused amount of the Rewvgl@redit Facility.

In connection with the closing of the Cteijreement, the Company entered into a securidypdedge agreement. Under the security anc
pledge agreement, the Company pledged equity siesunil certain of its subsidiaries, subject toaptons and limitations. The Credit
Facilities contain various conditions, covenantd eepresentations with which the Company must lmmpliance in order to borrow funds
and to avoid an event of default, including finahciovenants that the Company must maintain adeeeratio (funded debt/EBITDA) of no
more than 2.5 to 1 and a minimum fixed charge cayeratio (EBITDA/debt payments, income taxes apital expenditures) of no less than
1.50 to 1. As of December 29, 2012, the Companyimaempliance with all covenants of the Credit ikaes.
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11. Debt (Continued)

The contractual fiscal year maturitieste Term Loan Facility are as follows (in thousands)

Fiscal Year

2013 $ 5,00(
2014 7,50(C
2015 10,00(
2016 10,00(
2017 67,50(
Total $ 100,00(

Interest Rate Swap Agreem

In connection with the $100 million borradvender the Term Loan Facility, the Company enténeman interest rate swap agreement
hedge against the LIBOR portion of such variabterest payments. Under the terms of the swap agneiethe Company effectively conver
the LIBOR portion of the interest on the Term Ld@tility to a fixed interest rate of 0.764% througk maturity date. As of December 29,
2012, the combined interest rate on the Term Laailify (which includes an applicable margin) waS121%. See Note Rerivative Financia
Instruments, for additional information.

12. Stockholders' Equity
Common Stock

The Company issued 1.6 million shares ofimon stock during fiscal 2012, net of 0.3 millidrages withheld to satisfy employee tax
obligations for the vesting of certain stock gramtsde under the Company's stock incentive plans.

Share Repurchase Programs

In January 2013, the Board of Directordatized a share repurchase program to repurchage®f® million of the Company's common
stock through January 2014. In April 2012, the Blaair Directors authorized a share repurchase pnogoaepurchase up to $100 million of
Company's common stock through January 2013. Inl@ct2011, the Board of Directors adopted a sheperchase program to repurchase ur
to $50 million of the Company's common stock thitoégril 2012. The Company's repurchase program ameed in July 2010, authorized
repurchase of up to $150 million of the Compangisimon stock through 2011, and was completed in Aug0d11. The Company's repurch
program announced in October 2009 authorized therchase of up to $150 million of the Company's eam stock through 2010, and was
terminated upon the adoption of the July 2010 mogrThese programs allow for repurchases to be inatie open market or in private
transactions, including structured or accelerataaisactions, subject to applicable legal requirdmand market conditions. The Company
repurchased 1.7 million shares, 3.2 million shares 3.3 million shares of its common stock for $&&illion, $110.1 million and
$140.3 million during fiscal 2012, 2011 and 20Xspectively.
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12. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive L

The components of accumulated other congprakie loss, net of taxes, were as follows (in damals):

Net Unrealized

Unrealized Losses
Losses on Cash on Available-

Flow Hedges For-Sale Securities Total
Balance at January 2, 20 $ (2,919 $ (1,437 $ (4,35¢)
Period chang 44z 26¢€ 70¢€
Balance at January 1, 20 (2,477 (2,277) (3,649
Period chang 1,17¢ 3 1,181
Balance at December 31, 2C (1,299 (1,16¢) (2,467
Period chang 871 65C 1,521
Balance at December 29, 2C $ (42¢) $ (518) $ (949

Income Tax Allocated to the Components of Othergehensive Incom

The income tax effects of the componentstioér comprehensive income were as follows (iuslaods):

Year ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,

Income tax (expense) benefit or 2012 2011 2011
Net changes to availal-for-sale securities

Unrealized gains arising during the per $ (350 $ 1 $ (149
Net changes to cash flow hedg

Unrealized losses arising during the pel 33t 14¢ 924

Reclassification for losses included in net incc (803) (783) (1,162
Other comprehensive incor $ (81¢) $ (63€) $ (38))

13. Stock-Based Compensation

In fiscal 2009, the stockholders of the @amy approved the 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (t0@92Plan") and the 2009 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the "2009 Purchase Plan"). The P@09is currently effective, and has a term of &érg from the shareholders' approval date
The 2009 Purchase Plan became effective upon iiménttion of the previous Employee Stock Purchdaa,n April 30, 2010.

2009 Stock Incentive Plan

Under the 2009 Plan, the following may benged: stock options, stock appreciation rightsfggmance shares, performance stock units,
restricted stock units (RSUSs), restricted stockrawa
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13. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

(RSAs), performance-based awards and other awentlsdtively, all such grants are referred to asdwals"). Awards of stock options and
stock appreciation rights each deduct one shame fhe 2009 Plan shares available for issuancesafcn ehare granted, and full value awards
(awards other than for which the participant isuiszf to pay at least the fair market value ofuhderlying shares on the date of grant) deduc
1.55 shares from the 2009 Plan shares availabiedoance for each share granted. Awards granter the 2009 Plan generally contain
vesting provisions ranging from three to four yedise exercise price of stock options offered unider2009 Plan may not be less than 100%
of the fair market value of a share of our commimels on the date of grant. To the extent awardetgchunder the 2009 Plan terminate, expire
or lapse for any reason, or are settled in caglrestsubject to such awards will again be availtdslgrant.

2000 Stock Incentive Plan

In fiscal 2000, the Company's Board of Biioes and stockholders approved the 2000 Plan2006 Plan contains programs for (i) the
discretionary granting of stock options to empl®ye®n-employee board members and consultantedguirchase of shares of the Company
common stock, (ii) the discretionary issuance ahown stock directly (as granted under direct issaahares in RSAs and RSUSs), (iii) the
granting of special below-market stock optionsxeaitive officers and other highly compensated eyg®s of the Company for which the
exercise price can be paid using payroll deductants(iv) the automatic issuance of stock optiensdan-employee board members. The
discretionary issuance of common stock, RSUs asakgiptions generally contain vesting provisionsgiag from three to eight years. If
permitted by the Company, stock options can beotsext immediately and, similar to the direct issigaghares, are subject to repurchase righ
which generally lapse in accordance with the vgssichedule. The repurchase rights provide that gpaain defined events, the Company cal
repurchase unvested shares at the price paid per.sShhe term of each stock option is no more tharyears from the date of grant.

Stock Grants and Modifications

The Company granted to its employees OlBomishares of full value awards and no stock anuifrom the 2009 Plan during fiscal 2012,
2011 and 2010.

The Company recorded $1.9 million in segjligeneral and administrative expense during fi20&PR in connection with modifications to
certain stock awards. The Company accelerateddsiing of certain RSUs and Market Stock Units (Mpaisl extended the exercise perio
stock options pursuant to a separation agreeméweba the Company and its former Chief Executivéc®f (CEO). This arrangement is
discussed further in Note 18eparation AgreemeniThere were no other significant modifications m#&al any stock grants during fiscal 2012,
2011 or 2010.

Included in the full value awards grantedier the 2009 Plan in fiscal 2012 and fiscal 20&tena total of 110 thousand and 55 thousand
market-based stock awards, respectively. The awalsts known as MSUs, provide the rights to acqairember of shares of common stock
for no cash consideration based upon achievemesgegifified levels of market conditions. The redaiservice period for these MSUs is also
the vesting period, which is generally three yeahe performance criteria of the MSUs measure iffierdnce between the total stockholders'
return of the Company against that of the Philduielemiconductor Sector Total Return Index.
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2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The rights to purchase common stock grantetkr the 2009 Purchase Plan are intended teagett as either (i) purchase rights granted
under an "employee stock purchase plan," as thatitedefined in Section 423(b) of the Internal Bewe Code (the "423(b) Plan™), or
(ii) purchase rights granted under an employeekgpocchase plan that is not subject to the terndscanditions of Section 423(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code (the "Non-423(b) Plan"). Toeepany will retain the discretion to grant purahaghts under either the 423(b) Plan or
the Non-423(b) Plan. Eligible employees may puretemited number of shares of the Company's comstack at no less than 85% of the
fair market value of a share of common stock asgibed purchase intervals during an offering perieach offering period will be comprised
of a series of one or more successive and/or quarig purchase intervals and has a maximum ter@4 @honths. During fiscal 2012, 2011 ¢
2010, the Company issued 181 thousand, 169 thousah@d5 thousand shares, respectively, under 0@ RQrchase Plan to its employees.
weighted-average fair value for purchase rightaig@ under the 2009 Purchase Plan for fiscal 2042%11.02 per share.

Employee Stock Purchase PI

The Purchase Plan was adopted by the CoytgpBoard of Directors in fiscal 2000. Eligible eloyees could purchase a limited numbe
shares of the Company's common stock at 85% ahtiréet value during a series of offering periodscheoffering period is divided into semi-
annual purchase intervals and has a maximum te@d afonths. During fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010Gbenpany issued zero, zero and
79 thousand shares, respectively, under the Pwedblas to its employees. There were no purchakésrgranted under the Purchase Plan for
fiscal 2012.

Accounting for Sto-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation costs are basttdair values on the date of grant for stockas and on the date of enrollment for the
employee stock purchase plans, estimated by ussglack-Scholes option-pricing model. The fairues of stock awards and RSUs equal
their intrinsic value on the date of grant. The failues of market-based performance awards géyearal estimated using a Monte Carlo
simulation based on the date of grant.

The Black-Scholes valuation calculationuiegs the Company to estimate key assumptions asifliture stock price volatility, expected
terms, risk-free rates and dividend yield. Expedtieitk price volatility is based upon a combinatidioth historical volatility and implied
volatility derived from traded options on the Compa stock in the marketplace. Expected term isvddrfrom an analysis of historical
exercises and remaining contractual life of optidree risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treagialg curve in effect at the time of grant. The
Company has never paid cash dividends and doezunmeintly intend to pay cash dividends, thus it&ssumed a 0% dividend yield.

The Monte Carlo simulation used to calailaie fair value of the MSUs simulates the presahte of the potential outcomes of future
stock prices of the Company and the Philadelphmi&mnductor Sector Total Return Index over the igitpiservice period. The projection of
stock prices are based on the risk-free rate afmethe volatilities of the stock price of the Quamy and the Index, and the correlation of the
stock price of the Company with the Index.
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The Company must estimate potential faufes of stock grants and adjust compensation eostded accordingly. The estimate of
forfeitures will be adjusted over the requisitevésr period to the extent that actual forfeituréfed or are expected to differ, from such
estimates. Changes in estimated forfeitures agrezed through a cumulative catap-adjustment in the period of change and will &spac
the amount of stock-based compensation expenseracbgnized in future periods.

The fair values of stock options and RStésaamortized as compensation expense on a stil@ghtasis over the vesting period of the
grants. The fair values of RSAs are fully expernisettie period of grant, when shares are immediassiyed with no vesting restrictions. The
fair values of MSUs are amortized as compensatiperse on a straight-line basis over the performamnc service periods of the grants.
Compensation expense recognized is shown in thetpg activities section of the Consolidated Stagats of Cash Flows.

The fair values estimated from the Black«®@es option-pricing model were calculated usirgyftilowing assumptions:

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
2009 Employee Stock Purchase Pl
Expected volatility 38% 27% 32%
Risk-free interest rate ¢ 0.2% 0.2% 0.4%
Expected term (in month 15 11 15
Dividend yield — — —
A summary of stock-based compensation iggtivith respect to fiscal 2012 follows:
Weighted- Weighted-Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Contractual Term Value
Stock Options (000s) Price (In Years) (000s)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,48t $ 34.4¢
Grantec — 3 —
Exercisec (726) $ 29.9¢
Cancelled or expire (63) $ 47.7¢
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 1,69¢ $ 35.8¢ 2€ $ 12,20¢
Vested at December 29, 2012 and expected
vest 1,69¢ $ 35.8¢ 2.6 $ 12,20¢
Exercisable at December 29, 2( 1,69¢ $ 35.8¢ 2.6 $ 12,20¢
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Weighted- Weighteod-Average Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Purchase Vesting Term Value
RSAs, RSUs and MSU: (000s) Price (In Years) (000s)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,98¢ $ o
Granted 77¢ 3 —
Issuec (939 $ —
Cancelled or expire (12%) $ —
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 1,70¢ $ — 21 $ 70,64(
Outstanding at December 29, 2012 and expt
to vest 1,70¢ $ — 21 $ 70,64(

The following summarizes the Company's Wweid average fair value at the date of grant:

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011

Per grant of RSAs, RSUs and MS $ 43.8: $ 447 $ 44.8¢

The following summarizes the Company'sistoased payment and stock option values (in thaigan

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011

Intrinsic value of stock options

exercisec $ 9,06 $ 8,62 $ 14,08
Intrinsic value of RSAs and RSUs thi

vested $ 40,10 % 38,76¢ $ 32,10¢
Grant date fair value of RSAs and

RSUs that veste $ 31,21F $ 29,48t $ 25,39¢

The Company had approximately $41.4 milldéotal unrecognized compensation costs relatesddck options and stock awards at
December 29, 2012 that are expected to be recatpizer a weighted-average period of 2.1 years.dthe@re no significant stock-based
compensation costs capitalized into assets in athyegeriods presented.

The Company received cash of $15.1 milfarthe issuance of common stock, net of shardshelt for taxes, during fiscal 2012. The
Company issues shares from the shares reserveditsmstock plans upon the exercise of stock ogtitsgsuance of RSAs, vesting of RSUs
MSUs, and purchases through employee stock purgtass. The Company does not currently expectgarehase shares from any source to
satisfy such obligation.

F-37




Table of Contents

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 29, 2012 (Continued)

13. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

The following table presents details ot&tbased compensation costs recognized in the Gdated Statements of Income (in
thousands):

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011

Cost of revenue $ 1,20¢ $ 1,31¢ $ 1,43t
Research and developme 12,60: 14,87 17,017
Selling, general and administrati 17,36¢ 19,92« 21,87
31,17¢ 36,11°¢ 40,32

Income tax benefi 4,911 3,957 5,467

$ 26,26¢ $ 32,15¢ $ 34,86:

As of December 29, 2012, the Company hadried shares of common stock for future issuasdellaws (in thousands):

2000 Stock Incentive Ple 1,69¢
2009 Stock Incentive Ple 5,77
2009 Employee Stock Purchase F 82¢
Total shares reserve 8,29t

14. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a defined contributo401(k) Plan for its qualified U.S. employeRarticipants may contribute a percentage o
their compensation on a pre-tax basis, subject@amum annual contribution imposed by the InteRevenue Code. The Company may
make discretionary matching contributions as weltlescretionary profit-sharing contributions to #@l(k) Plan. The Company contributed
$2.9 million, $2.7 million and $2.6 million to tR®1(k) Plan during fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, eetpely.

15. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

The Company leases certain facilities umgb@rating lease agreements that expire at vadates through 2022. Some of these
arrangements contain renewal options and requir€tmpany to pay taxes, insurance and maintenasts. c
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Rent expense under operating leases waswiflion, $4.5 million and $5.0 million for fisc&012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The
minimum annual future rentals under the terms e$#hleases as of December 29, 2012 are as foliows(isands):

Fiscal Year

2013 $ 3,52:
2014 2,521
2015 1,86¢
2016 1,86¢
2017 1,66¢
Thereaftel 2,03¢
Total minimum lease paymer $ 13,47¢

The Company previously leased facilitiesife headquarters in Austin, Texas. In fiscal 2ah2 Company purchased the facilities under
options available in the leases. See Not&cquisitions, for additional information.

Litigation
Patent Litigation

On May 13, 2012, MaxLinear, Inc., a Delagvaorporation, filed a lawsuit against the Companhe United States District Court in the
Southern District of California, San Diego Divisj@meeking a declaratory judgment that MaxLineadpuots do not infringe 19 Silicon
Laboratories' patents and that such patents aadidnhe Company responded and filed claims aogusiaxLinear of infringing 6 Silicon
Laboratories' patents, including 5 of the name€atpany patents and an additional patent. On Deeefrth 2012, the Court granted a
request by the Company to add additional allegatafrpatent infringement to the case, such thaCimapany is presently accusing MaxLineal
of infringing 9 patents in this litigation. The Cpany has asked the Court for a permanent injunstiopping the sale of all allegedly infring
MaxLinear products.

On July 30, 2012, the Company further fdecomplaint for declaratory judgment against Madar in United States District Court for -
Western District of Texas, Austin Division. The Cpamy is seeking an order that MaxLinear's UnitedeSt Patent Nos. 7,362,178, 7,778,613
and 8,198,940 are invalid, and that the Companmgdyzts do not infringe such patents.

On July 17, 2012, the Company additionfilgd a lawsuit against MaxLinear in the Unitedt8taDistrict Court in the Southern District
California, San Diego Division, alleging infringemnteof an additional Company patent, U.S. Pater3%,fD7 related to RF design. On
August 6, 2012, MaxLinear counterclaimed allegimigingement of the three patents in the Texasdftan by a variety of the Company's RF
and mixed signal products.

At this time, the Company cannot prediet tutcome of these matters or the resulting firnicipact to it, if any.
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Other

The Company is involved in various otheyaleproceedings that have arisen in the normalseoaf business. While the ultimate results of
these matters cannot be predicted with certaihyCompany does not expect them to have a matehi@rse effect on its consolidated
financial statements.

16. Separation Agreement

On March 1, 2012, the Company enteredandeparation agreement with its former CEO, Neaiir&r. Pursuant to the agreement,
Mr. Sayiner agreed to continue to serve as CEQuttrd\pril 18, 2012 and as a non-executive advisaugh July 19, 2012. Upon his
separation from the Company and execution of asel®f claims, Mr. Sayiner received a severanckaggcconsisting of (a) accelerated
vesting of certain RSUs and MSUs and the extengidhe exercise period of certain stock option¥ césh payments and (c) other benefits.
The separation agreement resulted in a total expefnapproximately $3.2 million, which was recogrdzver the service period in selling,
general and administrative expenses.

17. Income Taxes

Significant components of the provisioniftcome taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011

Current:

Domestic $ 21,08: $ 14,46¢ $ 10,82

International (3,009 2,84t 4,14°¢

Total Current 18,07¢ 17,31: 14,96¢
Deferred:

Domestic 5,44¢ (70) (192

International (719) (375) (360)

Total Deferrec 4,72¢ (44%) (552)

$ 22,80 $ 16,86¢ $ 14,41
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17. Income Taxes (Continued)

The Company's provision for income taxdfeds from the expected tax expense amount compagegpplying the statutory federal
income tax rate to income before income taxesrasut of the following:

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Federal statutory ra: 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Foreign tax rate bene! (11.9) (11.0 (15.6€)
Research and development tax cre (0.5 (8.5) (6.2)
Release of prior year unrecognized t
benefits (8.9 — (3.6
Intercompany technology licen 11.¢ 10.4 4.4
Excess officer compensatit 1.C 3.2 2.C
Nondeductible acquisition cos — 2.9 —
Other (0.7 0.2 0.3
26.4% 32.2% 16.4%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2012 deged from the prior period, primarily due to telease of prior year unrecognized tax benefits
that were determined to be effectively settled miythe current period, along with one-time nondéblecosts associated with the acquisition
of Spectra Linear in fiscal 2011. The impact ofséaééems was partially offset by the non-renewaheffederal research and development tax
credit in the current period.

The American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012e(t Act") was enacted on January 2, 2013. The @tcoactively reinstates the federal
research and development credit from January 12,2btough December 31, 2013. The effect of thenghan the tax law related to fiscal 2(
is estimated to be between $3.5 million and $40anj which will be recognized as a benefit toonee tax expense in the first quarter of fis
2013, the quarter in which the law was enacted.

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2011 im@sed from the prior period, primarily due to tve tharge related to the intercompany license of
certain technology obtained in the acquisition pé&ra Linear and other one-time nondeductiblescassociated with the acquisition of
Spectra Linear, a decrease in the foreign taxtranefit, and a release of prior year unrecogniagdéenefits in fiscal 2010 with none in fiscal
2011. These changes were partially offset by arease in the research and development tax crefiitcial 2011.

Income before income taxes included appnaxely $5.9 million, $4.1 million and $40.1 milliorlated to foreign operations in fiscal
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Foreign incogferle income taxes increased from fiscal 2011scafi 2012 predominantly due to
increases in product sales, offset in part by are@se in the intercompany technology license pagsrmaade by a foreign subsidiary. Foreign
income before income taxes decreased from fiscHD 20 fiscal 2011 predominantly due to changesdapct mix, an increase in research anc
development expense and an increase in the int@aoyrtechnology license payments made by a formidgpsidiary.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ar@réed for the estimated tax impact of temporarfedinces between the tax basis and book ba
assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is
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17. Income Taxes (Continued)

established against a deferred tax asset whemibiig likely than not that the deferred tax asskinet be realized. The Company has providec
a valuation allowance of $2.1 million in fiscal ZDfelated to certain state loss and research arelafement tax credit carryforwards acquired
in fiscal 2012. The Company has determined thiatritore likely than not that the carryforwards veipire or go unutilized because the
Company no longer expects to have a significanbgmmment of income to the jurisdiction in whidketattributes were created. No valuation
allowance has been provided against other deféaredssets for fiscal 2012 or 2011. Managemenébedi that the Company's results of future
operations will generate sufficient taxable incasneh that it is more likely than not that the remrag deferred tax assets will be realized.

Significant components of the Company'&defl taxes as of December 29, 2012 and Decemb&031 are as follows (in thousands):

December 29 December 31
2012 2011
Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 35,847 $ 21,47¢

Research and development tax credit
carryforwards 8,44 5,55¢
Stoclk-based compensatic 8,13: 9,96:
Depreciation and amortizatic — 33,33¢
Capitalized research and developrnr 9,70¢ 1,42¢
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 3,93: 3,89¢
Accrued liabilities and othe 7,50 7,30¢
73,57 82,96(
Less: Valuation allowanc (2,119 —
71,457 82,96(

Deferred tax liabilities

Acquired intangible: 28,65: 18,56:
Long term obligations for tax purpos 33,02
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,07¢ —
Prepaid expenses and otl 1,447 91z
31,17¢ 52,49¢
Net deferred tax asse $ 40,28: $ 30,46:

During fiscal 2012, the Company recordeddederred tax assets of approximately $15.5 mmijlivet of the valuation allowance of $2.1
million discussed above, related to the acquisitibBEmber due to differences between book and é@e$ of acquired assets and assumed
liabilities.

As of December 29, 2012, the Company hddrid net operating loss and research and developeredit carryforwards of approximats
$90.8 million and $2.0 million, respectively, aseault of the Cygnal Integrated Products, Silicdocks, Spectra Linear and Ember
acquisitions. These carryforwards expire in fisedrs 2019 through 2032. Recognition of thesedosiscredit carryforwards is subject to an
annual limit, which may cause them to expire betbey are used.
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17. Income Taxes (Continued)

The Company also had state loss and rdseadt development credit carryforwards of approxatye$78.9 million and $9.9 million,
respectively. A portion of these loss and creditydfarwards was generated by the Company and @opontas acquired through the Integration
Associates, Silicon Clocks, Spectra Linear and Erabquisitions. Certain of these carryforwards expi fiscal years 2013 through 2032 and
others do not expire. Recognition of some of tHesg and credit carryforwards is subject to an ahhmit, which may cause them to expire
before they are used.

At the end of fiscal 2012, undistributedréiags of the Company's foreign subsidiaries ofrapinately $279.8 million are considered
permanently reinvested. Accordingly, no provisiond.S. federal and state income taxes has beer.radermination of the amount of the
unrecognized deferred tax liability on these untesdiearnings is not practicable.

The Company's operations in Singapore a@st to reduced tax rates through 2019, as Isrgeeain conditions are met. The income
benefit (expense) from the reduced Singapore taxredlected in earnings was approximately $(168jon (representing $(0.31) per diluted
share) in fiscal 2012, approximately $2.5 millisagresenting $0.06 per diluted share) in fiscall2&id approximately $6.1 million
(representing $0.13 per diluted share) in fiscdl®0rhe impact of the reduced Singapore tax rafis@éal 2012 reflects the recognition of prior
year unrecognized tax benefi

The following table reflects changes in timecognized tax benefits (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011

Beginning balanc $ 10,94 $ 10,78¢ $ 12,16(
Additions based on tax positions rele

to current yea 1,81¢ 757 1,742
Reductions for tax positions related t

prior years (8,397) (603) (3,119
Ending balanc: $ 4,36¢ % 10,94 $ 10,78¢

As of December 29, 2012, December 31, 20tdlJanuary 1, 2011, the Company had gross unrzeaolgtax benefits of $4.4 million,
$10.9 million and $10.8 million, respectively, ohigh $4.1 million, $9.9 million and $9.7 millionespectively, would affect the effective tax
rate if recognized. During fiscal 2012, the Comphay gross increases of $1.8 million to its curyesdr unrecognized tax benefits, as well as
gross decrease of $8.4 million to its prior yeategognized tax benefits related to an uncertairptssition that was determined to be effecti
settled. A portion of these amounts representsgoreurrency remeasurement adjustments and wagnieal in other income (expense), net.
The Company recognizes interest and penaltieserktatunrecognized tax benefits in the provisiarifioome taxes. The Company did not
recognize any interest in the provision for incammees in fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010. In additibr, Company had decreases of interest, net
tax, of $0.1 million in fiscal 2010. The Companysht made an accrual for the payment of intesdated to unrecognized tax positions at the
end of fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010.
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17. Income Taxes (Continued)

The Company believes it is reasonably fbess$hat the gross unrecognized tax benefits weiirdase by approximately $1.3 million in the
next 12 months due to the lapse of the statutenifations applicable to a tax deduction claimedaqgurior year foreign tax return.

The tax years 2006 through 2012 remain ¢p@xamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsathich the Company is subject. The
Company's 2010 federal income tax return is ungaménation by the U.S. Internal Revenue Servic¢gh@dlgh the outcome of tax audits is
always uncertain, the Company believes that thaétsesf the examination will not materially affats financial position or results of
operations. The Company is not currently undertandiny other major taxing jurisdiction.

18. Segment Information

The Company has one operating segment,disiiginal analog intensive ICs, consisting of numerproduct areas. The Company's chief
operating decision maker is considered to be iigfxecutive Officer. The chief operating decisioaker allocates resources and assesses
performance of the business and other activiti¢seabperating segment level.

Revenue is attributed to a geographic besad on the shipped-to location. The following suarizes the Company's revenue by
geographic area (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 29 December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011

United State! $ 64,85¢ $ 67,43 $ 69,75:
China 219,40( 152,53¢ 137,70
Taiwan 64,15( 59,20¢ 76,99
South Kore: 57,91( 70,25: 65,40¢
Japar 31,31t 50,27( 34,03:
Rest of worlc 125,66: 91,93( 109,45:
Total $ 56329 $ 491,62! $ 493,34

The following summarizes the Company's propand equipment, net by geographic area (ingaods):

December 29 December 31
2012 2011
United State: $ 127,71« $ 17,29:
Singapore 6,091 6,22(
Rest of worlc 1,45¢ 1,62¢
Total 135,27. $ 25,14:
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Quarterly financial information for fisca012 and 2011 is as follows. All quarterly periogpgorted here had 13 weeks (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Fiscal 2012
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue! $ 152,46. $ 149,46: $ 135,67( $ 125,70:
Gross margit 93,62¢ 86,49: 82,80: 75,09¢
Operating incom: 25,30: 27,23( 16,37¢ 16,76¢
Net income $ 18,69¢ $ 10,02« $ 20,50¢ $ 14,32(
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 04t $ 02¢ % 0.4¢ % 0.34
Diluted $ 044 $ 022 % 047 $ 0.3:
Fiscal 2011
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue:! $ 126,69: $ 119,10( $ 126,19° $ 119,63t
Gross margir 77,17¢ 72,891 76,21: 72,15¢
Operating incom 15,22 13,92¢ 15,98¢ 4,93¢
Net income (loss $ 12,80f $ 11,25 $ 13,370 $ (1,960

Earnings (loss) per shai
Basic $ 031 $ 0.2¢ $ 03C $ (0.09
Diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ (0.09
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Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Shenzhen Silicon Laboratories Technology Co. |
Silicon Laboratories France S¢/

Silicon Laboratories Gmbl

Silicon Laboratories Asia Pacific, Limite

Silicon Laboratories Hungary Korlatolt Feleléssé@iisasay
Silicon Laboratories Semiconductors India Privaimited
ChipSensors Limite:

Silicon Laboratories Ireland Limite

Silicon Laboratories Italy, S.r.|

Silicon Laboratories Y.K.

Silicon Laboratories International Pte. Lt

Silicon Laboratories Teknoloji Limited Sirke

Silicon Laboratories Technology UK Limite

Silicon Laboratories UK Limitet

Silicon Labs Spectra, Inc

Silicon Laboratories Technology, LL

Silicon Labs Ember, Inc

Organized Under Law Of

China

France

Germany

Hong Kong
Hungary

India

Ireland

Ireland

Italy

Japar

Singapore
Turkey

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
State of Californit
State of Delawar
State of Delawar
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeecimcthe Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos-38528, 333-45682, 333-60794, 333844
333-104771, 333-112324, 333-122845, 333-131700,138862, 333-149104 and 333-158938) pertaininge¢cstock incentive and employee
stock purchase plans of Silicon Laboratories Ifi@u reports dated February 1, 2013, with respette consolidated financial statements of
Silicon Laboratories Inc., and the effectivenesgt#rnal control over financial reporting of Siic Laboratories Inc., included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the fiscal year ended Decenit9, 2012.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Austin, Texas
February 1, 2013
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commison
by Registrant's Chief Executive Officer, as require by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, G. Tyson Tuttle, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidasboratories Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdassire controls and procedures and presentedsimggport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containtsprocedures as of the end of the period couwyéhis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiotesnal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of registrant's board of directorsersons fulfilling the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal ctsbeer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: February 1, 201

/s/ G. TYSON TUTTLE

G. Tyson Tuttle
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commison
by Registrant's Chief Financial Officer, as requiral by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
[, Paul V. Walsh, Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidasboratories Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsgtéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdassire controls and procedures and presentedsimggport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containtsprocedures as of the end of the period couwyéhis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiotesnal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of registrant's board of directorsersons fulfilling the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal ctsbeer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: February 1, 201

/s PAUL V. WALSH, JR.

Paul V. Walsh, Jr.
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as create8dayion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002hed¢the undersigned officers of Silicon
Laboratories Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifgtth

(i) the accompanying Annual Report omrd.0-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended&meber 29, 2012 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Repautly Eomplies with the requirements of Section }3{aSection 15(d), as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984

(i) the information contained in the Rejpfairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

A signed original of this written statemesadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities Exchange Commissiats staff upon request.

Date: February 1, 2013

/s/ G. TYSON TUTTLE

G. Tyson Tuttle
President and Chief Executive Offic

/s PAUL V. WALSH, JR.

Paul V. Walsh, Jr.
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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